MACKENZIE COUNTY

REGULAR
COUNCIL
MEETING

JULY 14, 2021
10:00 AM

FORT VERMILION COUNCIL
CHAMBERS

Mackenzie County






CALL TO ORDER:

AGENDA:

ADOPTION OF

PREVIOUS MINUTES:

CLOSED MEETING:

TENDERS:

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Wednesday, July 14 2021
10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers

Fort Vermilion, Alberta

AGENDA
Page
1. a) Call to Order
2. a) Adoption of Agenda
3. a) Minutes of the June 23, 2021 Regular 7
Council Meeting
b) Business Arising out of the Minutes
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act Division
2, Part 1 Exceptions to Disclosure
4. a) Street Rebuild Quote Negotiations
Tender openings are scheduled for 11:00 a.m.
5. a) La Crete North Sanitary Engineering 21
b)
Public Hearings are scheduled for 1:00 p.m.
6. a) Bylaw 1227-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to 25
Rezone Plan 072 5380, Block 3, Lot 1 from Fort
Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-HC” & Fort
Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Fort Vermilion
Heavy Industrial “FV-HI”
b) Bylaw 1228-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to 35
Rezone Plan 072 1505, Block 12, Lot 1 from Fort
Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Hamlet
Residential 1 “H-R1”
c) Bylaw 1230-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to 47

Rezone Part of Plan 182 1653, Block 2, Lot 4



DELEGATIONS

GENERAL REPORTS:

AGRICULTURE
SERVICES:

COMMUNITY

SERVICES:

FINANCE:

OPERATIONS:

UTILITIES:

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT:

7.

8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

from Rural Industrial General “RIG” to Rural
Country Residential 4 “RCR4”

Glenn Newman — Wood — Mackenzie County
Regional Waterline - 11:30 a.m.

CAO & Director Reports

None

Fort Vermilion Street Scape Dock Project

Financials

Vehicle Disposal

North Storm Pond A

Bylaw 1232-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
Rezone Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots 2-7 & 9 and
Plan 2938RS, Block 3, Lot 11 from Hamlet
Residential 1 “H-R1” to Fort Vermilion
Commercial Centre “FV-CC”

Bylaw 1233-21 Partial Plan Cancellation and
Consolidation of Plan 2983RS, Block 2, Lots 5 &
6

Rural Development Standards DEV007

General Municipal Improvement Standards
DEV008

Off-Site Levy Fee and Municipal Reserve Deferral

59

77

91

93

101

103

107

115

121

133

137



ADMINISTRATION:

COUNCIL
COMMITTEE
REPORTS:

INFORMATION /

CORRESPONDENCE:

NOTICE OF MOTION:

NEXT MEETING
DATES:

ADJOURNMENT:

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

f)

b)

Development Statistics Report — January to June
2021

Public Engagement Draft Conservation
Agreement for Wood Bison

Canada Community Revitalization Fund
2021 Conventions

Council Committee Reports (verbal)

Information/Correspondence

Committee of the Whole

August 17, 2021

10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers

Regular Council Meeting

August 18, 2021

10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers

Adjournment

139

147

151

153

157






Agenda ltem # 3. a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Mackenzie County
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: July 14 2021
Presented By: Colleen Sarapuk, Administrative Officer
Title: Minutes of the June 23, 2021 Regular Council Meeting
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Minutes of the June 23, 2021, Regular Council Meeting are attached.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Approved Council Meeting minutes are posted on the County website.

POLICY REFERENCES:

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by: CAO:




RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the minutes of the June 23, 2021 Regular Council Meeting be adopted as
presented.

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by: CAO:




MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Wednesday, June 23, 2021
10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
Fort Vermilion, AB

PRESENT: Josh Knelsen Reeve
Walter Sarapuk Deputy Reeve —arrived 10:01a.m.
Ernest Peters Councillor
Jacquie Bateman Councillor — virtual — left at 2:00 p.m.
Peter F. Braun Councillor
Cameron Cardinal Councillor
David Driedger Councillor
Eric Jorgensen Councillor — arrived 10:01 a.m.
Lisa Wardley Councillor
Anthony Peters Councillor
REGRETS:
ADMINISTRATION: Len Racher Chief Administrative Officer
Byron Peters Director of Projects and Infrastructure
Jennifer Batt Director of Finance
Jeff Simpson Director of Operations
Don Roberts Director of Community Services
Caitlin Smith Manager of Planning and Development
Grant Smith Agricultural Fieldman
Colleen Sarapuk Administrative Officer/Recording Secretary
Willie Schmidt Fleet Maintenance Manager — virtual

ALSO PRESENT: Members of the Public

Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on June 23, 2021 in
the Council Chambers at the Fort Vermilion County Office.

CALL TO ORDER: 1. a) Call to Order

Reeve Knelsen called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.
AGENDA: 2.a) Adoption of Agenda
MOTION 21-06-511 MOVED by Councillor Cardinal

That the agenda be adopted with the additions:
4.b) Provincial Leases



Page 2 of 12
MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, June 23, 2021

8.b) Restructuring
10.c) Wadlin Lake Firewood
15.a) Sawmill Letter of Support

CARRIED
ADOPTION OF 3.a) Minutes of the June 8, 2021 Regular Council
PREVIOUS Meeting

MINUTES:
MOTION 21-06-512 MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the minutes of the June 8, 2021 Regular Council Meeting be
adopted as presented.

CARRIED
ADOPTION OF 3. b) Business Arising out of the Minutes
PREVIOUS
MINUTES:

CLOSED MEETING: 4.a) Closed Meeting
MOTION 21-06-513 MOVED by Councillor Driedger

That Council move into a closed meeting at 10:04 a.m. to discuss
the following:

4.a) Legal(s. 21, 24, 25)
4.b) Provincial Leases (s. 21, 24, 25)

CARRIED

The following individuals were present during the closed meeting
discussion. (MGA Section 602.08(1)(6))

. All Members of Council

Len Racher, Chief Administrative Officer

Byron Peters, Director of Projects & Infrastructure
Jennifer Batt, Director of Finance

Jeff Simpson, Director of Operations

Don Roberts, Director of Community Services
Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development
Colleen Sarapuk, Administrative Officer/Recording
Secretary

. Grant Smith, Agricultural Fieldman

10



Page 3 of 12
MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, June 23, 2021

MOTION 21-06-514 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen
That Council move out of a closed meeting at 10:59 a.m.
CARRIED

Reeve Knelsen recessed the meeting at 10:59 a.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 11:08 am

TENDERS 5.a) Request for Proposals — Road Recovery Projects
MOTION 21-06-515 MOVED by Councillor Driedger

That the ‘Road Recovery Projects’ Tenders - Envelope #1 be

opened.

CARRIED
Bidder Required Documents
1173596 D Fehr Trucking All required documents
Boss Bridgeworks Inc All required documents
Northern Road Builders All required documents
Dechant Construction All required documents

MOTION 21-06-516 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters

That the ‘Road Recovery Projects’ Tenders - Envelope #2 be
opened for the qualified bidders.

CARRIED
Bidder Schedule A Schedule B
Boss Bridgeworks Inc $680,000.00 $147,500.00

1173596 D Fehr Trucking | $189,234.00 No Bid
Northern Road Builders $597,457.50 $255,975.00
Dechant Construction $338,394.87 $244,679.13

MOTION 21-06-517  MOVED by Councillor Braun

That Administration review the tenders and return for awarding later
in the meeting.

CARRIED

11



Page 4 of 12
MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, June 23, 2021

CLOSED MEETING: 4.a) Legal (s. 21, 24, 25)

MOTION 21-06-518 MOVED by Councillor Driedger
That the Legal discussion be received for information
CARRIED

CLOSED MEETING: 4.a) Provincial Leases (s. 21, 24, 25) (addition)

MOTION 21-06-519 MOVED by Councillor Wardley

Requires unanimous
That Administration send a letter to the Minister of Environment and
Parks, administration and MLA regarding immediate attention to
recreation leases.
CARRIED

MOTION 21-06-520 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk

That the ‘Road Recovery Projects’ contracts be awarded to the
lowest qualified bidders while staying within budget.

CARRIED

Schedule A

Price | Weight | Experience | Weight | Local | Weight | Total

Boss

Bridgeworks 8 85 9 10 10 5 820

Dechant

\ 10 85 10 10 10 5 1000
Construction

Northern
Road 9 85 10 10 10 5 915
Builders

Schedule B

Boss

Bridgeworks 10 85 9 10 10 5 990

Dechant

Construction 9 85 10 10 10 5 915

Northern
Road 8 85 10 10 10 5 830
Builders

GENERAL 8. a) Disaster Recovery (Standing Item)
REPORTS:

MOTION 21-06-521 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk

12



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 5 of 12

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Wednesday, June 23, 2021

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

DELEGATIONS:

MOTION 21-06-522

DELEGATIONS:

MOTION 21-06-523

GENERAL
REPORTS:

MOTION 21-06-524
Requires unanimous

AGRICULTURE
SERVICES:

COMMUNTIY
SERVICES:

MOTION 21-06-525

That the Disaster Recovery Update be received for information.
CARRIED

6.a) None

7.a) Mike Alsterlund — 11:30 a.m.

MOVED by Councillor Driedger

That the Mike Alsterlund delegation be received for information.
CARRIED

7.b) RCMP -11:45 a.m.

MOVED by Councillor E. Peters

That the RCMP crime statistics reports be received for information.
CARRIED

Reeve Knelsen recessed the meeting at 12:02 p.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 12:37 p.m.

8. b) Mackenzie Regional Restructuring (addition)

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That the Mackenzie Regional Restructuring discussion be received
for information.

CARRIED

9.a) None

10. a) FRIAA Grant Funding

MOVED by Councillor Driedger

That the 2021 One Time Project Budget be amended to include
$34,000, for the FireSmart Home Assessments project with funding

13



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 6 of 12

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Wednesday, June 23, 2021

COMMUNTIY
SERVICES:

MOTION 21-06-526

COMMUNTIY
SERVICES:

MOTION 21-06-527
Requires unanimous

FINANCE:

MOTION 21-06-528

MOTION 21-06-529
Requires Unanimous

coming from Forest Resource Improvement Association of Alberta
(FRIAA) grant.

CARRIED

10. b) Ferry Campground Society — New Campground
Proposal

MOVED by Councillor E. Peters

That administration work with the Ferry Campground to formulate a
plan and obtain the lease for the creation of a new campground.

CARRIED

10. c) Wadlin Lake Firewood (addition)

MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That the budget be amended by $7,500 to hire a non profit group to
split and stack the fire wood at Wadlin Lake with funding coming
from the General Operating Reserve.

CARRIED

11. a) Bylaw 1217-21 — Local Improvement Tax, 101 Ave
Asphalt

MOVED by Councillor Braun

That second reading be given to Bylaw 1217-21, being a bylaw
authorizing imposition of a local improvement tax to the benefiting
properties for construction of an Asphalt Overlay on 101st Avenue,
99th Street to 98th Street for; Plan 052 4622, Block 23, Lot 8, pt.
NW-10-106-15-W5M, Plan 082 7720, Block 18, Lot 6 and Plan 962
1721, Block 18, Lots 6 and 7 in the Hamlet of La Crete.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Braun

That consideration be given to proceed to the third reading of Bylaw
1217-21

CARRIED

14



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 7 of 12

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Wednesday, June 23, 2021

MOTION 21-06-530

FINANCE:

MOTION 21-06-531

FINANCE:

MOTION 21-06-532

FINANCE:

MOTION 21-06-533
Requires 2/3

FINANCE:

MOTION 21-06-534
Requires 2/3

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That third reading be given to Bylaw 1217-21, being a bylaw
authorizing imposition of a local improvement tax to the benefiting
properties for construction of an Asphalt Overlay on 1015t Avenue,
99t Street to 98t Street for; Plan 052 4622, Block 23, Lot 8, pt.
NW-10-106-15-W5M, Plan 082 7720, Block 18, Lot 6 and Plan 962
1721, Block 18, Lots 6 and 7 in the Hamlet of La Crete.

CARRIED

11. b) Taxes Tax Roll # 214765 & 214766 — Request to
reduce taxes

MOVED by Councillor E. Peters

That the request to reduce taxes on tax roll #214765 & 214766 be
received for information.

CARRIED

11. ¢) Taxes Tax Roll # 106062 — Request to Write Off
Penalties

MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That the request to write off penalties on tax roll #106062 be denied
and the property be moved into tax auction.

CARRIED
11. d) Taxes Tax Roll #075382 & 075386 — Write Off
MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That the request to write off 2021 levies in the amount of $150 for
tax roll #075382 & 075386 be denied.

CARRIED
11. e) 2021 Minimum Grazing Lease, Farmland
MOVED by Councillor Driedger

That Grazing Lease and Farmland Development Leases tax rolls as

15



Page 8 of 12
MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, June 23, 2021

per Schedule “A” be reduced to a $50 minimum tax for 2021, and
that $16,178.46 in taxes be written off.

CARRIED
FINANCE: 11. f) Financial Reports
MOTION 21-06-535 MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the financial reports for January to May 31, 2021 be received
for information.

CARRIED
FINANCE: 11. g) Expense Claims — Councillors
MOTION 21-06-536 MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That the Councillor expense claims for May 2021 be received for
information.

CARRIED
FINANCE: 11. h) Expense Claims — Members at Large
MOTION 21-06-537 MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the Member at Large Expense Claims for May 2021 be
received for information.

CARRIED
OPERATIONS: 12. a) None
UTILITIES: 13. a) La Crete North Sanitary Trunk Sewer-Engineering

Services-Request for Proposals
MOTION 21-06-538 MOVED by Councillor Braun
That the deadline for proposals be set for July 9, 2021 and
Administration be authorized to open and score each proposal for

presentation at the July 14, 2021 Council meeting.

CARRIED

16



Page 9 of 12
MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, June 23, 2021

PLANNING & 14. a) Bylaw 1225-21 Off-Site Levy Bylaw — La Crete North
DEVELOPMENT: Sanitary Trunk Sewer

MOTION 21-06-539 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That second reading be given to Bylaw 1225-21 Off-Site Levy
Bylaw — La Crete North Sanitary Trunk Sewer.

CARRIED
MOTION 21-06-540 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk

That third reading be given to Bylaw 1225-21 Off-Site Levy Bylaw —
La Crete North Sanitary Trunk Sewer.

CARRIED
PLANNING & 14. b) Bylaw 1230-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
DEVELOPMENT: Rezone Part of Plan 182 1653, Block 2, Lot 4 from Rural
Industrial General “RIG” to Rural Country Residential 4
“RCR4”

MOTION 21-06-541 MOVED by Councillor Wardley
That first reading be given to Bylaw 1230-21 being a Land Use
Bylaw Amendment to Rezone Part of Plan 182 1653, Block 2, Lot 4
from Rural Industrial General “RIG” to Rural Country Residential 4
“‘RCR4”, subject to public hearing input.
CARRIED

PLANNING & 14. c) La Crete Offsite Levy Bylaw
DEVELOPMENT:

MOTION 21-06-542 MOVED by Councillor Driedger

That first reading be given to Bylaw 1231-21 being the La Crete
Offsite Levy Bylaw, subject to public hearing input.

CARRIED

Reeve Knelsen recessed the meeting at 2:17 p.m. and reconvened
the meeting at 2:35 p.m.

PLANNING & 14. d) 100 Street Land Acquisition (La Crete)
DEVELOPMENT:

17



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 10 of 12

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Wednesday, June 23, 2021

MOTION 21-06-543

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT:

MOTION 21-06-544

ADMINISTRATION:

MOTION-21-06-545
Requires unanimous

MOTION-21-06-546
Requires unanimous

COUNCIL
COMMITTEE
REPORTS:

MOTION 21-06-547

MOVED by Councillor Braun

That Mackenzie County acquire 3m of land on the east side for the
future road widening of 100 Street.

CARRIED

14. e) Municipal Development Plan, Land Use Bylaw, and
Fort Vermilion Area Redevelopment Plan Update

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk

That the Municipal Development Plan, land use Bylaw, and Fort
Vermilion Area Redevelopment Plan update be received for
information.

CARRIED

15. a) Sawmill Letter of Support (addition)

MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That a letter be sent to the Minister of Agriculture and Forestry in
support of the renewal of the local mills FMA 0200040

CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That the Minister of Agricultural and Forestry be invited to a Council
meeting.

CARRIED

16. a) Council Committee Reports (verbal)

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That the Council Committee Reports be received for information.

CARRIED

18



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 11 of 12

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Wednesday, June 23, 2021

COUNCIL
COMMITTEE
REPORTS:

MOTION 21-06-548

COUNCIL
COMMITTEE
REPORTS:

MOTION 21-06-549

INFORMATION /

CORRESPONDENC:

MOTION 21-06-550

NOTICE OF
MOTION:

NEXT MEETING
DATE:

16. b) Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes

MOVED by Councillor E. Peters

That the unapproved Agricultural Service Board meeting minutes of
June 15, 2021 be received for information.

CARRIED

16. ¢c) Community Services Committee Meeting Minutes

MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the unapproved Community Services Committee meeting
minutes of June 10, 2021 be received for information.

CARRIED

17. a) Information/Correspondence

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk

That the information/correspondence items be accepted for
information purposes.

CARRIED

18. a)

19. a) Next Meeting Dates

Committee of the Whole

July 13, 2021

10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers

Regular Council Meeting

July 14, 2021
10:00 a.m.

19



Page 12 of 12
MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, June 23, 2021

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
ADJOURNMENT: 20. a) Adjournment
MOTION 21-06-551 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen
That the council meeting be adjourned at 4:22 p.m.
CARRIED

These minutes will be presented to Council for approval on July 14, 2021.

Joshua Knelsen Lenard Racher
Reeve Chief Administrative Officer

20



Agenda ltem # 5.a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Byron Peters, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer

Title: Tender- La Crete North Sanitary Trunk Sewer Engineering
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

The La Crete North Sanitary Trunk Sewer Design Report was developed by Helix
Engineering Inc. with the report approved by Council at the November 25th Regular
Council meeting.

Phase 1 of the Design Report provides a preliminary engineering design that includes a
sanitary sewer-servicing concept which would service the following sanitary sub-basins
within the La Crete area:

e Section 16-106-15-W5M
e West half of 15-106-15-W5M

The Phase 1 scope of work includes roughly 2885 m of gravity mains ranging from 450
mm to 675 mm diameter, and a depth from 3.6 m to 9.8 m. There will also be a new lift
station required near the lagoon, along with a short force main. Phase 1 is estimated to
cost around $6.5 million.

Development is dependent on this servicing for the North side of La Crete, and several
multi-lot subdivision applications have already been approved. It is anticipated that 80+
lots will be developed prior to this sanitary trunk line being completed.

On June 23, 2021 Council made the following motion authorizing administration to issue

an RFP for engineering services required to complete the design and construction of the
La Crete North Sanitary Trunk Sewer.

Author: S Gibson Reviewed by: B Peters CAO:

21



MOTION 21-06-538 MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the deadline for proposals be set for July 9, 2021 and
Administration be authorized to open and score each proposal for
presentation at the July 14, 2021 Council meeting.

CARRIED

A Request for Proposals was issued the morning of June 25, 2021 with a closing date of
4:30 pm on July 9, 2021.The following matrix is to be used for evaluating the qualifying
proposals.

Mark Points

Evaluation Criteria (%) | Available

Subtotal

Knowledge of the Mackenzie County issues, 30
constraints, and community adaptations as
demonstrated by local experience.

Availability and flexibility to perform services as 30
described in scope of work.

Experience and qualifications of firm and project team 30
members.

Fees 10
Total points available 100

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Administration will provide a scored summary of the proposals received with a
recommendation to award the project to the successful proponent for the Request for
Proposals for the La Crete North Sanitary Trunk Sewer, at the July 14, 2021 Council
meeting.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

At the May 26, 2021 council meeting, council approved a budget of $235,000 in order
to complete the detailed design and tendering. It is anticipated that the funding to
construct the infrastructure will be approved in the 2022 budget.

The costs for engineering are being incorporated into the offsite levy fees for the
benefitting area.

Author: S Gibson Reviewed by: B Peters CAO:

22



SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

Goal C1
The capacity of infrastructure in County hamlets keeps pace with their growth and
is planned in such a way that ensures their sustainability.

Goal E 26.1
Infrastructure is adequate and there are plans in place to manage additional
growth.

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

N/A

POLICY REFERENCES:

FINO25 Purchasing Authority Directive and Tendering Process
Mackenzie County General Municipal Improvement Standards (GMIS)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the engineering contract for the La Crete North Sanitary Trunk Sewer Phase 1 be
awarded to

Author: S Gibson Reviewed by: B Peters CAO:

23



24



Agenda ltem #6.a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: July 14, 2021
Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development

PUBLIC HEARING

Bylaw 1227-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Rezone Plan
Title: 072 5380, Block 3, Lot 1 from Fort Vermilion Highway

Commercial “FV-HC” & Fort Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI”

to Fort Vermilion Heavy Industrial “FV-HI”

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

Mackenzie County has received a request to rezone Plan 072 5380, Block 3, Lot 1 in
the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion from Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-HC” and Fort
Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Fort Vermilion Heavy Industrial “FV-HI” to
accommodate a truck wash and fuel station.

The subject parcel is adjacent to Highway 88 and located near an existing service
station. The developer plans to construct a truck wash in the near future with a larger
service station to follow with later development phases.

Administration will need to determine the servicing feasibility of the area.

The proposed bylaw was presented to the Municipal Planning Commission on May 27,
2021 where the following motion was made:

MPC 21-05-076 MOVED by Jacquie Bateman

That the Municipal Planning Commission recommend to Council to
approve Bylaw 12xx-21 being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment to rezone
Plan 072 5380, Block 3, Lot 1 from Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial
“FV-HC” & Fort Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Fort Vermilion Heavy
Industrial “FV-HI” to accommodate a service station — major, subject to
public hearing input.

CARRIED

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

25



Bylaw 1227-21 was present to Council on June 8, 2021 where the following motion was
made:

MOTION 21-06-494 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters

That first reading be given to Bylaw 1227-21 being a Land Use
Bylaw Amendment to rezone Plan 072 5380, Block 3, Lot 1 from
Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-HC” & Fort Vermilion
Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Fort Vermilion Heavy Industrial “FV-HI”
to accommodate a service station — major, subject to public
hearing input.

CARRIED

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Options are to pass, defeat, or table second and third reading of the bylaw.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Costs consisted of advertising the public hearing and adjacent landowner letters which
were borne by the applicant.

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

Goal E26 That Mackenzie County is prepared with infrastructure and services for a
continually growing population.

COMMUNICATION/PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Public Hearing is required prior to second and third reading.

POLICY REFERENCES:

Not applicable at this time.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous
Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

26



That second reading be given to Bylaw 1227-21 being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment
to rezone Plan 072 5380, Block 3, Lot 1 from Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-
HC” & Fort Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Fort Vermilion Heavy Industrial “FV-HI”
to accommodate a service station — major.

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous
That third reading be given to Bylaw 1227-21 being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
rezone Plan 072 5380, Block 3, Lot 1 from Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-HC”

& Fort Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Fort Vermilion Heavy Industrial “FV-HI” to
accommodate a service station — major.

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

27



28



BYLAW NO. 1227-21

BEING A BYLAW OF
MACKENZIE COUNTY
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

TO AMEND THE
MACKENZIE COUNTY LAND USE BYLAW

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has a Municipal Development Plan adopted in 2009, and

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has adopted the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw in
2017, and

WHEREAS, the Council of Mackenzie County, in the Province of Alberta, has deemed it
desirable to amend the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw to accommodate a Service
Station — Major.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE MACKENZIE COUNTY, IN THE PROVINCE
OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. That the land use designation of the subject parcels known as:
Plan 072 5380, Block 3, Lot 1

Within the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion, be rezoned from Fort Vermilion Highway
Commercial “FV-HC” & Fort Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Fort Vermilion
Heavy Industrial “FV-HI” as outlined in Schedule “A” hereto attached.

READ a first time this 8™ day of June, 2021.

PUBLIC HEARING held this day of , 2021
READ a second time this day of , 2021.
READ a third time and finally passed this day of , 2021.

Josh Knelsen
Reeve

Len Racher
Chief Administrative Officer

29



BYLAW No. 1227-21
SCHEDULE “A”

1. That the land use designation of the following properties known as:

Plan 072 5380, Block 3, Lot 1 within the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion, be rezoned from Fort
Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-HC” & Fort Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Fort

Vermilion Heavy Industrial “FV-HI”.

FORT VE

072 5380

902 3332

FROM: Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-HC” &
Fort Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI”

TO: Fort Vermilion Heavy Industrial “FV-HI”

30



—/ /

Application No:

Mackenzie County
LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT APPLICATION

Complete only if different from Applicant

Name Of Applicant Name of Registered Owner
Danny Friesen
Address: Address:
P.O. Box 26
City/Town City/Town
Fort Vermilion
Postal Code Phone Cell Postal Code Phone Cell
TOH 1NO 7808411496
Legal Description of the Land Affected by the Proposed Amendment:
QTR.LS. | SEC. TWP. RANGE M. PLAN BLK LOT
or
072 5380 3 1

Civic Address: 4200 45 Street

Land Use Classification Amendment Proposed:
From: FV-LI & FV-HC To: Fort Vemilion Heavy Industrial

Reasons Supporting Proposed Amendment:

The intention is to develop an industrial subdivision to support heavy truck traffice. Potential
developments include a truck wash and fuel station.

| have enclosed the required application fee of: 697.00 Receipt No.: 268773
Applicant Signature Date

May 21 2021
Registered Owner Signature Date

NOTE: Registered Owner’s signature required only if different from applicant

The personal information on this form is collected in accordance with Section 33 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy
(FOIP) Act for the purpose of processing this application, issuing development permits and Land Use Bylaw Enforcement. The name of the
permit holder and nature of the permit are available to the public upon request. If you have any questions regarding the collection, use or

disclosure of this information, please contact the FOIP Coordinator or (780) 927-3718.

Mackenzie County
Box 640, 4511-46 Avenue
Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO

Mackenzie County

31

Phone: (780) 927-3718

Fax: (780)927-4266

Email: office@mackenziecounty.com
www.mackenziecounty.com



REZONING APPLICATION

RE
— 1  H-R1
|
UF
RIL Hamlet Boundarvl
ﬁ

REC2

FV-LI

-

95

| Subject Property

I
LT

75

W E
f @ ‘;\% N
S Pﬁ'&c
|
l if* UF

|

Fort
Vermilion
Indian —
Reserve
173B

i

FC-HC

CR1

Hwy 88 |=

RIL

File No. Bylaw 1227-21

Disclaimer

Information on this map is provided solely for the user’s information and,

While thought to be accurate, is provided strictly “as is” and without

Warranty of any kind, either express or implied.

The County, its agents, employees or contractors will not be liable for any

Damages, direct or indirect, or lost profits or data arising out of the use of

information provided on this map.

L4
\\!‘\"

Ty

Mackenzie County

32

NOT TO SCALE



REZONING APPLICATION

,,___
[Ty

11

File No. Bylaw 1227-21 NOT TO SCALE

d

(S

Disclaimer

Lt
vy
= \\{s

Information on this map is provided solely for the user’s information and,
While thought to be accurate, is provided strictly “as is” and without
Warranty of any kind, either express or implied.

The County, its agents, employees or contractors will not be liable for any
Damages, direct or indirect, or lost profits or data arising out of the use of

information provided on this map.

Mackenzie County

33



Mackenzie County

PUBLIC HEARING FOR LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT -
REZONING

BYLAW 1227-21

Order of Presentation

This Public Hearing will now come to order at

Was the Public Hearing properly advertised?

Will the Development Authority , please outline

the proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning and present
his submission.

Does the Council have any questions of the proposed Land Use
Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning?

Were any submissions received in regards to the proposed Land
Use Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning? If yes, please read them.

Is there anyone present who would like to speak in regards of the
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning?

If YES: Does the Council have any questions of the person(s)
making their presentation?

This Hearing is now closed at

REMARKS/COMMENTS:

34



Agenda ltem #6.b)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: July 14, 2021
Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development

PUBLIC HEARING
Bylaw 1228-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Rezone Plan

Title: 072 1505, Block 12, Lot 1 from Fort Vermilion Highway
Commercial “FV-HC” to Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1”
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Mackenzie County has received a request to rezone Plan 075 1505, Block 12, Lot 1 in
the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion from Fort Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Hamlet
Residential 1 “H-R1” to accommodate a multi-family residence.

The subject parcel in approximately 2.0 hectares (4.99 acres) in size, there is no
maximum lot size established for the Hamlet Residential 1 ‘H-R1” zoning district within
the Land Use Bylaw.

The proposed bylaw was presented to the Municipal Planning Commission on May 27,
2021 where the following motion was made:

MPC 21-05-075 MOVED by Beth Kappaler

That the Municipal Planning Commission recommend to Council to
approve Bylaw 12xx-21 being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment to rezone
Plan 072 1505, Block 12, Lot 1 from Fort Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-
LI” to Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” to accommodate a multi-family
residence, subject to public hearing input.

CARRIED

Bylaw 1228-21 was present to Council on June 8, 2021 where the following motion was
made:

MOTION 21-06-495 MOVED by Councillor Driedger

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

35



That first reading be given to Bylaw 1228-21 being a Land Use
Bylaw Amendment to rezone Plan 072 1505, Block 12, Lot 1
from Fort Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Hamlet Residential
1 “H-R1” to accommodate a multi-family residence, subject to
public hearing input.

CARRIED
An incorrect location map and current zoning were presented at the previous Council
meeting on June 8, 2021. The error does not affect the intention of the Bylaw and does

not require re-advertising. The bylaw being presented today has been amended to
contain the corrected zoning.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Options are to to pass, defeat, or table second and third reading of the bylaw.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Costs consisted of advertising the public hearing and adjacent landowner letters which
were borne by the applicant.

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

Goal E26 That Mackenzie County is prepared with infrastructure and services for a
continually growing population.

COMMUNICATION/PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Public Hearing is required prior to second and third reading.

POLICY REFERENCES:

Not applicable at this time.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
M  Simple Maijority O Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous
Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

36



That second reading be given to Bylaw 1228-21 being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment
to rezone Plan 072 1505, Block 12, Lot 1 from Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-
HC” to Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” to accommodate a multi-family residence.

M  Simple Maijority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That third reading be given to Bylaw 1228-21 being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
rezone Plan 072 1505, Block 12, Lot 1 from Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-
HC” to Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” to accommodate a multi-family residence.

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

37



38



BYLAW NO. 1228-21

BEING A BYLAW OF
MACKENZIE COUNTY
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

TO AMEND THE
MACKENZIE COUNTY LAND USE BYLAW

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has a Municipal Development Plan adopted in 2009, and

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has adopted the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw in
2017, and

WHEREAS, the Council of Mackenzie County, in the Province of Alberta, has deemed it

desirable to amend the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw to accommodate a Dwelling-
Multi-Family.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE MACKENZIE COUNTY, IN THE PROVINCE
OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. That the land use designation of the subject parcels known as:

Plan 072 1050, Block 12, Lot 1

Within the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion, be rezoned from Fort Vermilion Highway
Commercial “FV-HC” to Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” as outlined in Schedule “A”
hereto attached.

READ a first time this 8™ day of June, 2021.

PUBLIC HEARING held this day of , 2021
READ a second time this day of , 2021.
READ a third time and finally passed this day of , 2021.

Josh Knelsen
Reeve

Len Racher
Chief Administrative Officer

39



BYLAW No. 1228-21
SCHEDULE “A”
1. That the land use designation of the following properties known as:

Plan 072 1050, Block 12, Lot 1 within the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion, be rezoned from
Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-HC” to Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1”.

12 =
1 s
072 1050
42.17 59.99 63.63
FROM: Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-HC”
TO: Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1”

40



___________

Application No:

Mackenzie County
LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT APPLICATION

Complete only if different from Applicant

Name Of Applicant Name of Registered Owner
A Shn

Address: Address:

¢O Boxb/
City/Town City/Town

Q{k/ Wtrllo}’l
Postal Code Phone Cell Postal Code Phone Cell
TOHWO | 390-91-sugq

Legal Description of the Land Affected by the Proposed Amendment:
QTR./LS. | SEC. TWP. RANGE | M. PLAN BLK LOT

Tloauoese | i | ]

Civic Address:

Land Use Classification Amendment Proposed:

From: C;) MMk To: é [UU"'\/( { oun ’\(\7 KCJ JJQVU,«/(, X
Reasons Supporting Proposed Amendment:

f/oué Vi ¢t m yee. & fo /évt,'(/ N4/ 4‘-”””6_

| have enclosed/the required application fee of: gz;o’ Receipt No.:
o
Hlo (ﬂu
Datel
Moy 3y
_-Registered Owner Signature Date !

NOTE: Registered Owner's signature required only if different from applicant

The personal information on this form is collected in accordance with Section 33 of the Freedom of Information and Profection of Privacy
(FOIF) Act for the purpose of processing this application, issuing development permits and Land Use Bylaw Enforcement. The name of the
permit holder and nature of the permit are available fo the public upon request. If you have any questions regarding the collection, use or
disclosure of this information, please contact the FOIP Coordinator or (780) 927-3718.

Mackenzie County
Box 640, 4511-46 Avenue
Fort Vermilion, AB TOH tNO

Phone: (780)927-3718

Fax: (780) 927-4266

Email: office@mackenziecounty.com
www.mackenziecounty.com

Mackenzie County

41



REZONING APPLICATION

e
i
p

eset mave PQP\G

| DC1
! i UF
9,
o
% ) REC2 :
ST
RE ! [I 1
H-R1 % -
| R L _ Fort R
I Subject Property I 1 1= Recreation Complex Verm_ilion
I REC2 Indian
1 LI Reserve
173B
Hwy 88
FC-HC
RIL Hamlet Boundary | el RIL
|

- -
-

\\!‘m

File No. Bylaw 1228-21 NOT TO SCALE

&

\
\

Disclaimer

<

Information on this map is provided solely for the user’s information and,
While thought to be accurate, is provided strictly “as is” and without
Warranty of any kind, either express or implied.

The County, its agents, employees or contractors will not be liable for any

Damages, direct or indirect, or lost profits or data arising out of the use of

information provided on this map.

Mackenzie County

42



REZONING APPLICATION

File No. Bylaw 1228-21 NOT TO SCALE

res d
\\4&(’&"

Disclaimer

ey

Information on this map is provided solely for the user’s information and,
While thought to be accurate, is provided strictly “as is” and without
Warranty of any kind, either express or implied.

The County, its agents, employees or contractors will not be liable for any
Damages, direct or indirect, or lost profits or data arising out of the use of

information provided on this map.

Mackenzie County

43



Purpose

9.17.1 The purpose of the Hamlet Residential 1
(H-R1) district is to provide for single
family dwellings, within all HAMLETS,
through a variety of building forms while
considering medium density residential
forms permitted context compatibility.

Permitted and Discretionary Land Use Classes

9.17.2 Land use classes within the following table shall be permitted or discretionary within the Hamlet
Residential 1 (H-R1) district of this BYLAW.

ACCESSORY BUILDING BED AND BREAKFAST BUSINESS
BUILDING DEMOLITION OF REMOVAL DAY CARE FACILITY

DWELLING - SINGLE FAMILY DAY CARE HOME

GARAGE - ATTACHED DWELLING - DUPLEX

GARAGE - DETACHED DWELLING - GROUP HOME
MANUFACTURED HOME - MOBILE DWELLING — MULTI-FAMILY
MANUFACTURED HOME - MODULAR DWELLING - ROW

SECONDARY SUITE DWELLING — STACKED ROW HOUSING

HOME BASED BUSINESS MEDIUM
HOME BASED BUSINESS MINOR
RESIDENTIAL SALES CENTRE

TOURIST HOME

Land Use Bylaw 1066-17 155
Consolidated Copy with REVISIONS to November 2020

44



Regulations

9.17.3 In addition to the regulations contained in Section 8, the following standards shall apply to every
DEVELOPMENT in this LAND USE DISTRICT.

Max. Lot Area

Min. Lot Dimensions

Width 16.8m (55.0ft)
Depth 33.5m (110.0ft)
Min. Setback
Yard — Front 7.6m (25.0ft)
Yard — Interior Side 1.5m (5.0ft)
Yard — Exterior Side 3.1m (10.0ft)
Yard — Rear 2.4m (8.0ft) with overhead utility servicing

1.5m (5.0ft) with underground utility servicing

Additional Regulations

9.17.4 All new subdivisions shall have underground servicing.

9.17.5 In addition to Section 8.33 of this BYLAW, the Development Authority may require any
DISCRETIONARY USE to be screened from view with a vegetated buffer strip and/or other
SCREENING of a visually pleasing nature, satisfactory to the Development Authority.

9.17.6 The architecture, construction materials and appearance of buildings and other structures shall
be to accepted standards and shall complement the natural features and character of the site to
the satisfaction of the Development Authority.

9.17.7 The Development Authority may decide on such other requirements as are necessary having due
regard to the nature of the proposed DEVELOPMENT and the purpose of this LAND USE
DISTRICT.

156 Mackenzie County

45



Mackenzie County

PUBLIC HEARING FOR LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT -
REZONING

BYLAW 1228-21

Order of Presentation

This Public Hearing will now come to order at

Was the Public Hearing properly advertised?

Will the Development Authority , please outline

the proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning and present
his submission.

Does the Council have any questions of the proposed Land Use
Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning?

Were any submissions received in regards to the proposed Land
Use Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning? If yes, please read them.

Is there anyone present who would like to speak in regards of the
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning?

If YES: Does the Council have any questions of the person(s)
making their presentation?

This Hearing is now closed at

REMARKS/COMMENTS:

46



Agenda ltem # 6.c)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: July 14, 2021
Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning and Development

PUBLIC HEARING
Bylaw 1230-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Rezone Part of

Title: Plan 182 1653, Block 2, Lot 4 from Rural Industrial General
“RIG” to Rural Country Residential 4 “RCR4”
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Administration has received a Land Use Bylaw Amendment application to rezone a
portion of Plan 182 1653, Block 2, Lot 4 from Rural Industrial General “RIG” to Rural
Country Residential 4 “RCR4”. The subject lot is adjacent to the north boundary of the
Hamlet of La Crete.

The Rural Country Residential 4 “RCR4” zoning district was adopted by Council on
June 8, 2021 with the following motion:

MOTION 21-06-507 MOVED by Councillor A. Peters

That third reading be given to Bylaw 1224-21 being a Land Use
Bylaw Amendment to add Rural Country Residential 4 (RCR4)
to Section 9.

CARRIED

The developer has submitted an eighty (80) lot subdivision lot layout plan which is
proposed to be half industrial lots and half country residential type lots with a 15m berm
for buffer. The industrial portion (32-SUB-21) was approved by the Municipal Planning
Commission on June 10, 2021.

The applicant would like to develop 0.8-1.5 acre rural country residential lots, similar in
size to the hamlet country residential lots in La Crete; the intension of the area would be
estate living. Only dwelling-single family homes with attached garages would be
permitted and the homes would be required to be a minimum of 1500 sq ft less the
garage.

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

47



The developer would like to have higher density lots adjacent to the hamlet that would
eventually be within hamlet should boundaries change. This would be the first rural
country residential subdivision with lots of this size.

Currently, there are no Area Structure Plan reference to this specific location other than
the 2020 La Crete Industrial Lands strategy. This entire parcel has been identified as
proposed light industrial pocket as La Crete expands.

Administration and the developer have come to a temporary servicing solution until
municipal sanitary sewer can be installed.

Bylaw 1230-21 was presented to Council for first reading on June 23, 2021 where the
following motion was made:

MOTION 21-06-541  MOVED by Councillor Wardley

That first reading be given to Bylaw 1230-21 being a Land Use
Bylaw Amendment to Rezone Part of Plan 182 1653, Block 2, Lot 4
from Rural Industrial General “RIG” to Rural Country Residential 4
‘RCR4’, subject to public hearing input.

CARRIED

Bylaw 1230-21 was presented to the Municipal Planning Commission on June 24, 2021
where the following motion was made:

MPC 21-06-094 MOVED by Beth Kappelar

That the Municipal Planning Commission recommend to Council to
APPROVE Bylaw 1230-21 being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
Rezone Part of Plan 182 1653, Block 2, Lot 4 from Rural Industrial
General “RIG” to Rural Country Residential 4 “/RCR4”, subject to public
hearing input.

CARRIED

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Options are to pass, defeat or table second and third reading of the bylaw.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Costs consisted of advertising the Public Hearing and adjacent landowner letters which
were borne by the applicant.

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

48



SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

Goal E26 That Mackenzie County is prepared with infrastructure and services for
continually growing population.

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Public Hearing is required prior to second and third reading.

POLICY REFERENCES:

DEV007 Rural Development Standards

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That second reading be given to Bylaw 1230-21 being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment
to Rezone Part of Plan 182 1653, Block 2, Lot 4 from Rural Industrial General “RIG” to
Rural Country Residential 4 “RCR4”.

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That third reading be given to Bylaw 1230-21 being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment to

Rezone Part of Plan 182 1653, Block 2, Lot 4 from Rural Industrial General “RIG” to
Rural Country Residential 4 “RCR4”.

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

49



50



BYLAW NO. 1230-21
BEING A BYLAW OF
MACKENZIE COUNTY
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

TO AMEND THE
MACKENZIE COUNTY LAND USE BYLAW

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has a Municipal Development Plan adopted in 2009, and

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has adopted the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw in
2017, and

WHEREAS, the Council of Mackenzie County, in the Province of Alberta, has deemed it
desirable to amend the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw to accommodate a new
residential subdivision adjacent to Hamlet Boundaries.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE MACKENZIE COUNTY, IN THE PROVINCE
OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. That the land use designation of the subject parcels known as:

Part of Plan 182 1653, Block 2, Lot 4

Within the Mackenzie County, be rezoned from Rural Industrial General “RIG” to
Rural Country Residential 4 “RCR4” as outlined in Schedule “A” hereto attached.

READ a first time this 23 day of June, 2021.

PUBLIC HEARING held this day of , 2021
READ a second time this day of , 2021.
READ a third time and finally passed this day of , 2021.

Josh Knelsen
Reeve

Len Racher
Chief Administrative Officer

51



BYLAW No. 1230-21

SCHEDULE “A”

1. That the land use designation of the following properties known as:

Plan 182 1653, Block 2, Lot 4 within Mackenzie County, be rezoned from Rural
Industrial General “RIG” to Rural Country Residential 4 “RCR4".

182 1653

182 1653

1

182 1654

132 4101

RGE RD 153

FROM:

TO:

Rural Industrial General “RIG”

Rural Country Residential 4 “RCR4”

52




Application No:

Mackenzie County
LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT APPLICATION

Complete only if different from Applicant

Name Of Applicant Name of Registered Owner

Paul Driedger (FTEN Group of Companies) Henry W Peters and Tina Peters
Address: Address:

PO Box 1419 PO Box 1603

City/Town City/Town

La Crete, AB La Crete, AB

Postal Code Phone Cell Postal Code | Phone Cell
TOH2HO0 TOH2HO0

Legal Description of the Larid Affected by the Proposed Amendment:

QTR./LS. | SEC. TWP. RANGE | M. PLAN BLK LOT
NE 16 106 15 5 or

Civic Address:

Land Use Classification Amendment Proposed:

Agricultural To: Rural County Residential 4

From:

Reasons Supporting Proposed Amendment:

With the subject property being immediately adiacent to the Hamlet of La Crete north boundary we are
requesting rezoning from Agricultural to #Z,=£ Sountry Residential 4(jRCR4) district to accommodate higher
density rural residential immediately adjacent to hamlet boundaries.

| have enclo? eqmred application fee of: Receipt No.:
2021-06-10

Ap I|ca re Date
%@ Yoo P 2210610

Registeree’Owner Signature Date

NOTE: Registered Owner’s signature required only if different from applicant

The personal information on this form is collected in accordance with Section 33 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy
(FOIP) Act for the purpose of processing this application, issuing development permits and Land Use Bylaw Enforcement. The name of the
permit holder and nature of the permit are available to the public upon request. If you have any questions regarding the collection, use or
disclosure of this information, please contact the FOIP Coordinator or (780) 927-3718.

Phone: (780)927-3718

Fax: (780)927-4266

Email: office@mackenziecounty.com
www.mackenziecounty.com

Mackenzie County
Box 640, 4511-46 Avenue
Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO

Mackenzte County

53



mmemar - ey .-
SESREE S A BV AUEDRT u_79Eua.vﬁamwﬁmaﬁzeww\,ﬁh%%.\’r...!..ldv :




Y |

o T
ANV o e g L

)

55



REZONING APPLICATION

o

‘ [
Il

HESSEN

e | R ‘Gamw.
'

DOKHAC  ELER | mcmul!mm
"

— PO | FRAREROR | PAR N i i
TWP RD o0k s [y, | b mus:sflmfﬁi‘mm“ ‘E”‘"mm“ vy oMK 08E | GoeReE Emimﬂ o ] \“ ] |
T e i PEELGAG g r " pcemesn e HSEN | CERKSEA | ooz | oot P THEssa
o ) e Pt BRI ool Tl b
W ; = e ‘ 1074 I
L1, e 5 MERE | pumen |mm W Can ;‘ i P HEE | HEK ooERisEy Tlmv mm‘w e e
le= | / ] e e JHE il g 4y s | ooEBesEN oo 088 | oo pa | s |
. Bl ERH s wae nae [ Fas B
e 2 — 1 —an 1 -

|
| TERS | iR,
Ui can

VESEN
TECHROER,
stk | “Toat | sommm, — CREDGER, ) | KAAHY,AL A WELER, G4 WELER 62 €

Wu

e o, | e ~
ZUWEER PRK| gy | RN WL froes ‘
ED | IVCKDda | DMGKDEA FROESE.
= s | 8¢ “”‘”"g e |FEM.NEE WBW"HEBI ERE RS E mxmm ‘mmu DRCK BN WEEE RAE | WELR 62
ol —— — L‘,_;E
f . — s
s | v | e, =
; WA DREDGES, »
e s (RS, | ok se moseo WP| WS ceh |weasnl FOSE | T | wee e oo 7 ncwsu‘mm; - e,
Iw\vm [ — B |gioss | e owek |y <|mmu£ - MEIRJAA) Tin
MEUFE B " Ty T B TWP RO Sl | | £ ]
] S ey et e | e S : N i - )
i i — FRES | wourEMas’ AL | mwgnec DOERMSER | ek A wep | s, R F[l;
—— 1 e Gl f wams Ly g "mﬂ ERUNHAA | hea b, T m&mn muwu‘ 88| & ovekum ook sem | o
Ch | maserne] Aaneon | maneron | mangron - S o ' — g
- HOUBMGS L0 | POLINGSITE. | FOLIES LTD. L GESER -
RIS LT |5 DK 8B T — — lemnwas L
= : o o | ten | acra B | PR WCTE | W mexpen] Mokda |
e, Mnmw|mmn|:‘,‘“‘ — | el | o Higiu
el oL £ B
FRESEY, | THESSEKK wn_rzms‘ =TT ERETGE ‘ GOERTZEH |
o | e, P =
= BEY 3T AN x |[TTERS EASNMERELA | HESSE A MK“"‘l . | sz ' smoeas | mcPsa bk ras wcr.su|wcmm|
L = ‘| = —g— ST FESOURE
L: ;X rm [ 2 =] a i
6 i | weee sl Kol F o L s i [ E . 2
a el 5 CH AT E R Lo 23 2 o 5 o, £ s me ol
== T TAREROROTE R e il Eod Jo w g kg leg s~
NESETER | EUSTETE, 1070 5 " WOLFCAKE D EAST)
\‘ Rt s LA | Py S vese o ‘wznw. SEUFEL, | s i = |
E 5 RiN caA o VEEDLH ST WATRE,F | wese DA mJPTER: PaJ) IWKTENS, | e e mmm‘ oK 62
a2 -1z = I} PAE | ASE A
T AN . = = . = pae R S H B Bl
| usem | ggemin 1Rt P WU PAS | o 2 ey, | RO | e e P )
b, i el el -l S o i e oan | SO | DMEL | g gy v e wmnul| et “mm‘ ey
W) VSRS il | - o e = | m, A J DD DY)
= o LT Inemusm |, s — E
, WAEBE, CEE i\’ 14608 i
. onere| = L | s HASSS s s b e ras TS e ki | R s s guwsen| (TR et weseogn usamw|mw” [ MESE R
4 T . T 7 i <'> B S L b miy ‘ T EE T
E” ‘ CERIEN VD W h HAsse, | cmere m HLSSERP | neLooms, i 1 !
T an £ e e, | oo f e s P | | e wesscae mm.:ss‘ oFEK DE K | [ ETR ., e e | |
o ™ = | F?JL'Z a0 | FRESEY AL 1 m"ﬁwpkj | | meeEan | MRS nE;l;Elw. VAEBE, D&M ' VAESE, DR M | WEBE.DEN ' WEBE DA | WERE 4
‘ w‘ e ] Hoea
g RET anus‘wnns ERGEN | BOEAUS ey [
i of S b P i d RAHN B AL nokJas | e € Mo eas el i
E SN = e u Ject rope rty L Ik RETA L mem DK, L W;l& _[\ KRG wmenulJ WEBEDAN | VIESE, D8 M | WEBE.DE W DGR
Szl e = -+ = 2 S = Pa,
T L Z3 | I
| ‘ AE | sk, 515§§ K | ] MeRe S| pvor 187 | orek e | ook it | RGN OB | cuunage oo e DOERNSEN, | FETER Ronei eas | DNGKESJ | RANG | KT I ‘ -
S RET) = 1 TAE B
1 00 LI ey BT by o 5 s | e JELFED | WEBE D5 | K08 weneo g | WESE 34| wesEDen| Dk | g | Tka
FEHR,GAB = S !
5k -] ™) S —
o 7 B [ ity uszes ZEB pmca] v | 3w | o | o [« i
5 m Y R B WEERTH weeceR s | s | oassey,s | massons B oo | ovokda || g R
{ “; —Touragge, 4 ) e it e Mﬂ“ﬂft- iR wEseosn| OKE | emc | wece
= 4 —— — =] —
R PeA 2] ""”"E/ WickEIE e a5 | | = B i ¥
S | | o i s, = LG "’““d e wan | =
1082 | “ - - Lyl FaE H oK FEHR. " "‘li“ THESSER K
% ' 2 IF HIG HAYBS SONNEGTTR Yo HE
b EEA SH e gl EROE. Mgy [ = — FERGLL wonmry | mnges, | o . e
— t el AEF | i H frid 0 | e | wan o —— wencens | e | s, umm‘m ‘
oas| FETERS, N B e — £ asts Wan | W | mmemase STETAL | Few | F 0PSS| e
FETER, BN, G, o e | il E e e — @
1 hAH FRE - "ﬁuu KRN A8 | pupeip y [MEREL JE. . = . 3
i A= sk | e 3 m:zuma BOBALG, | DREDGER, MEWH‘ R ARD | PFIEDGR S lop e o
X 3 e - X He , B s AL e JAZEN JRE) DYOK, 5L v
ar ; > =& |2 Lo I y k ‘ — | — 4#, — |
| s g | TERRROR | EUFELDH | VPR | yyeieg g WLEE o EOGER, gL
- ¥ Lmt‘ = : | J | N =13 i ,DE'S ! == ‘ sc.mr DL WERE 34| _m?:l;m REDER) o whires || sy mmua.xs‘“ =
y 8 Lake e u & PRI A L RS [ R T I =i i . o B ——ao — B
ARSI T & i g 7 jan NEH By BT o @7 e R WS | oo T ‘mm ¥ e, (= uE j = m_ | e £y oo, s =0 | &
-\./"” 1080 kT bl == 1L TWPRD. 1l N & e _f SR ww B oy gy ¢ oz 7 PeTsr RALY w* pag MEERI BT A weu 5T e | MEE O gy e w o
i wm Suser Nel:E 1000 RFQRTR DA - e, T _twero | ‘ :, S s MTE g =
S B i - ‘g i tf "" H 10 . == =
- w leoer | 0% ok 3 ”;'ﬁ,"{f : E 1= E | s TROHNED | RS heurin 0 | Meuhen k| g e | WEEE 42 |r,"cm.m RERSE, | 0 L Fefiens S 1
5 Ea % b &, 4 - LaHRT WiN GOERTZEH, A | WERE, D2 N m:mm ﬁ! UNRAJ. 144 WDE:“B( x| TESSELY | WESE e T mmunu‘munu DK W H
Lo, g s =) L [ - | z Wese Az { - i = ]» —
a T I aum o g £ wamer| oo | o em e wrsof B mes e, | rewrs m pi, | s ‘ B e
T R Ef e s | | 7 waconef ouerac | e | o |umm TS| e | e Lo P | s
Mustus ustr |
MB?IEKII ummu[ Lake [ ma Limuusm) w:ﬁi 7 mgln““ SCHDT ,‘ oo, EF | \EUDORF, I;'}"I:W FETERT | fHCifces, | WARTENS, e e =TT
s = o T T M 785 bl p O WENERO] mmns | Ty apk| CFELHQoKTAC Ehme ' Lo =
= — = — et Bl — 5 - SIS R T 2
SAIREX, OREN EEEDaN 1z — i - o0 ar o 4
e FEHLHSE ERS K | WOLEE, kg BEAVER s -
P RD ‘ Win | | ‘ (1] TEEEDRY "*mﬂ!-ﬂp‘m“ PO i T | e AEFELD
=== e R B 3 | TWE RD. = o | o E=08 | e || may |
g 1054 ey WP RD ‘m—u.l \ WLDAN | e wnnﬂ
'-‘-f\ = U] . 1
‘ M,W renex|f e e | ey o, [ooxrac | mo - ‘ | z
: w5 HAREER, | WEBE D&M [zeR,J g FRESEL nmra Inﬂ.m WLLFEA w.m| St -
5 eee LERESEY g 2 R e e (] s | e L o — RTINS ey | e TERHAOES
- BT H | ET n— 2 | == 4 SRR B i ARK
IWHFEK FETERE T4 T ?:cuem o jeas | 2 | ﬁuﬂn ‘ WELER.J&A | WELER, 24 | WEBE DM | 1 CREDGER !mm{m 3 wmsl | I 1 ' i
| s e 18 [ s EEE D2 K I F \ e
gt [T of i= | o et o i o Lm 8 mmj e | o 0% | s ons | wisass | wcas TEHROES,
ey, | ¢ s L ABK
et ST | i k—i rﬁﬁ"‘ 4 ME“"‘@W; o4 F“’“E" [MELER, J8 A wmum mnm IRIENCER, | OREL 2 Uk |
i E 108 2
| el DSAEN - ol o mg?;_[\ I ey 15 ml Wxi:\fﬁ ”W" ‘JNCK.HC‘ MK TAC | ‘mu.us ”ﬁﬂ“wﬂ}uu TECHAOES, | TECHRCER, || THCHRCES, | TCHRCER, ‘[wm—;ﬁ
i | B ﬂwmi BUHLER o G i — L il Bl
Tn | 'umsa[ HASE, | gassen | reUFELD, =ELIT| e, * | e | it |
H Fa % ’ F [ SUFELD, | MEUK KLASSEN, | il
5] TwRRD RSE | Rap BHA Taac O AR prot] [l Prac KL nﬁ:ﬁ_un mum,uu umm CREDGER, | REDCER, | REDGER'S mssm =i
B il L i, W weRo = i R Bl s iy | ! m“ RS | macm s mnm.nmnnm‘
1 1052 _ il | WP | ‘ It i
LoENEY, 0 | DUNEBE INVAESE - e ' H e 3
WeriL | D, | TS Ryl (WEER ke | BERGEL e SR | WAL RaH e v:s:n?ﬂ :‘ U8 e G | rervpcen e | WEER)  NELR KUISSER, | RASSN, | neise HE “
k= _, ) e n ﬂlr we | o | I v ‘ or A HARHS T wﬂml! HARS, T8 WOLFE I 54 M\unw| BRNS,ARH) WWNTENG | IAENG | LZENG | MEENG
] e Hie o i i
[ rassen | WEUFELD, BT i i — — ! L
arn /L ﬁﬂ_f FAN [ ‘W'H" m‘(mt MJE trecaen, b |, 1478 i‘\ffm"’ﬁ?f |‘MHU weter,ssa | sy | IS Lzl T | ‘
¥ B o S 1 } Y i B LI o gy uymm HARS D &mm‘mns mmsus‘ LY P ‘Jmmm SOENG | WEENG | wems | swEye |
i Y Bl bx I e = —
UNRAL 18 (—‘ ElkE | ‘ |
5 §‘ 5 PETERS,
U 154 | r 2] 58 aan ]2 MR TR ALY| AT s, 4
B ’ |

i

2 [a
uw Zg ‘
LU

= o

mm

| HARMS, A 1 ‘
WOLFE L& 0 | WOFE Ja N | WOFE J 2N mﬂﬂﬂ| HARNS, liE” HARME A | HaRMs A || HARME. & ‘ HARMS A | WEENG ‘ NG 1 MZENG | EENG | JANZEY G
iy H Bk e

—

File No. Bylaw 1230-21

Disclaimer

Information on this map is provided solely for the user’s information and,
While thought to be accurate, is provided strictly “as is” and without
Warranty of any kind, either express or implied.

The County, its agents, employees or contractors will not be liable for any
Damages, direct or indirect, or lost profits or data arising out of the use of

information provided on this map.

3 P A o
T T = .
| " I I
e I"w'““ PR “”\"“W\“’“ S e S s i s Jarl MESEX s T : ml

: 3 o5
RS w i ;w3 2 & & _ wiE B =) i
Jal eSO - % Wy """’“‘m,‘;“,:" w S WL | B, T Tl WEBE (1 12 g, | WE= o WEE | ROBE %3 et o MG 2 |
£ 07 sac | RGO s 8% oy | e Y7 s ‘ J5H w"““ﬁ :‘t MW 2 e
THBHS ELINE RETaD! 1 : & 2 \ £~
; .

56

e

Swima™

NOT TO SCALE

Mackenzie Count



Mackenzie County

PUBLIC HEARING FOR LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT -
REZONING

BYLAW 1230-21

Order of Presentation

This Public Hearing will now come to order at

Was the Public Hearing properly advertised?

Will the Development Authority , please outline

the proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning and present
his submission.

Does the Council have any questions of the proposed Land Use
Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning?

Were any submissions received in regards to the proposed Land
Use Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning? If yes, please read them.

Is there anyone present who would like to speak in regards of the
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment — Rezoning?

If YES: Does the Council have any questions of the person(s)
making their presentation?

This Hearing is now closed at

REMARKS/COMMENTS:

57



58



Agenda ltem # 7.a)

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Len Racher, Chief Administrative Officer
DELEGATION

Title: Glenn Newman -Wood — Mackenzie County Regional
Waterline — 11:30 a.m.

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

Glenn Newman from Wood will be attending the council meeting with a presentation on
the proposed Mackenzie County Regional Waterline.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

POLICY REFERENCES:

Author: Reviewed by: CAO:

59



RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the presentation from Wood regarding the Mackenzie County Regional Waterline be
received for information.

Author: Reviewed by: CAO:

60



wood.

Mackenzie County Regional
Waterline (MCRW)

Draft Meeting Slides
14 July 2021

Presenter name goes here

aaaaaaaaa



Design Criteria by Mackenzie County Rock Lane
and Bluehills

* Source of supply
- Rocky Lane — Fort Vermilion WTP via Fort Vermilion truckfill
- Bluehills — La Crete WTP via Buffalo Head Prairie truckfill
» Waterline — HDPE, minimum 200mm
- Larger line across Peace River to accommodate future growth to north
- Domestic demand along waterline - 50 domestic connections @ 1 gpm (272 m3/d)
- Maintain minimum 30 psi in waterline
* Rocky Lane & Bluehills Truckfills
- Prefabricated metal (similar to Buffalo Head Prairie and Fort Vermilion truckfills)
- 450 m3 capacity
- Fill rate 11 L/s, fill in 12 hours
- Truck loading pad constructed on grade

2 A presentation by Wood. WOOdo

62



Rocky Lane & Bluehills - Status R T

* Preliminary design completed including: X | i EI S WA

- Servicing Options: Rocky Lane TF, plus Child e T '
Lake, plus High Level = B =" o1l

- Multiple alignment options as shown for
Rocky Lane

- 3 alignment options for Bluehills

- Preliminary geotechnical investigation
- Preliminary environmental review | el
- Feasibility study, Peace River crossing SepER-RE o0 SEE A Eedae
- Feasibility study, Steephill Creek crossing e PR A T T
- Land acquisition requirements 3= e T

- Construction cost estimates o oA e

- Funding alternatives lse 6 '_

Bluehills Waterline
MACKENZ]

3 A presentation by Wood. WOOdo

63



Rocky Lane Services Options

* Scenario 1 — Fort Vermilion to Rocky Lane Truckfill

- Required Flow = 11 L/s + 3.15 L/s (225 gpm), 28.8 to 34.1 km 8 inch pipe

- Preliminary Construction Cost (2018): $33-$38 million depending on route
* Scenario 2 — Fort Vermilion to Rocky Lane & Child Lake (51.3 km)

- Required Flow = 11 L/s + 3.15 L/s + 3.5 L/s (280 gpm), 51.3 km 10 inch pipe

- Preliminary Construction Cost (2018): $63.2 million, exclusive of WTP upgrade
« Scenario 3 — Fort Vermilion to Rocky Lane, Child Lake, & West Truckfill

- Required Flow = 11 L/s + 3.15L/s + 3.5 L/s + 11 L/s (455 gpm), 12 inch pipe

- Preliminary Construction Cost (2018): $73.0 million, exclusive of WTP upgrade
« Scenario 4 — Supply to High Level (+ 171.02 L/s), 85 km of 24 inch (DCL Siemens)

- Rechlorination station may be required for serving Child Lake

4 A presentation by Wood.
64

wood.



Bluehills Servicing Options

8 inch HDPE sized for flow of 11 L/s to fill 450 m3 truckfill in 12 hours plus 3.15 L/s
demand for domestic connections

* Minimum pressure in line 30 psi

« Option 1 — Twp Rd 1044 alignment, 35.3 km, $34 million (2018)

« Option 2 — Hwy 697 alignment, 30.35 km, $33.3 million (2018)

 Requires coring through floor of Buffalo Head Prairie Truckfill to install pumps
« May require upgrades in waterlines La Crete to BHP Truckfill

5 A presentation by Wood. WOOdo

65



Child Lake Water Demand - Conceptual

» 2016 Federal census population 216 persons vs 218 at Boyer First Nation

e Initial max day demand Boyer River WTP 150 m3 (personal communication Tetra Tech
May 23, 2018)

« Assume Child Lake max day is the same — 150 m?3

» Allowance for growth —assume = 150 m3 in max day demand

« Total max day demand for design of waterline = 300 m3/d (3.5 L/s)
 Rechlorination may be required along the waterline

« To meet a max day demand of 300 m3/d at Child Lake, capacity improvements at Fort
Vermilion WTP will be required

- Plant capacity 1,900 m3/d, 2017 max day 1,300 m?
- Plus Rocky Lane + domestic + Child Lake = 1,022 m3/d new demand on the plant

6 A presentation by Wood.
66

wood.



Child Lake — Administrative Considerations

 Council & Beaver First Nation jointly develop design flows for Child Lake, the preferred
routing to Child Lake and the preferred location of the truckfill at Child Lake

« Council & Beaver First Nation consider the joint development of a business model for
the joint administration of the Regional Water Line if it is extended to Child Lake

7 A presentation by Wood. WOOdo

67



Alignment Child Lake - High Level, Conceptual

« Child Lake truckfill likely located near Rge Rd 162 and Twp Rd 1094/1092

» To avoid construction along Hwy 58, follow Twp Rd 1094 to Rge Rd 184, turn north to an

easement to be acquired along Hwy 58 to the east limit of the service area (INSERT PLAN
HERE)

 Extend waterline to alternate connection point as required

8 A presentation by Wood. WOOdo

68



Extend Service to High Level - Conceptual

» Water Demand: 2010 DCL Siemens Engineering Ltd — 2060 max day demand = 171.02 L/s
(14,800 m3/d = 2,700 usgpm)
- Keith Straub 21/06/28 — given existing Town infrastructure, consider 75 L/s

* Distance Fort Vermilion to eastern limit of High Level ~ 85 km

* Distance Child Lake to eastern limit of High Level ~ 35 km

* Requires booster pump station somewhere west of Rocky Lane/Child Lake truckfill,
rechlorination station also required at TBD location

 Fort Vermilion WTP rated for 1,900 m3/d. A new plant will be required to service High
Level

9 A presentation by Wood.
69

wood.



Alternate Concept - Raw Waterline to High Level
vs Potable Waterline

 High Level goal is to secure a long term, reliable water supply

- Previous studies have looked at a raw water supply from Peace River at Fort Vermilion
« Advantages of raw water supply versus treated water supply

- Peace River quality much better than High Level’s current source

- With better raw water, High Level can increase capacity of their existing water
treatment plant from 6,000 m3/d to around 8,000 m3/d while also reducing/eliminating
upgrade requirements at Fort Vermilion WTP

- Communities, such as Child Lake, can draw off raw water line and build and operate
their own WTP which would also supply a local truckfill for community use

- Lessen THM and water age concerns, reduce need for rechlorination
- Potentially smaller line required = lower pipeline capital and operating costs
- Agricultural and industrial (such as aggregate producers) do not need potable water

10 A presentation by Wood. WOOdo

70



Alternate Concept — Raw Waterline

* Disadvantages
- Domestic connections along the line would require own treatment systems

- Raw water not as desirable for mixing agricultural sprays, but can be mitigated with
truckfills connected to communal WTPs or combined WTP/Truckfill

* Who operates and maintains?

- Multiple WTPs vs one centralized WTP adds to operations and maintenance complexity
and increases operating cost on a per unit of water basis, but does provide redundancy

- Funding may be more challenging

11 A presentation by Wood. WOOdo

71



Raw Water Supply Line vs Potable Water Line

« Conduct a separate, parallel study and business case development on the concept of a
raw water supply line to High Level, with community draw offs with their own WTPs and

truckfills to service rural demand for potable water

« Confirm raw water demand at High Level and assess probable demands for communities,
agriculture, industry and domestic

 Develop construction cost estimates

12 A presentation by Wood. WOOdo

72



Raw Waterline Conceptual Sizing

 High Level Demand — 75 L/s — to be confirmed by parallel study

 Rocky Lane Truckfill plus domestic demand plus Child Lake - 11 L/s + 3.15 L/s + 3.5 L/s =
17.65 L/s — to be confirmed by parallel study

13 A presentation by Wood. WOOdo

73



Raw Waterline — Routing Data Collection

» Utilize data collected for Rocky Lane and supplement for raw water line extension to High Level,
including:
- Preliminary geotechnical investigation
- Preliminary environmental review
- Feasibility study of water course crossings
- Land acquisition requirements
* Develop
- Construction cost estimates, including community WTPs and truckfills
* Examine
- Funding alternatives
- Governance alternatives

14 A presentation by Wood. WOOdo

74



Raw Water Supply Line — Conceptual Sizing

* Example

- Scenario 1 - Allowance for new consumers — 17.35 L/s, plus High Level, Child Lake, Rocky Lane
Truckfill and domestic - total 110 L/s

- Scenario 1 - Design raw water line for 110 L/s (1,750 usgpm) to Child Lake (~ 50 km) and 75 L/s
Child Lake to High Level (~ 35 km)

- Minimum 18 inch DR11 DIPS HDPE to Child Lake
* Booster pump station, smaller diameter water line for extension to High Level

15 A presentation by Wood. WOOdo

75



WwOoOO.



Agenda ltem # 8. a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Mackenzie County
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: July 14, 2021
Presented By: Len Racher, Chief Administrative Officer
Title: CAO & Director Reports for June, 2021
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

The CAO and Director reports for June 2021 are attached for information.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

N/A

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

N/A

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

N/A

POLICY REFERENCES:

N/A

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by: CAO:

77




RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the CAO & Director reports for June 2021 be received for information.

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by: CAO:

78



MONTHLY REPORT OF THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER
Len Racher, CAO

Daily Activities Log for

Deie

June 1/21 Meet with Josh sign papers

June 2/21 Meetings

June 4/21 Meeting with Lawyer

June 5/21 Saturday meeting with Mediation HL

June 7/21 Interview

June 8/21 Council Meeting

June 10/21  Community Services Meeting

June 11/21  Phone meeting with AHS

June 14/21  Re-Structuring meeting

June 15/21  ASB meeting

June 16/21  Road trip Angle Road

June 22/21  COW meeting

June 23/21  Council Meeting

1|Page

79



MONTHLY REPORT OF THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER
Len Racher, CAO

June 24/21  Re-Structuring meeting

June 25/21  Safety Audit

June 28/21  Regional Water Line Discussion with Wood Engineering

Respectfully,

Len Racher
Chief Administrative Officer

2{Page

80



Monthly Report to the CAO
For the month of June, 2021

From: Byron Peters,

Director of Projects & Infrastructure/Deputy CAO
PLANNING, PROJECTS & INFRASTRUCTURE

Strategic Priorities

Program/Activity/Project

Timeline

Comments

Land Use Framework

TBA

The Access Management Plan (AMP) for
Bistcho is in the early stages. Provided
feedback to AEP for Bistcho Lake sub-
regional plan. Continuing conversations
with AEP regarding some items in the draft
plan.

Community Infrastructure

IMPs complete

First reading of bylaw received in June.

Master Plans & Offsite Levies to be Next stakeholder meeting scheduled for

Levies completed in July 20" at 5 pm. Planning to present to
Q2 2021 council in August for final approval.

Municipal Development Started Q3 Joint project. See Caitlin’s report for project

Plan 2020 update.

Asset Management Ongoing Working on the AM roadmap and strategy

to further break it down into attainable
pieces. Working our way through priorities
and steadily adding more assets and data
into a common database.

Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities

Program/Activity/Project

Timeline

Comments

Economic Development

Have not had the time/resources to focus
on formal ec dev. Relying on REDI at this
time for most overarching items. Received
a data request to help inform a business
case for a new potential business.

101 Ave rebuild & pave

Ground conditions were terrible, but
confident that we’ve got a good road
constructed. Paving complete, some ditch
work remaining.

100 St & 109 Ave
Intersection Improvement

Project is complete.

100 St & 94 Ave Traffic
Light

Were some minor delays for some site
materials, project expected to start early
August.

81




Gravel Crushing Making good progress on the plan for 2021
and 2022. On schedule to issue a tender
for overburden removal later this summer.

Fort Vermilion (Wop May) Expecting to tender the repairs within the
Airport Recovery next month. There will be a long lead time
on some electrical components, so expect
project completion in late 2021.

Personnel Update:

No changes in the department. Supporting John in Utilities and the new hires in various
roles as best | can.

Other Comments:

Most 2021 projects are well underway with construction started or completed. Utilities
projects are a little further behind, but still proceeding well. In many ways it feels early to
be having the conversation, but we're starting to identify key infrastructure items for the
2022 capital plan.

From an infrastructure planning perspective, we have identified a detailed storm water
management plan for La Crete as the next plan to complete, and will be proposing this to
council for consideration in the 2022 budget.

Recent additions to the flood mitigation team have made a huge difference to my
workload and has resulted in more mitigation work get underway. It's exciting to see the
work and progress move along at a faster pace, and I'm happy to continue to do my part
to contribute to the success of the project. Continuing to work with MA/AEMA on the grant
agreement for the flood mitigation project.

Utilities department remains shorthanded, so | continue to lead or assist on the capital
projects. The operations staff have not required any direct support from me, as they all
have a solid understanding of their roles and responsibilities.

82



Monthly Report to the CAO
For the month of June, 2021
From: Caitlin Smith,

Manager of Planning and Development

Strategic Priorities for Planning & Development

Plan, Land Use Bylaw, and
Fort Vermilion Area
Redevelopment Plan

Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments

Land Use Framework TBA Joint project report; see Byron’s report
for project update.

Municipal Development Q3 2021 Administration meets with the

consultant bi-weekly. O2 is actively
updating the Land Use Bylaw and
Municipal Development Plan. A Land
Use Bylaw draft has been sent to
administration for review and
administration has commented. There
will be a draft version made available
online in late July/early August. Public
Consultation will continue closer to the
fall.

Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities

Program/Activity/Project

Timeline

Comments

Airport Planning

Q3 2021

WSP has been engaged to update the
AVPA for LC and FV airports, and to
revise the airport development plans.
Comments had been sent to WSP for
final revision of the AVPA, plan to bring
the final version forward at a Council
meeting when completed. WSP has
sent a revised version for review this
past week. The project was delayed
due to multiple layoffs.

FV airport development plan needs to
be revised to account for the flooding.
LC airport development plan will need
to be revised again as the plan is
outdated and doesn'’t reflect the
proposed changes from Council.

La Crete Area Structure
Plan Revision

Q2 2021

The new future transportation
plan/network for the area west of 100"

83




Street and south of 109" Avenue has
been drafted and is being revised. The
updated version will be advertised and
brought back to Council for approval.

100A Street Land Q3 2021 Administration has revised the plan
Acquirement (Future Main from acquiring 10m to 3m and an
Street Widening in La addition mile North and South as
Crete) directed by Council. This new plan has

been sent to affected landowners and
a stakeholder meeting will take place
on July 8, 2021 to discuss the
changes.

Personnel Update:

The Development Officer position has been filled by an internal applicant. There will
be a gap in the department again as another staff member has been placed on
medical leave. The remaining department staff including myself are covering multiple
roles to keep operations going.

Other Comments:

Development is continuing and there hasn’t been much of a pause to date. Most of
the urban multi-lot subdivisions should be starting construction in the next few weeks
as they are submitting their engineered drawings, signing off development
agreements, and paying their fees. Administration has been actively working with the
developers to get things moving.

The department is supporting the La Crete offsite levy project in conjunction with the
Projects and Infrastructure department.

84



MONTHLY REPORT TO THE CAO
For the Month Ending June, 2021

From: Jennifer Batt
Director of Finance

Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities

Program/Activity/Project | Timeline Comments

2021 Operating & Capital | Ongoing Review Operating Budget to Actual.
Review Capital Budget to Actual.
Distribute reports to CAO & Directors for
reporting.

5 year capital plan requirements brought to
Committee of the Whole meeting for
discussion.

2021 Tax collection and review.

MSI Reporting Ongoing 2020 SFE submitted, awaiting for approval

GAS Tax Ongoing Awaiting approval on 2019, 2020 projects
submitted.
Awaiting approval of 2019 project for SFE
submissions.

Disaster Recovery Ongoing

Program

2018 Peace River Ice Some projects ongoing.

Jam

2019 Chuckegg Wildfire 2 Projects submitted under review.

Administration is still gathering requested
information on road project.

2020 Peace River Ice Work w various GOA agencies on the flood
Jam / Overland Flood recovery plan and funding streams available.

Attend conference call re: DRP applications
and resident information updates.

Attend Disaster Recovery Team meetings.

Meet with community support agencies to

85




2021 Overland Flood

discuss assistance available to residence post
flood.
Attend one on one meetings.

Continue final review of completed projects for
submission to DRP.

DRP Submission completed, and filed with
back up.

Begin submission of Part 2 application, as all
areas have now been identified.

Tax Collection — Lawyer

Ongoing

Tax collection files currently
1 — Working towards agreement with
ratepayer.

Policy Review

Review and recommend amendments to
various Policies.

Attend Various meeting

Regular Council meetings June 8, 23
Committee of the Whole June 22
Managers Meeting June 6
RSSA meetings June 4,5
DRP One on one Meetings —
June 1, 2,3,9,10, 11,14, 17,18, 21, 21, 22
DRP Related — County
June 2
DRP Related — GOA
June 11, 22, 24

86




Monthly Report to the CAO

For the month of June, 2021

From: Jeff SIMPSON, B. Comm, GDM
Director of Operations

Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities

Program/Activity/Project | Timeline | Comments

Administration Ongoing | Capital Projects (Current and Carry
Forward) continue to proceed.

Airport Maintenance Ongoing | Crack filling completed, as per tender.

Campgrounds / Lakes Ongoing | Assisted with the delivery of the new office
for Hutch Lake.

Flood Mitigation Project Ongoing | Management meetings held.

One on One Meetings continuing.

Gravel Program (2021) Ongoing | Re-gravelling program 85% completed for
County.

Road Maintenance Ongoing | Minor pothole repairs completed. Spot
gravelling program completed.

Calcium program completed.
Line painting to commence in July.

DRP Projects relating to 2020 Flood
tendered and awarded.

Spring Preparations / Ongoing | DRP claim being prepared relating to spring
Overland Flooding overland flooding issues.

Project funding acquired in June from
Council. RFP being created for review
relating to culvert repair. Ditch upgrading to
be handled by Ag Dept.

87



Meetings Attended:

Date Description

June 1/21 | Flood Mitigation Meetings — One on Ones

June 2/21 | Flood Mitigation Meetings — One on Ones

June 3/21 | Flood Mitigation Meetings — One on Ones

June 8/21 | Council Meeting

June 9/21 | Flood Mitigation Meetings — One on Ones

June 10/21 | Flood Mitigation Meetings — One on Ones

June 11/21 | Flood Mitigation Meetings — One on Ones

June 14/21 | Joint Health and Safety Committee Training

June 14/21 | Flood Mitigation Meetings — One on Ones

June 15/21 | Flood Mitigation Meetings — One on Ones

June 17/21 | Flood Mitigation Meetings — One on Ones

June 18/21 | Flood Mitigation Meetings — One on Ones

June 18/21 | Planning Meeting — Culvert/Ditch Upgrades w/Ag Dept

June 21/21 | Flood Mitigation Meetings — One on Ones

June 22/21 | HR Planning Meeting

June 22/21 | COW Council Meeting

June 23/21 | Council Meeting

Submitted by:

Jeff SIMPSON, B. Comm, GDM
Director of Operations

88



RepoORT TO CAO
June, 2021

From: Grant Smith, Agricultural Fieldman

Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities

Program/Activity/Project

Timeline

Comments

Roadside Spraying

2021

Roadside Spraying contract was signed with
Outback Ventures on June 2,
Commencement date is June 10™. All roads
south of 106-0 (Airport Road) will be sprayed
in 2021. This includes Buffalo Head, Blue
Hills and Tompkins areas.

Weed Inspection

2021

One Seasonal Weed Inspector has been
hired. Commencement date is May 3.
Duties include Field Inspections, Roadside
Grass Seeding, Beaver Dam removal,
Clubroot Inspections, Shelter belt tree
distribution, Water Pump rentals, etc.

Ag Land Development
Proposals

2021

A land lease agreement was signed with Tom
Braun of High Level on June 8™. Length of
lease is 15 years. Expiry date is 2035.

Emergency Livestock
Response Plan

2021

The Draft has been completed, and will be
forwarded to AEMA for ratification.

Seed Cleaning Plant
Inspections

2021

Seed Cleaning Plants were inspected on
January 7t

Frontier Seed Plant: 93%

Sunrise Mobile Plant: 92%

Both plants are maintained well and run

efficiently. The High Level Plant was not
inspected due to renovations.

Shelterbelt Program

June,
2021

Trees were picked up in Fairview on June 4%,
Approximately 2500 seedlings were received
and distributed to County Ratepayers.

VSI Program

2021

Mackenzie County is still participating in the
program. Council agreed to continue at the
current 50% rate.

Water Pumping Program

2021

The water pumping program commenced on
April 15, To date there are two rentals.

89




Roadside Mowing 2021

Commencement date is July 11%.
Administration will be meeting with
Contractors prior to commencement date to
update on requirements, culvert damage, etc.
All County roads are mowed. All roads south
of the Peace River will receive a single pass
cut, all roads north of the Peace River will
receive a full width cut in 2021.

Spring Ditch Maintenance March,
2021

Major problem areas in County Flood Control
channels and road ditches will opened to
prepare for runoff to avoid flooding and avoid
erosion damage to infrastructure. Areas to be
monitored are Buffalo Head, Blue Hills, La
Crete East, High Level. Local contractors will
utilized.

Capital Projects

Projects Timeline

Comments

Personnel Update:

Other Comments:

90




Agenda ltem # 10.a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Don Roberts, Director of Community Services
Title: Fort Vermilion Street Scape Dock Project
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

In 2018 Council made the following motion

MOTION 18-01-052 MOVED by Councillor Cardinal

Requires 2/3
That the budget be amended to reallocate the remaining
$25,394.00 from the Fort Vermilion Walking Trail budget to the
2018 Fort Vermilion Streetscape project for the construction of
a second dock.

CARRIED

The funds were reallocated to the Fort Vermilion Street Scape budget but it was never
captured what the funds were to be used for.

At the June 10" Community Services Meeting the following motion was made.

MOTION CS-21-06-045 MOVED by Councillor Cardinal
That a recommendation be made to Council to create
separate line item under the Fort Vermilion Street Scape
budget be created to identify $25394 for a second dock in

Fort Vermilion

CARRIED

Author: D. Roberts Reviewed by: CAO:

91



OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Option 1
Develop a new project identifying “The Fort Vermilion Street Scape Second Dock”

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Fort Vermilion Street Scape current budget - $87,035
Budget after reallocating;

Fort Vermilion Street Scape - $61,641
Fort Vermilion Street Scape Second Dock $25,394

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

Strategy C1.2

Undertake a financial and operational review of County recreational facilities and
equipment to:

 ensure adequacy of capital, operating funding and reserves,

« identify opportunities for increased usage, increased revenues and decreased costs,

* ensure optimal use of funds,

- identify other efficiencies that could mitigate the size of the annual grant required from
the County to operate the facilities.

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Nil

POLICY REFERENCES:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the budget be amended with $25,394 from the Fort Vermilion Street Scape project
being allocated to a new project - Fort Vermilion Street Scape Second Dock project.

Author: Reviewed by: CAO:

92



Agenda ltem # 11.a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Mackenzie County
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: July 14, 2021
Presented By: Jennifer Batt, Director of Finance
Title: Financial Reports — January 1 — June 30, 2021
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

The Finance Department provides financial reports to Council as per policy.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Financial Reports to Council

Council shall receive the following reports monthly:
e Statement comparing actual operating revenues and expenditures to budget for
the year-to-date (January — June 30, 2021)
e A report of funds invested in term deposits and other securities
o (January — May 31, 2021)
e Project progress reports including expenditures to budget until June 30, 2021.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

N/A

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

N/A
Author: J. Batt Reviewed by: CAO:

93



POLICY REFERENCES:

Policy FINO10 — Financial Reports

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the financial reports for January to June 30, 2021 be received for information.

Author: J. Batt Reviewed by: CAO:

94



Mackenzie County

Summary of All Units January - June 30,2021

OPERATING REVENUES
100-Municipal Taxes

101-Lodge Requisifion
102-School Requisition
103-Designated Ind. Property
124-Frontage

261-Ice Bridge

420-Sales of goods and services
421-Sale of water - metered
422-Sale of water - bulk
424-Sale of land

510-Penalties on taxes
511-Penalties of AR and utilities
520-Licenses and permits
521-Offsite levy

522-Municipal reserve revenue
526-Safety code permits
525-Subdivision fees

530-Fines

531-Safety code fees
550-Interest revenue
551-Market value changes
560-Rental and lease revenue
570-Insurance proceeds
592-Well drilling revenue
597-Other revenue
598-Community aggregate levy
630-Sale of non-TCA equipment
790-Tradeshow Revenues
830-Federal grants
840-Provincial grants

890-Gain (Loss) Penny Rounding
909-Other Sources -Grants
630-Sale of Asset

930-Contribution from Operating Reserves
940-Contribution from Capital Reserves

TOTAL REVENUE

Excluding Requistions

2021 2021 Actual $ Variance
Budget Total (Remaining)
$23,702,505 $23,682,941 ($19,564)
$896,658 $878,966 ($17,692)
$6,302,401 $6,107,733 ($194,668)
$76,169 $73.,430 ($2.739)
$99.450 $37.,385 ($62,065)
$140,000 $120,000 ($20,000)
$1,036,581 $362,884 ($673,697)
$3,457,395 $1,704,509 ($1,752,886)
$915,229 $574,722 ($340,507)
$10,000 $1,575 ($8.425)
$500,000 $308,335 ($191,665)
$29,000 $11,724 ($17,276)
$45,000 $43,133 ($1.867)
$20,000 $273,349 $253,349
$80,000 $169,723 $89,723
$200,000 $162,925 ($37.,075)
$60,000 $58,765 ($1,235)
$5,000 $5,215 $215
$8,000 $6,375 ($1.625)
$500,000 $30,933 ($469,067)
$0
$153,702 $56,727 ($96,975)
$0
$0
$65,000 $24,113 ($40,887)
$50,000 ($50,000)
$24,971 $24,971
$0
$0
$1,757,095 $168,414 ($1,588,681)
$0 $0
$15,000 ($15,000)
$24,971 $24,971
$1,205,072 ($1,205,072)
$4,500 ($4.500)
41,333,757 34,913,819 6,419,938
$34,058,529 $27,853,689 $6,204,840

95



Mackenzie County

Summary of All Units January - June 30,2021

OPERATING EXPENSES
110-Wages and salaries

132-Benefits

136-WCB confributions
142-Recruiting

150-Isolation cost

151-Honoraria

211-Travel and subsistence
212-Promotional expense
214-Memberships & conference fees
215-Freight

216-Postage

217-Telephone

221-Advertising

223-Subscriptions and publications
231-Audit fee

232-Legal fee

233-Engineering consulting
235-Professional fee

236-Enhanced policing fee
239-Training and education
242-Computer programming
243-Waste Management
251-Repair & maintenance - bridges
252-Repair & maintenance - buildings
253-Repair & maintenance - equipment
255-Repair & maintenance - vehicles
258-Contract graders

25%9-Repair & maintenance - structural
260-Roadside Mowing & Spraying
261-Ice bridge construction
262-Rental - building and land
263-Rental - vehicle and equipment
266-Communications

271-Licenses and permits
272-Damage claims

274-Insurance

342-Assessor fees

290-Election cost

511-Goods and supplies

515-Lab Testing

521-Fuel and ol

531-Chemicals and salt

532-Dust control

533-Grader blades

534-Gravel (apply; supply and apply)
994-Change in Inventory
543-Natural gas

544-Electrical power

550-Carbon Tax

710-Grants to local governments
735-Grants to other organizations
747-School requisition

750-Lodge requisition
760-Designated Ind. Property
764-Contributed to Capital Reserve
810-Interest and service charges
831-Interest - long term debt
832-Principle - Long term debt
921-Bad Debt/922-Write off
Non-TCA projects

TOTAL EXPENSE
Excluding Requistions

995-Amortization of TCA

2021 2021 Actual $ Variance

Budget Total (Remaining)
$6,526,443 $2,501,327 ($4,025,116)
$1,410,406 $623,156 ($787,250)
$89.478 ($2,287) ($91.765)
$15,000 $8,530 ($6,470)
$43,200 $20,049 ($23,151)
$630,360 $228,323 ($402,037)
$390,314 $71,364 ($318,950)
$39.500 ($39.500)
$129,212 $22,371 ($106,841)
$99.850 $32,372 ($67.478)
$69,550 $29,067 ($40,483)
$124,920 $50,478 ($74,442)
$76,900 $7.196 ($69.704)
$15,250 $5,515 ($9.735)
$90,000 $123,000 $33,000
$80,000 $72,082 ($7.918)
$194,500 $53,612 ($140,888)
$348,200 $141,075 ($207,125)
$398,236 $277,512 ($120,724)
$95,185 $15,949 ($79.236)
$220,137 $26,557 ($193.,580)
$554,800 $178,732 ($376,068)
$44,500 $53 ($44,447)
$168,140 $48,709 ($119.431)
$361,450 $99.075 ($262,375)
$91,000 $20,395 ($70.,605)
$1,081,554 $292,344 ($789.210)
$1,301,200 $317,766 ($983.434)
$396,000 ($396,000)
$120,000 $111,224 ($8.776)
$65,850 $47,169 ($18.681)
$139,734 $14,895 ($124,839)
$155,272 $91,582 ($63.690)
$25,545 $2,691 ($22,854)
$5,000 ($5,000)
$462,735 $447,909 ($14,826)
$279,000 $49,414 ($229,586)
$15,000 ($15,000)
$937,534 $405,206 ($532,328)
$43,500 $13,242 ($30.,258)
$647,680 $331,847 ($315.833)
$424,800 $159,876 ($264,924)
$575,000 $84,698 ($490,302)
$143,000 $32,165 ($110.8395)
$2,097,000 $928,274 ($1,168,726)
($385.333) $385,333
$122,247 $83,438 ($38.809)
$717,093 $359.316 ($357.777)
$72,000 $51,897 ($20,103)
$2,227,017 $625,000 ($1,602,017)
$2,302,092 $1,014,143 ($1,287,949)
$6,302,401 $3.254,905 ($3,047,496)
$896,658 ($896.658)
$76,169 ($76,169)
$2,578,424 ($2,578,424)
$21,000 $9.894 ($11,106)
$389,989 $37.,941 ($352,048)
$1.361,746 $336,002 ($1,025,744)
$1,500,000 $77.,301 ($1,422,699)
$1,930,320 $1,573,148 ($357,172)
$41,333,758 _ $15,407,501 ($25,926,257)
$34,058,530 $12,152,596 $21,983,735
$10,144,271 $10,144,271

07/07/21



Investment Report for Period Ending May 31, 2021

Reconciled Bank Balance on May 31, 2021
Reconciled Bank Balance [ 31-May-21 |

Investment Values on May 31, 2021
Short term T-Bill (1044265-26) $
Long term investments (EM0-0374-A) $
Short term notice on amount 31 days $
Short term notice on amount 60 days $
Short term notice on amount 90 days $
Vision Credit Union - 2 year $

Total Investments

Total Bank Balance and Investments

250,588.25
9,087,129.87
1,122,284.99
1,977,207.20

26,041.38
2,148,142.08

$ 10,765,360

$ 14,611,393.77

$ 25,376,754.05

Revenues

These balances include
'market value changes'.

Total Short Term Long Term
YTD YTD YTD
Interest received from investments $ 42,585.95 | $ 466966 | $ 37,916.29
Interest accrued from investments but not received. $ 108,885.95 $ 108,885.95
$ 151,471.90 | $ 4,669.66 | $§ 146,802.24
Interest received, chequing account $ 40,877.20 $ 40,877.20
Total interest revenues before investment manager fees $ 19234910 | $ 45546.86 | $ 146,802.24 |
Deduct: investment manager fees for investments $ (11,866.14) $ (11,866.14)
Total interest revenues after investment manager fees $ 180,482.96 $ 45546.86 $ 134,936.10 |
Balances in the Various Accounts - Last 13 Months
45,000,000
40,000,000
35,000,000
30,000,000
. M long Term
25,000,000
m T-Bills
20,000,000 m Short Term
15,000,000 M Chequing
10,000,000
5,000,000
0
May-20  Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20  Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20  Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21  Mar-21  Apr-21  May-21

97




MACKENZIE COUNTY
TCA Projects 2021 INCLUDING CARRY FORWARDS

January - June 30, 2021

External Funding Internal Funding
2021
Project Description TOT:‘b;é%J ECT | 2021 BUDGET ég;‘; 2021 COSTS | REMAINING o Restricted
BUDGET FGTF Grant MSI Grant Other Grant Gy Seiees Mncipel RS-type Surp.lus Debenture
(non-grant) levy (previous
vears)
(12) - Administration Department
[LC - 100 Street Plan 65,000 65,000 - - 65,000 GCR 65,000
| FV - Flood Mitagation for Land Development 2,387,290 1,178,394 1,934,791 725,895 452,499 568,470 GCR/GOR 609,924
Office Shower (2021) 8,700 8,700 - - 8,700 GCR 8,700
Total department 12 2,460,990 1,252,094 1,934,791 725,895 526,199 568,470 - - - - - 683,624 -
(23) - Fire Department
FV - Training Facility (CF 2017) 20,000 11,350 8,650 - 11,350 10,000 GCR 1,350
Total department 23 20,000 11,350 8,650 - 11,350 - - - 10,000 - - 1,350 -
(32) - Transportation Department
FV - Rebuild Eagles Nest Road (2 miles) (2018) 800,000 784,164 15,836 = 784,164 600,290 183,874
Gravel Reserve (CF 2014) 150,000 92,357 58,460 817 91,540 RDR 92,357
11 mile Culvert Replacement 150,000 150,000 = = 150,000 150,000
FV - Rebuild Lambert Point Road (1 1/4 miles) 318,698 50,000 268,698 - 50,000 50,000
Rebuild Blumenort Road East 440,000 385,610 54,390 E 385,610 385,610
Rebuild Machesis Lake Road 440,000 437,876 2,124 E 437,876 437,876
LC - 9 Street Lights - 94 Ave 106 St to Pioneer Drive (See Note 1) 75,000 75,000 - - 75,000 75,000
FSO1 Mill Razor 405,000 405,000 174,135 174,135 230,865 405,000
ORO1 New Road Infrastructure Endeavour to Assist 950,000 468,796 535,365 54,161 414,635 GCR 468,796
LC Crosswalk 94 Ave 103 St 12,000 2,647 9,558 E 2,647 GCR 2,647
LC - Intersection upgrade of 100 St & 109 Ave (2021) 255,000 255,000 9.041 9.041 245,959 255,000
LC - Intersection upgrade Traffic Lights 100 St & 94 Ave (2021) 290,000 290,000 23,548 23,548 266,453 290,000
LC - 101 Ave Asphalt (300 m) (2021) 625,000 625,000 8,208 8,208 616,792 625,000
30 m Right of way for road widening - various locations (2021) 646,000 646,000 - - 646,000 RDR/GCR 646,000
Rebuild TWP Rd 1044 (1 mile)  (2021) 300,000 300,000 - - 300,000 300,000
Road Repair & Culvert TWP Rd 1042 Rge Rd 144-145 (2021) 60,000 60,000 - - 60,000 RDR 60,000
Rebuild 6 mile N road (2 miles) (2021) 440,000 440,000 - - 440,000 440,000
Plow Truck  (2021) 325,000 325,000 - - 325,000 325,000
Ground Penetrating Radar Unit (2021) 36,000 36,000 - - 36,000 GCR 36,000
LC - Assorted Road and Sidewalk Repairs (2021) 110,000 110,000 - - 110,000 110,000
LC - Washout & Culvert Upgrades (2021) 500,000 500,000 - - 500,000 500,000
Total department 32 7,327,698 6,438,448 1,159,159 269,910 6,168,539 600,290 4,532,360 - - - 1,305,800 -
(41) - Water Treatment & Distribution Department
LC - Well Number 4 (CF 2016) 1,348,966 1,175,000 244,827 70861 1,104,139 689,137 GCR 485,863
ZA - Water Treatment Plant Upgrading (CF 2017) 933,569 781,944 156,874 5249 776,695 609,457 RWTR 172,487
FV - Frozen Water Services Repairs (River Road) (CF 2015) 280,700 20,443 260,257 = 20,443 RWIR 20,443
LC - Waterline Bluehills (CF 2015) 833,250 690,722 142,528 - 690,722 690,722
FV - Rural Water Supply North of the Peace River (2018) 420,000 174,854 245,147 = 174,854 GOR 174,854
Water line to Hill Crest Community School (2020) 487,720 13,940 474,783 1,003 12,937 13,940
FV - Rural Truck Fill Pump Install ~ (2021) 314,500 314,500 7,270 7,270 307,230 314,500
LC - Water Treatment Plant Tower Replacement  (2021) 100,000 100,000 - - 100,000 GCR 100,000
LC - North Storm-Pond A (2021) 50,000 50,000 - - 50,000 WTRSWR 50,000 -
LC-North Waterline Oversizing (2021) 200,000 200,000 - - 200,000 WSIR 200,000
LC-North Sanitary Trunk Sewer (2021) 235,000 235,000 - - 235,000 GOR 235,000
Total department 41 5,203,705 3,756,401 1,531,686 84,382 3,672,019 13,940 1,005,222 1,298,594 - - - 1,438,647 -
(42) - Sewer Disposal Department
[ ZA - Lift Station Upgrade (CF 2013-2017) 1,972,037 1,698,066 273,971 = 1,698,066 1,040,707 WTRSWR/SWMR 657,359
| LC - Sanitary Sewer Expansion (CF 2016) 161,000 13,390 160,610 13,000 3%90 GCR 13,390
Total department 42 2,133,037 1,711,456 434,581 13,000 1,698,456 - - 1,040,707 - - - 670,749 -
06-30-2021 jb

98



MACKENZIE COUNTY

ONE TIME Projects 2021 INCLUDING CARRY FORWARDS

January - June 30, 2021

External Fundin Internal Fundin:
TOTAL 2021 TOTAL 2021 Restricted
Project Description PROJECT 2021 COSTS | REMAINING Other Sources | Municipal Surplus y
BUDGET BUDGET COSsTS BUDGET FGTF Grant MsI Grant | Other Grant (FERETE) 237 (rerias RS-type Debenture
years)
(12) - Administration Department
Cumulative Effects Assessment Study (CF 2017) 270,000 9,363 269,554 8917 446 9,363 GOR
FV - Asset Management (2018) 45,000 9,500 35,500 - 9.500 - 9,500 GOR
Mackenzie County 25 Year Anniversary 2,525 2,525 - - 2,525 2,525 GOR
Emergency Flood Response Supplies  (2021) 80,000 80,000 75,583 75,583 4417 80,000 GOR
MOST Project - COVID 19 Asst 1,271,952 1,145035 1,272,035 1,145,118 -83 - 1,145,035
Total department 12| 1,669,477 | 1,246,423 | 1,652,672 | 1,229,618 | 16,805 | - | 17145035 - - - | 101,388 ] - -
(23) - Fire Department
FV - Fire Dept Training Props (2018) 30,000 30,000 2,410 2,410 27,590 15,000 - 15,000 GOR
Total department 23 | 30,000 | 30,000 | 2,410 | 2,410 27,590 | - - - 15,000 | - 15,000 | - -
(32) - Public Works
FV - Repair Shop Operations Fence 6,600 6,600 - - 6,600 6,600 GOR
Total department 32 | 6,600 | 6,600 | - - 6,600 | - - - - - | 6,600 | - -
(33) - Airport
Airport Master Plan (CF 2016) 75,000 30,270 44,730 2,735 27,535 30,270 GOR
Airport Operations/Safety Manuals 30,000 30,000 - - 30,000 30,000 GOR
FV Airport - Lighting Upgrade (2021) 100,000 100,000 - - 100,000 100,000 GOR
Total department 33| 105,000 | 160,270 | 44,730 | 2,735 157,535 | - - - - - | 160270 ] - -
(41) - Water
LC -La Crete Future Water Supply Concept (2018) 200,000 190,910 9,090 - 190,910 190,910 GOR
Water Diversion License Review 35,000 11,121 23,879 = 11,121 11,121 GOR
Total department 41 235,000 202,031 | 32,969 [ - 202,031 | - - - - - [ 202031 -
(42) - Sewer
LC - Future Utility Servicing Plan (2018) 102,000 32,413 86,587 17,000 15413 32,413 GOR
Total department 42 102,000 | 32,413 | 86,587 | 17,000 | 15413 | - - - - - 32,413 | - -
(61) - Planning & Development Department
Economic Development Investment Affraction Marketing
114,000 24,500 114,000 24,500 0 12,250 12,250 GOR
Packages
Municipal Development Plan 305,000 273,448 124,298 92,746 180,702 273,448 GOR
Total department 61| 419,000 | 297,948 | 238,298 | 117,246 | 180,702 | - - | 12,250 | - - | 285698 - -
(63) - Agricultural Services Department
Imigation District Feasibility Study 30,000 30,000 - - 30,000 30,000 GOR
Total 63 30,000 | 30,000 | - - 30,000 | - - - - - [ 30,000 -
(72) - Parks
LC Walking Trail 6,000 6,000 - - 6,000 6,000 GOR
La Crete Walking Trail LOC 2,400 2,400 - - 2,400 2,400 GOR
Wadlin lake Phase 2 Campground Expansion 3,000 3,000 J _ 3,000 3,000 GOR
Development Plan
LC - Tree Removal 99 Ave 6,000 6,000 - - 6,000 6,000 GOR
Machesis Lake Glamping (2021) 4,500 4,500 2,447 2,447 2,053 4,500 RP
Total department 72 | 21,900 | 21,900 | 2,447 | 2,447 | 19,453 | - | - | - | - | - 21,900 | - -
TOTAL 2021 ONE TIME Projects [ 2,618,977 2,027,584 2,060,113 | 1,371,455 | 656,130 | - 1,145,035 | 12,250 | 15,000 | - | 855300 ] - -
2021 Contingent on Grant Fundin,
FV - Assef Management 125,000 50.000 75,000 GOR
Bridge Maintenance (7 bridges) 250,000 250,000
2021 Contingent on Grant Funding- Total 375,000 - - - - - - 300,000 - - 75,000 -
Funding Sources for the 2021 Approved Non TCA projects is as follows:
FGTF / MSI $ 1,145,035
Other Grants/Sources S 27,250
General Operating Reserve S 850,800
PR S 4,500
Total § 2,027,585

99




MACKENZIE COUNTY

TCA Projects 2021 INCLUDING CARRY FORWARDS

January - June 30, 2021

External Funding Internal Funding
2021
Project Description To'sl';;é%’ic' 2021 BUDGET| TOTAL COSTS| 2021 COSTS | REMAINING Restricted Notes
BUDGET FGTF Grant MsI Grant Other Grant (S S gl RS-type Surp!us Debenture
(non-grant) levy (previous
years)
Contingent on Grant Funding
[ZC - Access Pave (PH V) (CF 2014) 6,000,000] 6,000,000] | g 6,000,000] I [ 3,000,000 | [ I [ 3,000,000 |
[ZA=~Sewage Forcemain (2018) 1,085,000]  1,085,000] | [ 1.085,000] [ [ 1,085,000 | [ [ [ - |
Canry Forward Contingent on Grant Funding- Total 7,085,000 7,085,000 - - 7,085,000 - - 4,085,000 - - 3,000,000
2021 Contingent on Grant Funding
FV - New Hockey Boards and Glass with Protective Netting 199,500 99.750 GCR 99,750 Contingent on Grant Funding 50/50
FV - Fitness Centre Expansion 99,000 49,500 GCR 49,500 Contingent on Grant Funding 50/50
FV - Baseball Netting 75,000 37.500 GCR 37,500 Contingent on Grant Funding 50/50
LC - Wheel Chair Lift 50,000 25,000 GCR 25,000 Contingent on Grant Funding 50/50
LC - North Storm-Pond A (2021) 1,100,000 - - - - 1,100,000 | Contingent on Off Site Levy & Borrowing Bylaw
Passing
2021 Contingent on Grant Funding- Total 1,523,500] ] T | | - | B 211,750] - 211,750] 1,100.000]
Total of Contingent Funding 8,608,500 | 7,085,000 | -] - | 7085000] - - | 4085000 ] 211,750 | - - 211,750 | 4,100,000 |
Funding Sources for the 2021 Approved Capital projects is as follows:
Administration o seek grant funding for below projects pior to proceeding FGTF & MSI S 6,887,790
Note 1-LC - 9 Street Lights - 94 Ave 106 St to Pioneer Drive Note 1 Other Grants/Sources $ 2,500,854
MUNICIPAL LEVY s -
Note 2 - FV - Rebuild Butter town Road General Operating Reserve $ 943,449
General Capital Reserve $ 1,912,257
Municipal Reserve $ 107,265
Road Reserve $ 352,357
Vehicle & Equipment Reserve
Rural Water Reserve $ 192,930
Waste/Sewer Infrastructure Reserve § 321,753
Surface Water Management
Reserve s 631,850
Incomp. Cap - Develop. Reserve  $ 12,035
Incomp. Cap - Recreation $ 933
Recreation Board Fort Vermilion ~ $ 19,033
Recreation Board La Crete $ -
Grants to Other Organizations S 26,187
Debenture S -
TOTAL 13,908,693

100

06-30-2021 jb



Agenda ltem # 12.a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Willie Schmidt, Manager of Fleet Services
Title: Vehicle Disposal

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Administration is seeking direction as to the disposal Unit 1051 a 2014 Ford Interceptor
(Explore) this vehicle was used as the Peace Officers Vehicle. All peace officer
components (lights, radio, etc) have been removed from the vehicle. The vehicle
currently has 235,000 km on it. Similar vehicles have been sold at auction in southern
Alberta for an average of $3050, however administration feels that this vehicle will sell
for more at a local consignment auction.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Option 1:
Dispose of units at local public auction in July 2021.

Benefit:
Funds for selling units will go into equipment & vehicle reserve.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by: CAO:

101



POLICY REFERENCES:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That Unit 1051 be sent to La Crete Auction Mart for the July 24, 2021 consignment sale.

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by: CAO:

102



Agenda ltem # 13.a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Byron Peters, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Title: Storm Pond “A” for the hamlet of La Crete
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

The La Crete North Storm Design Report was developed by Helix Engineering Inc.
with the report approved by Council at the November 25" Regular Council meeting.

Pond “A” of the conceptual drainage plan is approximately 2.9ha in size and is
designed to service the benefitting areas (Refer to Schedule 1) on both the north and
south side of 109" Avenue. The construction of Pond “A” and the ditch south of 109
Avenue is needed now. The drainage improvements needed are due to the existing
drainage problems within the proposed servicing area, the current development
activities which have magnified the drainage problems, and anticipated future growth.

In addition to Pond “A”, the proposed drainage ditch to be built on the south side of
109" Avenue, which connects to the proposed storm pond, forms an integral part of the
overall storm water management design. A 10 - meter right of way will be required to
accommodate the room required in construction of the drainage ditch.

The estimated construction costs for the project as described within the La Crete
North Storm — Design Report dated November 2020 and adopted by Council are.

e Pond A $654,700
o Offsite $369,000
e Total $1,023,700

On May 26, 2021 Council made the following motions in regards to Storm Pond A.

MOTION 21-05-455 MOVED by Councillor Braun

Author: S Gibson Reviewed by: B Peters CAO:

103



That third reading be given to Bylaw 1222-21 Off-Site Levy
Bylaw — La Crete North Storm Water Management.

CARRIED

FINANCE: 10. a) Bylaw Borrowing 1218-21-Stormpond A Hamlet of La
Crete

MOTION 21-05-457 MOVED by Councillor Braun
That second reading be given to Bylaw 1218-21 being the
borrowing bylaw for the North Storm Pond “A” — Hamlet of La
Crete Project.
CARRIED

MOTION 21-05-458 MOVED by Councillor Bateman
That consideration be given to go into third reading be given to

Bylaw 1218-21 being the borrowing bylaw for the North Storm
Pond “A” — Hamlet of La Crete Project.

CARRIED
MOTION 21-05-459 MOVED by Councillor Braun
That third reading be given to Bylaw 1218-21 being the
borrowing bylaw for the North Storm Pond “A” — Hamlet of La
Crete Project.
CARRIED
Based on the prior motions of council, detailed design is well underway and tendering will
be completed this summer, with construction anticipated this fall. Administration requires

a council motion to formally add the project to the current budget.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

Author: S Gibson Reviewed by: B Peters CAO:

104



COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

POLICY REFERENCES:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

[0 Simple Majority M Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the 2021 budget be amended to include North Storm Pond “A” project with
$1,100,000.00 with funding coming from debenture borrowing.

Author: S Gibson Reviewed by: B Peters CAO:

105



106



Agenda ltem # 14.a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: July 14, 2021
Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning and Development

Bylaw 1232-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Rezone Plan
2938RS, Block 2, Lots 2-7 & 9 and Plan 2938RS, Block 3, Lot

Title: 11 from Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” to Fort Vermilion
Commercial Centre “FV-CC”
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Mackenzie County recently purchased a number of lots with the Hamlet of Fort
Vermilion for the purpose of relocating buildings and residences affected by the 2020
Ice Jam Flood. Plan 2938, Block 2, Lots 2-7 & 9 and Plan 2938RS, Block 3, Lot 11 were
identified for business relocation as a number of commercial lots already exist nearby.

The lots are currently zoned Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” which is not appropriate for
the proposed commercial use. The commercial area affected by the 2020 Ice Jam Flood
was also zoned Fort Vermilion Commercial Centre “FV-CC”.

Only Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots 5 & 6 have been spoken for at this time, the proposed

development on these lots is Retail — Convenience. A lot consolidation Bylaw is also
being presented to Council for first reading.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Options are to pass, defeat, or table first reading on the bylaw.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Current costs will consist of advertising the public hearing and adjacent landowner
letters which will be borne by the flood mitigation budget.

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

107



Goal E26 That Mackenzie County is prepared with infrastructure and services for a
continually growing population.

COMMUNICATION/PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

The bylaw amendment will be advertised as per MGA requirements, this includes all
adjacent landowners. A rezoning notification sign will also be required to be displayed
on the property as per Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw regulation.

POLICY REFERENCES:

Not applicable at this time.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Maijority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That first reading be given to Bylaw 1232-21 being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment to
rezone Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots 2-7 & 9 and Plan 2938RS, Block 3, Lot 11 from
Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” to Fort Vermilion Commercial Centre “FV-CC” to
accommodate commercial development, subject to public hearing input.

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

108



BYLAW NO. 1232-21

BEING A BYLAW OF
MACKENZIE COUNTY
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

TO AMEND THE
MACKENZIE COUNTY LAND USE BYLAW

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has a Municipal Development Plan adopted in 2009, and

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County has adopted the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw in
2017, and

WHEREAS, the Council of Mackenzie County, in the Province of Alberta, has deemed it
desirable to amend the Mackenzie County Land Use Bylaw to accommodate commercial
development.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE MACKENZIE COUNTY, IN THE PROVINCE
OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. That the land use designation of the subject parcels known as:

Plan 2938RS
Block 2
Lots 2 through 7 (inclusive) & Lot 9

&

Plan 2938RS
Block 3
Lot 11

Within the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion, be rezoned from Hamlet Residential 1 “H-
R1” to Fort Vermilion Commercial Centre “FV-CC” as outlined in Schedule “A”
hereto attached.

READ a first time this day of , 2021.
PUBLIC HEARING held this day of , 2021
READ a second time this day of , 2021.

READ a third time and finally passed this day of , 2021.

109



Josh Knelsen
Reeve

Len Racher
Chief Administrative Officer

110



BYLAW No. 1232-21
SCHEDULE “A”
1. That the land use designation of the following properties known as:

Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots 2 through 7 (inclusive) & Lot 9, & Plan 2938RS, Block 3,
Lot 11 within the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion be rezoned:

2
s 18
& g
=2 10
'15‘5?“’GJ
S 30.48 /¥ 194, 2
49 AVE
39.62 10.67
gl K
1 § 9
2| E
45.72 - B
16 44.50
S
o
<]
o 39.62 44.50
N
«©
o S — lé’ 2
5 3 1 8| |e B s 3
39.62 44.50
S
g
= 2
3 9,' 3 8
Q N
5 n
45.72 ¥ 10 ¥ 44.50
@
o
. Y
45,72
39.62 2 2
3 2 8
& L ® 44.50
6 8 § 5 3
4572 39.62
FROM: Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1”
TO: Fort Vermilion Commercial Centre “FV-CC”

111



Mackenzie County MOCkenZ|e COU ntg Date Created: 7/6/2021

112




Peace River

Peace River

opVermilion

Lo UJ

47 AVE

Subject Properties

48 ST

52 AVE

50 AVE

|52 ST \

44

AVE

46 A

45 AV

46 ST

Mackenzie County

Mackenzie County

113

Date Created: 7/6/2021


nicole.friesen
Text Box
Subject Properties

nicole.friesen
Line


114



Agenda ltem # 14.b)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development

Title: Bylaw 1233-21 Partial Plan Cancellation and Consolidation of

Plan 2983RS, Block 2, Lots 5 & 6

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

Mackenzie County has received a request to consolidate Plan 2983RS, Block 5, Lots 5
& 6 in the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion, to accommodate a larger commercial building.

The lots are currently zoned Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” which will need to be changes
to Fort Vermilion Commercial Centre “FV-CC” to accommodate the proposed use. A
Bylaw to rezone the subject lots is also being presented to Council this meeting for first
reading.

Mackenzie County recently purchased the subjects lots to allow businesses affected by

the 2020 Ice Jam flood to relocate away from the flood zone. This will be the second
business relocating to this area and requiring a larger lot.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Options are to pass, defeat, or table first reading of the bylaw.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Current costs will consist of advertising the public hearing and adjacent landowner
letters, which will be borne by the flood mitigation budget.

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

Goal E26 That Mackenzie County is prepared with infrastructure and services for
continually growing population.

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

115



COMMUNICATION/PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

The bylaw amendment will be advertised as per MGA requirements, this includes all
adjacent landowners.

POLICY REFERENCES:

Not applicable at this time.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous
That first reading be given to Bylaw 1233-21 being a Partial Plan Cancellation and

Consolidation Bylaw for Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots 5 & 6, subject to public hearing
input.

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

116



BYLAW NO. 1233-21

BEING A BYLAW OF
MACKENZIE COUNTY
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

FOR THE PURPOSE OF A PLAN CANCELLATION AND CONSOLIDATION
IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SECTION 658 OF THE MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT ACT,
CHAPTER M-26, REVISED STATUTES OF ALBERTA 2000

WHEREAS, notice of intention of the Council to pass a bylaw will be published in a locally
circulated newspaper in accordance with the Municipal Government Act, and

WHEREAS, Council of Mackenzie County has determined that a portion of a subdivision,
as outlined in Schedule “A” hereto attached, be subject to cancellation, and

WHEREAS, Mackenzie County, being the registered owner of Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots
5 and 6, have requested that the lands be consolidated; and

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF MACKENZIE COUNTY, IN THE PROVINCE OF
ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. That Subdivision Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots 5 and 6 as outlined in Schedule “A”
hereto attached, are hereby cancelled in full and shall be consolidated as Lot 25.

READ a first time this _ day of , 2021.

PUBLIC HEARING held this__ day of , 2021.

READ a second time this __ day of , 2021.

READ a third time and finally passed this _ day of , 2021.

Josh Knelsen
Reeve

Len Racher
Chief Administrative Officer

117



Mackenzie County Bylaw 1233-21 Page 2 of 2
Plan Cancellation & Consolidation

BYLAW No. 1233-21

SCHEDULE “A”
™
©
" o
-
v
= 4610
<
<
© o
2 5
6
S
< =
- i
44.50
o
= [e0]
S 2 5 S
8 ™
44.50
o o]
o o0} <
o i 4 =]
™ 8 o

118




Mackenzie County Date Created: 7/6/2021




Peace River

Peace River

Subject Properties
|_
wn
[6)]
~
N
D
i
E#f1 Vermilion 47 AVE
|_
[¢}]
[o0]
<
46 AVE

Mackenzie County

Mackenzie County

120

Date Created: 7/6/2021


nicole.friesen
Text Box
Subject Properties

nicole.friesen
Line


Agenda ltem #14.c)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning and Development
Title: Rural Development Standards DEV007
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Administration is in the process of reviewing several policies to remove outdated
information and update as required.

The Rural Development Standards DEVO0O7 has been revised with the following
proposed changes:

e Definitions for Local Improvement Bylaw, Off-site Levy, and Policy PW039 were
added;

e A statement that overhead power only be considered in Country Residential
areas if underground power is not viable, was added;

e Natural Gas installation requirements were clarified as they are often dependent
on the utility provider;

e Requirement for private roads were updated to be in compliance with accepted
engineering standards.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Option 1: To approve the revisions to the Rural Development Standards Policy DEV007
as presented.

Option 2: Table Rural Development Standards DEV0O07 for more information or
additions.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A
Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

121



SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

N/A

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

N/A

POLICY REFERENCES:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the Rural Development Standards Policy DEV0O07 be amended as presented.

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

122



Mackenzie County

Title Rural Development Standards Policy No: | DEV007
Legislation Municipal Government Act, Part 17, Division 6/7 Section-5
Reference

Purpose

The purpose of the Rural Development Standards Policy is to establish rural
development standards to ensure consistent development is maintained within
the rural areas of the County and to provide clarity to developers respecting the
County’s expectations for rural development.

Policy Statement:

Mackenzie County and developers have a shared responsibility for defining and
addressing the existing and future needs of the region by creating development
policies consistent with Mackenzie County plans, policies, and bylaws community
objectives. Mackenzie County will provide guidance and vision for development
objectives. These policies should be applied equitably and fairly to all within rural

areas that community.

All beneficiaries of new development should participate in the cost of providing
and installing infrastructure in the-cemmunity rural areas on an equitable basis
that relates to the degree of benefit, through the use of off-site levies, local
improvement bylaws and Endeavor to Assist clauses.

Definitions:
The following definitions are used for the purpose of this policy:

Country Residential — means Rural Country Residential, inclusive of all country
residential zoning designations;

County — means Mackenzie County;

Rurallnd ial: Ref I Lindustrial and Lol in districts.
Development Agreement — means a contract entered into between the
municipality and the developer respecting in—regard—to—the installation of

municipal improvements and adherence to—including all conditions of approval
e

123




Policy DEV007 Page 2
Rural Development Standards
Mackenzie County

GMIS - means refers—to the General Municipal Improvement Standards
(engineering guidelines) for the Mackenzie County;

Local Improvement Bylaw - means Local improvements are capital
construction (municipal improvement) projects that Council considers to be of
greater benefit to a particular neighbourhood of the municipality than to the
whole municipality, and that are to be paid for in whole or in part by a tax
imposed as a local improvement;

Off-site Levy — means the charges payable to the County by the developer for
the use and benefits received from the existing or proposed municipal
improvements as stated As-defined in the Alberta Municipal Government Act;

Policy PW039 — means to the County’s Rural Road, Access Construction and
Surface Water Management Policy;

Rural Industrial — means all rural industrial and/or commercial zoning districts;
Zoning — means land use district designations as per the Land Use Bylaw.
Guidelines:

1. Mackenzie County will:

a) adopt development standard requirements for individual zoning districts
and locations as indicated in this policy and detailed within the General
Municipal Improvement Standards (GMIS),

b) determine who is responsible for installation of the infrastructure as
indicated in this policy,

c) determine who is responsible for the cost of installing the infrastructure as
indicated in this policy, and

d) establish the mechanism of any cost sharing, Endeavor to Assist, or other
financial considerations.

2. The developer will be responsible for all costs except where otherwise
indicated in this policy.

Funding:

124



Policy DEV007 Page 3
Rural Development Standards
Mackenzie County

Funding for municipal infrastructure improvements required to support an
approved Development will be provided by the developer. The County, through
Endeavour to Assist provisions within the Development Agreement, may will
provide assistance to the developer when oversizing is required to collect
appropriate funds from benefiting lands when the benefiting lands are further
developed.

When the County constructs municipal improvements in advance of
developments the County will, through the—use—of an Off-site Levy bylaw(s)
collect apportioned costs as assigned to benefiting lands.

Where a development requires that an arterial road be constructed, the County
shall only consider covering the costs of upgrading the road from a collector to an
arterial standard, and shall, whenever possible, utilize the mechanisms provided
for by Off-site Levy or local improvement bylaw(s) to recover those costs.

All oversizing requirements shall be clearly identified by the developer on the
tentative subdivision plan along with a written request for cost sharing, prior to
final approval by the subdivision authority.

The County may consider providing a portion of the funding when oversizing, Off-
site Levy, Endeavour to Assist, or other mechanisms are required, however this
will be subject to negotlatlon and Councn approval pnor to the commencement of
construction. -

et ol

Any cost sharing or other funding commitment by the County must be included in
the Development Agreement and form part of the contractual commitment of
each party. The County will not retroactively consider requests from a developer
for funding or cost sharing where a Development Agreement has already been
entered into for the project.

Rural Development Standards

Utilities

Utilities such as high-pressure gas lines, three phase power and other major
utilities eroessings-shall cross County roads perpendicularly to-the-read wherever
practicable. All utility providers high-pressure—gas-lines—three-phasepowerand

other—major—utility—erossings—must obtain applicable crossing permits receive
approval from the County prior to crossing any County road or other property or

infrastructure. For routine installations of common utility infrastructure to serve
individual lots or properties, notification shall be provided to the County prior to
crossing any County road or other property or infrastructure.

125



Policy DEV00Q7 Page 4
Rural Development Standards
Mackenzie County

Utility providers shall adhere to best practices regarding the installation,
maintenance and marking of their infrastructure.

Power
New power installations shall be overhead and located in or adjacent to County
road rights-of-way as per the utility provider’s current practice.

Country Residential developments shall be serviced internally with underground
power. Overhead servicing will only be considered where the developer has
provided verification that underground installation is not viable, considering
continuity with existing power supply, lot sizes and anticipated use, and other
criteria as deemed necessary.

Lighting
Street lighting will not typically be installed in rural areas.

For all Country Residential and Rural Industrial developments, some level of road
and intersection lighting may be required. Lighting will be expected to provide
illumination for only those areas anticipated to have high traffic (vehicle, ATV or
pedestrian) volumes.

Where a development is anticipated to significantly increase the traffic at a
particular intersection, the County may request as part of a traffic impact
assessment, that requirements for intersection lighting be reviewed by a qualified
engineer.

Natural Gas
Gas servicing shall be provided to all new developments shall-aliowforthe

provision-of-natural-gas-servicing. Installation shall be in keeping with the utility
provrders current standard practlce Ga&hnesshaﬂ—be—leeaied—aﬁcmmmum—&m

Depending on the location within the County, the developer may be required to
install gas servicing as part of the improvements, in other areas the utility
provider will independently install gas servicing as building development occurs.

Telephone/Broadband Data

126



Policy DEV007 Page 5
Rural Development Standards
Mackenzie County

Al—newCountry—Residentialand—Rurallndustrial Telephone and/or data
infrastructure shall be provided for all developments—shall-be—serviced—with

phone/data—infrastructure; to the specifications of the local telecommunications

provider.

Installation of higher grade infrastructure is encouraged in order to offer provide
telecommunications providers with better options for providing digital data to the
community.

Storm Sewer
Design criteria shall be in accordance keeping with the County’s GMIS.

All rural standard developments are Sterm—sewer—servicing—is anticipated to
primarily use a be-solely surface drainage system based with no underground

infrastructure. Culverts shall be adequately sized to meet the required flow
volumes and to aid in long term maintenance. The minimum specifications in the
GMIS and the process outlined in Policy PW039 shall be followed for all culvert
installations.

In Country Residential and Rural Industrial developments, storm water retention
ponds may be required to mitigate the downstream effects of the development.
Storm water retention ponds shall be constructed in accordance with design
criteria established in the GMIS to reduce the downstream effects of the
development. Ponds shall be constructed to service large areas, and be
thoughtfully integrated with the subdivision design. All new developments shall
create zero net change to the existing storm sewer peak flows. The County
retains the ability to alter storm pond placement.

Oversized ditches along roadways will be strongly discouraged, and only
permitted when clearly proven to be the most viable option, when considering
construction costs, long term maintenance and safety. This assessment shall be
completed by a qualified engineer.

Where additional right-of-way is required to facilitate the-surface drainage, the
developer is responsible for all aspects of the acquisition of such right-of-way.

Sanitary Sewer
Design criteria shall be in accordance keeping with the County’s GMIS.

For all areas zoned for agriculture, zened—acreages—and-farms,—the sanitary
sewage shall be addressed dealt-with on a site-specific individual-basis and will

typically be a surface pump out or field system. All installations shall meet
provincial requirements.

127



Policy DEV00Q7 Page 6
Rural Development Standards
Mackenzie County

For all Country Residential and Rural Industrial developments, sanitary sewer
shall be considered collectively. Field systems may still be granted; however,
extensive soil testing and ground water monitoring shall be conducted by a
qualified professional prior to construction to ensure the long-term viability of

compactly-placed concentrated field systems.

In areas where the proximity to existing infrastructure permits, low pressure
sanitary systems shall be permitted. All low-pressure systems shall be fully
engineered, with pump and pipe sizing appropriately designed for full build out of
the system. The engineer shall specifically consider odour concerns where the
low-pressure system feeds into a gravity system or where air releases may be
located, and provide sufficient evidence that the system design will not create
odour concerns.

All sanitary sewer systems that will be the uvrderCounty’s responsibility by way
of ownership and/or maintenance shall be located within a dedicated right-of-
way, public utility lot (PUL) or easement, or Lecation—of-sanitary-lines—shall-be
permitted within an existing road right-of-way. If additional right-of-way is
required, the developer is responsible for all aspects of the acquisition and
registration of such right-of-way.

Water
Design criteria shall be in accordance keeping with the County’s GMIS.

For all areas zoned for agriculture, zened acreages—andfarms,—the water
servicing will be addressed dealt-with on a site-specific individual basis and will

be typically provided H-is—anticipated-that-meost-of these-developments—will-be
serviced by wells or cisterns.

For all Country Residential and Rural Industrial developments, water servicing

shall be considered collectively for-the-entire-proposed-development.

For all rural multi-lot developments adjacent to an existing County rural water
line, the development is required to connect to the water line. All connections to
the—rural water lines shall be installed in accordance with the GMIS and as
specified within the County’s Water and Sewer Bylaw.

Where proximity to an existing County rural water line permits, it is encouraged
that new developments connect to the line.

All water mains that will be the under County’s responsibility by way of ownership
and/or maintenance shall be located within a dedicated right-of-way, PUL or

easement, or Location-of-water-lines—shall-be-permitted within an existing road

128



Policy DEV007 Page 7
Rural Development Standards
Mackenzie County

right-of-way. If additional right-of-way is required, the developer is responsible for
all aspects of the acquisition of such right-of-way.

Service Connections on Private Land Servicing

For all large lot development with multiple buildings serviced from an internal
network, an isolation valve shall be provided at the property line. All internal
underground servicing shall be engineered to meet Alberta Environment and
Parks AESRD;-Standards and Guidelines for Municipal Waterworks, Wastewater
and Storm Drainage Systems, and a copy of the engineered drawings shall be
provided to the County for review prior to before installation.

All private hydrants and valves shall be properly maintained to the municipal
standards set forth in the GMIS. Preventative maintenance shall be performed
annually, with records provided to the County Utilities department. Alternately,
the Ultilities department may be contracted to perform the preventative
maintenance.

Roads and Road Edge

Alroad-Design criteria and construction shall be in accordance keeping with the
Countys GMIS and Pollcy PW039 pFewdes—speem&dweeHen—regadeg—the

Road widths shall be determined based on anticipated traffic types and volumes,
and road classification.

Appropriate—Intersections shall be constructed or upgraded to accommodate
anticipated traffic turning movements.

Aprons shall be paved where a new road joins to an existing asphalt surfaced
road in accordance with the GMIS and-See-Policy PW039 fer-details.

When a proposed development is anticipated to cause significant additional
traffic, a traffic impact assessment shall be completed by a qualified professional.
Depending on the outcome of the assessment, road upgrades may be required.
Upgrades may consist of road widening, road reconstruction to increase the road
structure, dust control by either temporary (oil/calcium) or permanent (asphalt)
products, intersection improvements, lighting, and other measures that are
warranted. The developer shall be responsible for all upgrades.

Arterial
The County has few rural arterial roads, and are currently limited to the Zama
Access Road, 88 Connector and La Crete North & South access roads are

v idontified ol

129



Policy DEV007 Page 8
Rural Development Standards
Mackenzie County

developments occur on Iands adJacent to an arterlal road the County shall
require the developer to provide additional road right-of-way to the County, if
required, as a condition of subdivision their approval.

Private accesses onto arterial roads shall be strongly discouraged in order to
reduce the impact on the free flow of traffic. Whenever practicable, access to a
property shall be from a collector or local road.

Collector

Collectorroads-are-identified-within-Poliey-PW039. Country Residential and Rural
Industrial developments are strongly encouraged to locate along collector roads
in order to mitigate traffic concerns and reduce the amount of road upgrades
required.

developments occur on Iands adJacent to a coIIector road, the County shall
require the developer to provide additional road right of way to the County, if
required, as a condition of their approval.

Developers are required to construct collector roads in accordance with the
GMIS and asper Policy PW039.

Local

Developers are required to construct local roads in accordance with the GMIS
and as-per Policy PW039. Developments that may cause intensive traffic shall be
strongly discouraged from being located along local roads.

Local roads constructed to a rural standard shall utilize swales or ditches for
storm water management.

Sidewalks/Trails

Sidewalks are not anticipated to be constructed in rural areas. Trails, either
asphalt or gravel/mulch, may be required for Country Residential or Rural
Industrial developments, depending on location, anticipated pedestrian traffic and
other factors as determined by the County.

Private Roads

Private roads shall be designed and constructed in accordance with accepted
engineering standards and a copy of the engineered drawings shall be provided
to the County for review prior to construction. Although right-of-way widths may
be reduced due to lot constraints, road design, materials testing and other related
activities shall be undertaken as if it were a public road. Privateroads-shall-be

130



Policy DEV00Q7 Page 9
Rural Development Standards
Mackenzie County

This applies to developments such as commercial developments
tenants on a common property.

with multiple

Upgrading Priorities
When considering road upgrades in the rural areas, the County shall prioritize
roads in the following order:

1. Arterial

2. Collector

3. Local

Policy PW039 eurrently—identifies the County’s rural road classifications and
designations.

Date Resolution Number
Approved 2015-02-10 15-02-085
Amended 2017-02-28 17-02-147
Amended

131



132



Agenda ltem #14.d)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning and Development
Title: General Municipal Improvement Standards DEV008
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Administration is in the process of reviewing several policies to remove outdated
information and update as required.

The General Municipal Improvement Standards DEV008 has been revised with the
following proposed changes:

e The correct section of the Municipal Government Act was referenced;
e The policy is to be reviewed as required rather than annually.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Option 1: To approve the revisions to the General Municipal Improvement Standards
Policy DEV0OOS8 as presented.

Option 2: Table General Municipal Improvement Standards Policy DEV008 for more
information or additions.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

N/A

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

133



COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

N/A

POLICY REFERENCES:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the General Municipal Improvement Standards Policy DEV0O08 be amended as
presented.

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:

134



Mackenzie County

Title General Municipal Improvement Policy No: | DEV008
Standards

Legislation Municipal Government Act, Part 17, Division 6/7 Section-5

Reference

Purpose

The purpose of the General Municipal Improvement Standards Policy is to
establish that the minimum standards set forth in the General Municipal
Improvement Standards (engineering guidelines) must be adhered to by the
Maekenzie County, Developers, Engineering Consultants, Contractors, and
others in all aspects of municipal improvement installations.

Policy Statement:

Mackenzie County, Developers, Engineering Consultants, Contractors, and
others all have a responsibility to ensure that the proper installation of
infrastructure is met as set forth in the General Municipal Improvement
Standards (GMIS).

These guidelines are in place to ensure that the County municipality is provided
with quality, cost efficient products that will meet an acceptable life expectancy
with minimal maintenance requirements, while not prohibiting future land
development.

Guidelines

1. All standards set forth in the General-Municipaltmprovement-Standards
GMIS shall be met;

2. These standards shall only be considered the minimum requirements;

3. All municipal improvements shall be up to accepted engineering practices and
standards that address and meet the specific needs and site conditions of the
development;

4. The Planning & Development Department will ensure that the GMIS is

reviewed as required annually to ensure the standards and practices remain
current and to address new deficiencies or standards that may arise:

135




Policy DEV008 Page 2
General Municipal Improvement Standards
Mackenzie County

a) All County departments involved in the operation or maintenance of
infrastructure shall be involved in the annual review process;

5. Any proposed revisions that significantly alter a standard and is likely to
cause a large cost, either initially or for long term maintenance, shall be
presented to the Public Works Committee for their consideration.

Date Resolution Number
Approved 2015-06-10 15-06-436
Amended
Amended

136



Agenda ltem # 14.e)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development
Title: Off-Site Levy Fee and Municipal Reserve Deferral
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Administration has received enquiries regarding subdividing large parcels of land within
Hamlet boundaries for the purpose of sale prior to further subdivision. These types of
subdivisions would take place within quarter sections with few previous subdivisions or
with existing multi-lot subdivisions and are often defined as the benefiting area of one or
more Off-Site Levy Bylaws.

In order to reduce the cost of preparing these lands for sale to a developer, landowners

have enquired about deferring payment of Off-Site Levy fees and Municipal Reserve until
further subdivision phases or until the time of development.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Option 1:

Allow deferral of Off-Site Levy Fees and Municipal Reserve for large subdivisions within
Hamlet boundaries. A Development Agreement would be signed by all parties and a
caveat would be registered on the new title. This allows the developer to obtain title prior
to subdividing small Hamlet lots and requires low initial investment for developers. If no
further subdivision took place but the lot was developed, all fees would be due at that
time.

Recouping of Off-Site Levies may be delayed but the total fees would remain the same.

Option 2:

Author: N Friesen Reviewed by:  C Smith CAO:

137



Do not allow fees to be deferred to future phases of subdivision. The overall cost of
subdividing remains the same but requires larger initial investment, deterring
development, and land sale in those areas subject to Off-Site Levy Fees.

Deterring development within areas subject to Off-Site Levy Fees will delay recouping
the costs already fronted by the County and will lead to leap-frog development.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

N/A

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

N/A

POLICY REFERENCES:

DEV005 Municipal Reserve Policy

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

For discussion.

Author: Reviewed by: CAO:

138



Agenda ltem #14.1)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development
Title: Development Statistics Report — January to June 2021
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

The following are the total number of issued permits for each year from January 15t to
December 315t

For 2021, the number of issued permits are from January to June. In addition, a
comparison of approved development permits is included for the past five (5) years from
January 15t to June 30%.

Approved Development Permit Applications (Annual)

e 2017 Development Permits 254 permits (construction value
$33,545,994.00)
e 2018 Development Permits 218 permits (construction value
$29,711,491.00)
e 2019 Development Permits 232 permits (construction value
$34,538,496.00)
e 2020 Development Permits 392 permits (construction value
$70,574,441.00)
e 2021 Development Permits 159 permits (construction value

$46,614,076.18)
(January to June 2021)

Approved Development Permit Applications (First Half)

(January 15t to June 30™")

e 2017 Development Permits 135 permits
e 2018 Development Permits 119 permits
Author: L Washkevich Reviewed by:  C Smith CAO:

139



e 2019 Development Permits 113 permits
e 2020 Development Permits 161 permits
e 2021 Development Permits 159 permits

Issued Building Permits (Annual)

e 2017 Building Permits 157 permits (value $29,051,400.00)
e 2018 Building Permits 153 permits (value $24,706,496.03)
e 2019 Building Permits 160 permits (value $22,648,860.00)
e 2020 Building Permits 288 permits (value $40,716,510.35)
e 2021 Building Permits 105 permits (value $21,584,333.51)

(January to June 2021)
*These numbers include all development that required a building permit.

New Subdivision Applications (Annual)

e 2017 subdivisions 24 applications
e 2018 applications 38 applications
e 2019 subdivisions 55 applications
e 2020 subdivisions 40 applications
e 2021 subdivisions 38 applications

(January to June 2021)

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

N/A

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

Author: L Washkevich Reviewed by:  C Smith CAO:

140



SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

N/A

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

N/A

POLICY REFERENCES:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the development statistics report for January - June 2021, be received for
information.

Author: L Washkevich Reviewed by:  C Smith CAO:

141



142



Total Approved Development Permits by Year

Type of 2021*
Development 2017 2018 2019 2020 Jan-
June

Residential 181 169 180 319 119

Industrial &

Commercial 39 40 34 45 20
Other 35 9 18 28 20

Total 255 218 232 392 159

450

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

5

o

Approved Development Permits by Year

MW Residential m Industrial/Commercial Other

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

143




Approved Development Permits by Ward

January to June 2021

Type of Ward1 | Ward2 | Ward3 | Ward4 | Ward5 | Ward 6 | Ward7 | Ward8 | ward9 | Y39 | total
Development 10
Residential 15 17 24 25 17 8 3 4 6 0 119
Industrial & 1 0 11 4 0 0 2 1 0 1 20
Commercial
Other 1 2 4 2 3 2 5 1 0 0 20
Total 17 19 39 31 20 10 10 6 6 1 159

45
40
35
30
25
20
15
1

vl O

Development Permits by Ward

January to June 2021

Ward1l Ward2 Ward3 Ward4 Ward5 Wardeé Ward7 Ward8 Ward9 Ward 10

Residential

M Industrial/Commercial

Other

144




Subdivision Applications by Ward

January to June 2021

Type of Ward1 | Ward2 | Ward3 | Ward4 | Ward5 | Ward 6 | Ward 7 | Ward8 | ward9 | Y29 | rtotal
Subdivision 10
Urban 0 0 3 4 0 0 1 0 0 0 8
Rural 2 5 0 5 9 3 0 2 2 0 28
Rural Multi Lot 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Total 2 5 3 9 11 3 1 2 2 0 38
Subdivisions by Ward
January to June 2021
5
4
3
2
| I I
0 B
Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Ward 6 Ward 7 Ward 8 Ward 9 Ward 10

M Urban ®Rural

Rural Multi Lot

145




Total Issued Safety Code Permits by Year

Type of 2021*
Safety Codes || 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 |(Jan-

June)

Building 157 | 154 | 162 | 288 | 105
Electrical 1l 209 | 168 | 183 | 316 95
Gas 167 | 120 | 132 | 252 59
Plumbing 119 | 101 92 183 63
Total 652 | 543 | 569 | 1039 | 322

Safety Code Permits by Year

1200
1000 .
800
600 -
m W
400
/
200 I I I
| -
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

M Building Permits M Electrical Permits Gas Permits ~ E Plumbing Permits

146




Agenda ltem # 14.9)

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Byron Peters, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer

Title: Public Engagement Draft Conservation Agreement for Wood
) Bison

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Alberta and Canada have negotiated a draft conservation agreement using the
provisions for agreements found in Section 11 of the Species at Risk Act.

The Canada-Alberta Draft Conservation Agreement has been posted online for a 60-day
public comment period until August 24, 2021.

Please see attached information sheet.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:
N/A

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:
N/A

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

N/A

POLICY REFERENCES:

N/A

Author: S Gibson Reviewed by: B Peters CAO:

147



RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the Canada-Alberta Draft Conservation Agreement for Wood Bison Public
Engagement be received for information.

Author: S Gibson Reviewed by: B Peters CAO:

148



Canada-Alberta Draft Conservation Agreement

for Wood Bison in Alberta

Lt

Wood bison is an iconic wildlife species' in Canada, having
important ecological value as well as cultural and spiritual
value for many Indigenous peoples. Wood bison is federally
listed as Threatened under the Species at Risk Act. In Alberta,
wood bison that occur in a specified area in northwest
Alberta are listed as Endangered under the provincial Wildlife
Act, and the Ronald Lake bison herd is listed as a Subject
Animal (Figure 1). Wood bison is also a priority species under
the Pan-Canadian Approach to Transforming Species at Risk
Conservation in Canada, through which conservation efforts
are concentrated on collaboratively identified priorities.

Wood bison currently occupy about 6% of their original range.
The overall population has declined significantly, from an
estimated 168,000 animals in the late 1800s to approximately
8,500 individuals today. Wood bison continue to face numerous
threats, including habitat loss or degradation, unregulated
hunting, and introduced cattle diseases (bovine brucellosis and
tuberculosis) that are present in some bison found within, and
adjacent to, Wood Buffalo National Park. Given the significant
reduction in the total population and range of wood bison,

and presence of introduced diseases, the federal recovery
objectives for wood bison are, in the short-term, to maintain
the population size, range and disease-free status of each
disease-free local population (or herd) of wood bison in the
original range of wood bison in Canada.

Wood bison recovery in Alberta has been hindered by

the ongoing threat of bovine tuberculosis and brucellosis.
These diseases are no longer present in domestic livestock
and there is a concern that wild bison could be a risk to

this industry. In 2010, Alberta began implementing a plan

to manage disease risk for northern Alberta wood bison
populations located outside of Wood Buffalo National Park?.
The Parks Canada Agency has also taken steps to manage
disease risk.

In January 2020, the Minister of Environment and Climate
Change announced that wood bison are facing imminent
threats to their recovery. Specifically, an Imminent Threat
Assessment [https://species-registry.canada.ca/index-en.
html#/documents/3616] concluded that two disease-free
herds in northeastern Alberta, the Ronald Lake and Wabasca
herds, are subject to threats that could, in the near-term,
jeopardize achieving the recovery objectives of wood bison,
and thus require immediate attention. The imminent threats
to the Ronald Lake herd include the presence of diseased
bison in Wood Buffalo National Park, which could transfer
tuberculosis or brucellosis to the nearby Ronald Lake

herd, and proposed industrial development in the herd’s
range, which could cause extensive habitat and range loss.
The imminent threat to the small Wabasca herd includes
unregulated harvest, which could lead to herd extirpation.

Wood Bison Conservation Agreement

Both Alberta and Canada recognize the importance of
addressing these and other threats to maintain disease-free
local populations of wood bison. To this end, they have
negotiated a draft conservation agreement using the
provisions for agreements found in Section 11 of the Species
at Risk Act.

The conservation measures identified in the draft
conservation agreement are intended to:

e Minimize future habitat loss and degradation;
e Reduce and eliminate the risk of disease transmission;

¢ Investigate and implement as required additional
approaches to improve the population status of both herds
from other threats; and

e Address information gaps, monitor populations, and
assess effectiveness of the Conservation and Management
Measures.

The draft conservation agreement also recognizes the
importance of collaborating with Indigenous groups and
stakeholders on the effective implementation of Conservation
and Management Measures.

The draft agreement has been posted online for a 60-day
public comment period.

" Wood bison (Bison bison athabascae) are a subspecies of American bison, but are considered a ‘wildlife species’ under the Species at Risk Act.

2 https://www.alberta.ca/wood-bison-disease-management.aspx

©2021 Government of Alberta | Published: June 2021

Classification: Protected A

Aperton


https://www.alberta.ca/wood-bison-disease-management.aspx
https://species-registry.canada.ca/index-en.html#/documents/3616
https://species-registry.canada.ca/index-en.html#/documents/3616

 Wood
{ Buffalo |
Wentzel National

Lake | Park k i

:Wood Bison Populations (Disease-free)

Wood Bison Populations (Diseased)

| Northwest Bison Protection Area (Status - Endangered)
Ronald Lake Special Bison Area (Status - Subject Animal)
National Park

Wildland Provincial Park

Figure 1. Location of the bison herds within Alberta, and Areas indicated under Alberta’s Wildlife Act.
Note that the federal-provincial conservation agreement only addresses the Wabasca and Ronald Lake bison herds.

©2021 Government of Alberta | Published: June 2021 Ab'm'.

Classification: Protected A 150



Agenda ltem #15.a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Mackenzie County

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: July 14, 2021

Presented By: Byron Peters, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Title: Canada Community Revitalization Fund
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Mackenzie County has the opportunity to apply for the Canada Community Revitalization
Fund (CCRF), which is intended to help communities build and improve their community
infrastructure from the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. The funding will focus on
projects that assist with community vitality, support social and economic cohesion and
revitalize communities. The program goal is to achieve these objectives through public
space improvements to downtown and main street areas commercial areas. Capital
expenditures for playground equipment, sidewalks and other public realm improvements
for creating a more inviting down town are eligible for this grant.

CCREF will fund up to 75% of the project cost with a maximum contribution of
$750,000.00. Organizations are responsible with providing 25% of the project costs.

Fort Vermilion would be the focus of this funding through CCRF. Administration would
suggest improvements to the downtown area, upgrading parks and tourism
enhancements, highlighting the community’s history. Fort Vermilion has shown resilience
as a community dealing with the aftermath of fires, floods and a pandemic in the last few
years. Improving these areas will be an important step to revitalizing the Fort Vermilion
community.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Administration recommends that Mackenzie County applies for funding through the
Canada Community Revitalization Fund.

If Mackenzie County applies for funding through CCRF, would Council agree to
contributing 25% of the funding or more?

Author: S Gibson Reviewed by: B Peters CAO:

151



Administration suggests a scope of work along the following:
e Small river lookout deck by ATB
e Sidewalks within and to the new downtown area
e Wayfinding signage and historical points of interest (highlight short stories of FV
heritage, and point people to the museum for more)
e Improvements to the park, including trails/connectivity
e Trail/connectivity to new park areas immediately east of downtown
e Trees and street furniture

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

No cost estimates to date. Administration recommends submitting a grant application for
a minimum of $500,000.00 from CCRF with $125,000.00 (25%) coming from Council.

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

Goal S2 The hamlets, rural areas and First Nations communities each have distinct and
thriving cultures yet they are linked by common, broad economic and environmental
conditions.

Strategy S2.1 Showcase the unique features of each of the County’s cultures
throughout the County’s hamlets and populated rural areas.

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

To strengthen the application the County would partner with community groups, and
potentially businesses. Administration has had a preliminary conversation with the Fort
Vermilion Board of Trade, and they are supportive of the project. Administration also
recommends working with the Fort Vermilion Metis Local and Fort Vermilion School
Division.

POLICY REFERENCES:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That Mackenzie County apply for the Canada Community Revitalization Fund in the
amount of $500,000 to fund downtown improvements for Fort Vermilion.

Author: S Gibson Reviewed by: B peters CAO:

152



Agenda ltem # 15.b)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Mackenzie County
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: July 14, 2021
Presented By: Len Racher, Chief Administrative Officer
Title: 2021 Conventions
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

The fall RMA Convention will take place November 23-26, 2021 at the Edmonton
Convention Centre. Hotel accommodations fill up quickly, so administration would like to
book rooms as soon as they become available.

The Alberta Forest Products Association Conference will take place September 29 —
October 1, 2021 at the Jasper Park Lodge. 5 members of Council have been budgeted
for to attend the AEPA Conference.

The 2021 RMA Zone meeting will take place on August 13, 2021 however the venue has

not yet been selected. 8 members of Council have been budgeted for to attend this
meeting.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Author: Reviewed by: CAO:

153



POLICY REFERENCES:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous
Motion 1

That administration proceed with booking accommodations for the Fall RMA Convention.
M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

Motion 2

That the following 5 Councilors be authorized to attend the Alberta Forest Products
Association convention on September 29 — October 1, 2021.

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

Motion 3

That the following 8 Councilors be authorized to attend the RMA Zone Meeting on
August 13, 2021.

Author: Reviewed by: CAO:

154



Colleen Sarapuk

Subject: FW: RMA Fall Convention - Meeting with Minister of Municipal Affairs

From: Mike Decker <Mike.Decker@gov.ab.ca> On Behalf Of MA MSL Engagement Group
Sent: July 8, 2021 1:36 PM

Cc: Mike Decker <Mike.Decker@gov.ab.ca>

Subject: RMA Fall Convention - Meeting with Minister of Municipal Affairs

Dear Chief Administrative Officers:

We are writing to inform you of a potential opportunity for municipal councils to meet with the
Honourable Ric Mclver, Minister of Municipal Affairs, at the 2021 RMA Fall Convention, scheduled for
November 23-26, 2021. It is our hope that these meetings will be in person.

We understand there may be newly elected officials on council and the meeting requirements may
change following the municipal elections. However, should your municipality wish to meet with
Minister Mclver during the convention, please submit a request by email to
MA.MSLEngagementGroup@gov.ab.ca no later than September 10, 2021.

In your meeting request, please be sure to include two specific policy items or issues your
municipality would like to discuss with the Minister.

We generally receive more requests to meet with the Minister than can be reasonably
accommodated over the course of the convention. To ensure suitable consideration of requests,
municipalities should be mindful of the following criteria:

? Policy items or issues directly relevant to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and the department
will be given priority.

? Municipalities located within the Capital Region can be more easily accommodated throughout
the year, so priority will be given to requests from municipalities at a distance from Edmonton
and to municipalities with which Minister Mclver has not yet had an opportunity to meet.

? Meeting requests received after the deadline will not be considered for the convention, but
may be considered for future meeting opportunities.

Meeting times with the Minister are scheduled for approximately 20 minutes per municipality. This will
allow the Minister the opportunity to engage with as many municipal councils as possible. All
municipalities submitting meeting requests will be notified at least two weeks prior to the convention
as to the status of their request.

Municipal Affairs will make every effort to find alternative opportunities throughout the remainder of
the year for those municipalities the Minister is unable to accommodate during the convention.

Sincerely,

Mike Decker/Stakeholder Relations Team
Municipal Affairs

155



156



Agenda ltem # 17.a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Mackenzie County
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: July 14, 2021
Presented By: Len Racher, Chief Administrative Officer
Title: Information/Correspondence
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

The following items are attached for your information, review, and action if required.

Council Action List

2021-07-07 Minister of Agriculture & Forestry — Renewal of FMA0200040
2021-06-24 —Town of Ponoka -

2021-06-11 NAEL Meeting Minutes

2021-06-23 County of Northern Lights — Site C Damn

STARS

Invitation to the Commissioning of Agronomy Centre

RCMP Stats

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by:  C. Sarapuk CAO:

157



POLICY REFERENCES:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

4| Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the information/correspondence items be accepted for information purposes.

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by: CAO:

158



Mackenzie County

Action List as of June 23, 2021

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Motions Requiring Action

for a bank stabilization and clean-up along the Peace
River in the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion as a result of the
ice jam flooding event.

Motion Action Required Action By Status

February 22, 2016 Council Meeting

16-02-135 That the County covers the additional cost of the survey Byron Refer to
on Plan 5999CL, Lot E to date and have administration Motion 18-06-411

release a copy of the report to the landowner informing

them that the initial investigation survey has been In progress. Meeting with

completed. landowners.
Impacted by 2020 flood.

May 10, 2016 Regular Council Meeting

16-05-354 That administration be authorized to proceed as follows Don PLS Cancelled.
in regards to the Zama Crown Land Procurement:

e cancel PLS 080023; Asset list with all leases,
e pursue acquisition of land parcels as caveats, dispositions,
identified on the map presented in red; easements, etc.
e identify a parcel of land to be subdivided from
Title Number 102 145 574 +1 (Short Legal Response Received from
0923884; 21; 1) and offered for trade or sale to AEP 2017-11-27.
Alberta Environment and Parks due to its
unsuitability for a hamlet development , Application submitted.
specifically the land use restrictions per Alberta
Energy Regulator. RFD to Council once
response is received to
our application.

July 12, 2016 Regular Council Meeting

16-07-526 That the County pursue purchasing the leased lands at Don Application for purchase
the Hutch Lake campground. Len of Hutch Lake has been

filed.

April 25, 2018 Council Meeting

18-04-314 That administration be authorized to proceed with a Don Application submitted.
Department License of Occupation (DLO) for existing FNC process
and future walking trail expansion on SE 14-106-15-

WS5 once the title transfer has been completed for SE
15-106-15-W5.

18-04-315 That administration move forward in purchasing more Don Sketch plan completed.
land north of the existing Hutch Lake Cabins and that Application to purchase
final costs be brought back to Council for decision. is in submitted

June 12, 2018 Council Meeting

18-06-432 That the County apply to Alberta Environment & Parks Byron In progress. Engineering

report received. (WSP)
Working on application.

2020 Flood Mitigation

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List

2021-06-23

159

Page 1 of 8




Motion

Action Required

Action By

Status

October 9, 2018 Regular Council Meeting

18-10-763

That administration proceeds with the water diversion
license'’s as discussed.

Fred

Received some follow-up
from Ministers Office.
Continue to follow-up.

November 13

2018 Regular Council Meeting

18-11-885

That the Zama Water Treatment Improvements Project
be retendered with a project scope change.

Fred

In progress
2021-03-09 Council

February 27, 2019 Regular Council Meeting

19-01-117

That administration proceed with Plan 5999CL in Fort
Vermilion as discussed.

Byron

See CM 21-04-377
Completed

November 5, 2019 Regular Council Meeting

19-11-676

That Mackenzie County representatives appointed to a
provincial task force must provide regular written
reports to council, shall immediately forward all task
force material and information to council and CAO, and
shall receive specific, prior approval from council to
represent views or negotiate on behalf of the County.

Council

Discussed at COW

January 29, 2020 Regular Council Meeting

20-01-055

That Administration move forward with applying for
Recreational Leases for the Bistcho Lake cabin areas
and consideration be given to the work being done by
the Caribou Sub-regional Task Force.

Don

On hold. Pursuing
reinstatement of
commercial fishing.

20-01-067

That a letter be sent to the Minister of Municipal Affairs
in regards to the Section 627(3) of the Municipal
Government Act that relates to the number of
councillor's on a Subdivision and Development Appeal
Board.

Byron

In progress
CC:RMA & AUMA

April 22, 2020

Regular Council Meeting

20-04-265

That the County and applicable developers co-develop
a storm water management plan for the La Crete North
Storm Catchment area (as delineated in red on the
attached map), and that a storm water management fee
of $4,000/ha be applied effective immediately to
subdivision applications within the defined catchment
area, with a fee adjustment to be completed once
detailed construction costs are finalized.

Byron

In progress

20-04-266

That an offsite levy bylaw be established for the La
Crete North Storm Catchment area as soon as detailed
construction costs are finalized.

Byron
Fred
Jennifer

Costs finalized. Working
on draft offsite levy
bylaw.

June 5, 2020 Special Council Meeting

20-06-334

That administration continues to support a community
recovery plan that includes a community engagement
component.

DRT

Ongoing

June 15, 2020 Special Council Meeting

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List
2021-06-23

160

Page 2 of 8




Motion

Action Required

Action By

Status

20-06-373

That the Fort Vermilion future development continue to
be investigated.

DRT

Ongoing

June 24, 2020

Regular Council Meeting

20-06-383

That applications be submitted for the three boat launch
locations and that the Mackenzie County Search and
Rescue River Access Plan be amended to include the
additional access sites as identified in the 1991
Recreation Sites in the Lower Peace River Valley
Report and be brought back to Council for approval.

Don

Application submitted for
three boat launches.

River Access Plan in
progress.

20-06-396

That second reading of Bylaw 1181-20 being a Land
Use Bylaw Amendment to rezone Plan 2938RS, Block
02, Lots 15 & 16 from Fort Vermilion Commercial
Centre “FV-CC” to Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” to
accommodate a Manufactured Home-Mobile be
TABLED.

Caitlin

Tabled due to flood
recovery process.

July 15, 2020

Regular Council Meeting

20-07-438

That Administration proceed with the one-year
extension and creating a two-year sub-contract request
for proposals for the Construction and Maintenance of
the Tompkins Crossing Ice Bridge.

Jeff

RFP — August 2021

20-11-744

That the concepts and guidance provided within the La
Crete Industrial Growth Strategy be incorporated into
County planning documents.

Byron

Incorporated into the
MDP
2022 Budget

November 25,

2020 Regular Council Meeting

20-11-742

That Administration be authorized to proceed in
developing an Offsite Levy Bylaw for the benefitting
area of the La Crete North Sanitary Trunk Sewer, for
the purpose of recovering all costs associated with the
improvements.

Byron

Working on draft offsite
levy bylaw.

20-11-748

That Administration proceed in developing an offsite
levy bylaw for the benefitting area of the La Crete South
Sanitary Trunk Sewer for the purpose in recovering all
costs associated with the sanitary sewer trunk
improvements.

Byron

Working on draft offsite
levy bylaw.

20-11-759

That administration proceed with developing
consolidated offsite levy bylaws on a per improvement
basis.

Byron

May 2021

20-11-774

That a letter be sent to Alberta Health Services
regarding critical staff shortages in Northwest Alberta.

Len

In progress

December 16,

2020 Budget Council Meeting

20-12-799

That the County lobby the provincial government (Red
Tape Reduction) to consolidate grazing leases into a
single tax roll to assist the province and the municipality
to reduce red tape.

Len

In progress

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List
2021-06-23

Page 3 of 8

161



Motion

Action Required

Action By

Status

20-12-805

That administration request that the province
waive/reimburse fees associated with the River Search
& Rescue Access Plan approvals.

Don

Drafting a letter to AEP

20-12-808

Administration bring forward a policy review at each
Committee of the Whole Meeting.

Len

Ongoing

January 12, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

21-01-033

That administration request meetings with the following
Ministries during the 2021 Rural Municipalities of
Alberta (RMA) Spring Convention to discuss the
following policy items or issues:

Ministry: Priority Topics:

Municipal Affairs Disaster Recovery

Petition to Form a New Municipality

Transportation Bridge at Tompkins Landing

High Wide Load Corridor

Farmland Expansion

Fire Ban Exemption Request
Agricultural Land Sales
Natural Gas Line Update

Agriculture & Forestry

Health La Crete Birthing Centre

Environment & Parks Agricultural Land Sales
Recreation Leases — First Nation
Consultation

Water Diversion Licenses

Northwest Bison

Energy Transportation Corridor

Solicitor General Fort Vermilion Courthouse

Collen
Len

In progress

January 26, 2021 Committee of the Whole Meeting

COW-21-
01-007

That administration work with the landowner for
farmland access options and bring a recommendation
to Council.

Byron

January 27, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

21-01-052

That administration investigate all costs associated with
the ownership of the Fire Truck unit #9132, purchased
under Section 10.11 of the Regional Service Sharing
Agreement and that the transfer of ownership be
TABLED.

Jennifer

Ongoing

21-01-058

That administration proceed with negotiations to
purchase the required land for the La Crete North
Storm project and report back to Council prior to
submitting an offer to purchase.

Byron
Fred

In progress

21-01-075

That administration proceed with the land sale of Plan
082 6817, Block 3, Lots 11MR & 12MR for the purpose
of consolidation.

Caitlin

Waiting on designation
removal at land titles

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List

2021-06-23

162

Page 4 of 8




Motion

Action Required

Action By

Status

February 9, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

21-02-111

That administration work with the Fort Vermilion School
Division to complete a trade and land transfer for
properties adjacent to the Blue Hills Community School,
La Crete Public School and Fort Vermilion Public
School.

Byron

In progress

21-02-115

That administration prepare a new Land Use Bylaw
Amendment to further restrict non-compatible uses
near Mackenzie County airports

Caitlin

In Progress

21-02-141

That Mackenzie County enter into an agreement for the
payment of outstanding taxes with Long Run
Exploration as discussed.

Jennifer

See CM 21-04-375

February 24, Regular Council Meeting

21-02-146

That the Agricultural Land Development & Lease
Proposals for NW 6 & SW 7-109-19-W5 be TABLED
until further discussion with bidder.

Grant

Drafting

March 9,2021

Regular Council Meeting

21-03-185

That administration include Option 4 - being place a
new building on higher ground (new location) in the
flood recovery work for the Fort Vermilion Airport, and
that a detailed budget amendment to fund the works be
presented to council prior to issuing a tender for the
recovery/mitigation works.

Byron

Working with engineers

March 24, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

21-03-212

That the Caretaking — Fort Vermilion Waste Transfer
Station Tenders be retendered.

Don

21-03-213

That the hours are changed to 5:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.
on Tuesdays and Thursdays at the Fort Vermilion
Transfer Station.

Don

21-03-240

That the 2021 Capital budget be amended to include
$1,100,000 for the La Crete North Storm — Pond A, with
funding coming from Debenture, and future off-site
levies.

Fred
Jen

Budget amended
As contingent

21-03-241

That a borrowing bylaw, and off-site levy bylaw be
developed for the purpose of funding La Crete North
Storm — Pond A project.

Fred
Jen
Byron

1st Reading

21-03-242

That Administration proceed with issuing a Request for
Proposals for La Crete North Storm — Pond A
engineering services.

Fred
Byron

Tendered — Closing
2021-04-28
See Council Motion 21-

21-03-246

That administration be authorized to proceed with the
sale of the land and transfer of title for amalgamation
back into the quarter.

Caitlin

In Progress

April 13, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List

2021-06-23

163

Page 5 of 8




Motion

Action Required

Action By

Status

21-04-279

That the organizational chart be amended to include a
part time summer staff employee for the Fort Vermilion
Waste Transfer Station until September 2021, and the
Caretaking contract be retendered after September.

Len

21-04-313

That administration proceed with further developing the
Offsite levy bylaw taking into consideration the average
Canadian offsite levy is 2.5% -5 %.

Byron

April 28, 2021

Regular Council Meeting

21-04-337

That Mackenzie County support and submit the 2021
FRIAA grant funding proposal for Mackenzie County
FireSmart Home Assessments (EOI-21-13) project.

Don

21-04-353

That administration provide a summary for the next
Council meeting of the proposals received and the
successful proponent for the Request for Proposals for
the Engineering Consulting Services for the La Crete
North Storm Pond “A” project.

Byron

21-04-375

That Mackenzie County enter into an agreement for the
payment of outstanding taxes with Long Run
Exploration as discussed.

Jen

In Progress

May 11, 2018

Regular Council Meeting

21-05-391

That administration reach out to non-profit
organizations for proposals to proceed with a “Fall
Community Clean-up” and bring back findings to
Council.

Don

In progress

21-05-394

That the 30 Meter Right-of-Way for Road Widening
project be forwarded to a Committee of the Whole
meeting for discussion.

Jeff

21-05-411

That a letter be sent to the Minister of Alberta
Environment & Parks expressing Mackenzie County’s
concerns regarding the DRAFT Bistcho Lake Sub-
regional plan, and clearly identifying all
recommendations after the May 26, 2021 Regular
Council Meeting.

Byron

21-05-419

That administration develop a Charitable Donations
Policy.

Jen

In Progress

21-05-429

That administration proceed with submitting an offer to
purchase for the land required for Storm Pond “A” as
per policy and discussion.

Byron

May 12, 2021

Special Council Meeting

21-05-432

That a letter be sent to the Minister of Municipal Affairs
requesting they look at a larger area to create a new
municipality with or without the Town of Rainbow Lake.

Len

May 26, 2021

Regular Council Meeting

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List
2021-06-23

Page 6 of 8

164



Motion

Action Required

Action By

Status

21-05-447

That Council allows for a possible scope change to
some or all of the Site Tour Projects by extending the
meters for road repairs pertaining to the locations
approved and based on need, while remaining within
budget

Jeff

21-05-460

That a letter be sent to the Minister of Alberta
Environment & Parks expressing Mackenzie County’s
concerns regarding the DRAFT Bistcho Lake
Subregional plan, and clearly identifying all
recommendations.

Byron

Complete

21-05-462

That Administration proceed with issuing a Request for
Proposals for the detail design and construction
engineering for the La Crete North Sanitary Trunk
Sewer.

Byron

In progress

21-05-463

That administration enter into a lease agreement with
TELUS communications with the new annual fee.

Caitlin

Complete

21-05-464

That administration proceed with upgrading the airport
lighting at the Fort Vermilion (Wop May) Airport from
halogen to LED.

Byron

21-05-468

That Mackenzie County send a letter to the Minister of
Justice and Solicitor General regarding the Proposed
Provincial Police Service.

Len

Complete

21-05-470

That a letter be sent to the Minister of Environment and
Parks requesting the details on notice and justification
regarding the burning of the cabins at Bistcho Lake.

Len

Complete

21-05-479

That administration bring back options for CAO
recruitment consultants to the next council meeting.

Len

Complete

June 8, 2021

Regular Council Meeting

21-06-486

That the 2021 Capital Budget by amended to include
$500,000 from Municipal Sustainability Initiative (MSI)
grant funding for the Washout & Culvert Upgrades
project.

Jen

21-06-487

That the 2021 Capital Budget be amended by $36,000
to include the purchase of a Ground Penetrating Radar
Unit with funds coming from General Capital Reserve.

Jen

21-06-489

That the 2021 Capital Budget be amended with
$110,000 from the ‘LC - Intersection upgrade Traffic
Lights 100 St & 94 Ave’ Capital project being allocated
to a new Hamlet of La Crete Road Repairs project in
order to complete assorted road and sidewalk repairs in
La Crete.

Jen

21-06-497

That administration move forward to attempt to
accommodate the Senate Selection and Referenda
Votes, excluding the use of Special Ballots.

Len/Carrie

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List

2021-06-23

165

Page 7 of 8




Motion

Action Required

Action By

Status

21-06-498

That Mackenzie County attempt to gain representation
in the next policy framework replacing Canadian
Agriculture Partnership.

Len

21-06-502

That the Road Recovery Project RFP move forward as
discussed

Jeff

June 23, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

21-06-519

That Administration send a letter to the Minister of
Environment and Parks, administration and MLA
regarding immediate attention to recreation leases.

21-06-525

That the 2021 One Time Project Budget be amended to
include $34,000, for the FireSmart Home Assessments
project with funding coming from Forest Resource
Improvement Association of Alberta (FRIAA) grant.

21-06-526

That the budget be amended by $7,500 to hire a non

profit group to split and stack the fire wood at Wadlin

Lake with funding coming from the General Operating
Reserve.

21-06-534

That Grazing Lease and Farmland Development
Leases tax rolls as per Schedule “A” be reduced to a
$50 minimum tax for 2021, and that $16,178.46 in
taxes be written off.

21-06-538

That the deadline for proposals be set for July 9, 2021
and Administration be authorized to open and score
each proposal for presentation at the July 14, 2021
Council meeting.

21-06-543

That Mackenzie County acquire 3m of land on the east
side for the future road widening of 100 Street.

21-06-545

That a letter be sent to the Minister of Agriculture and
Forestry in support of the renewal of the local mills FMA
0200040.

21-06-546

That the Minister of Agricultural and Forestry be invited
to a Council meeting.

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List

2021-06-23

166

Page 8 of 8




Mackenzie Coum‘y

P.O. Box 640, Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO
Phone (780) 927-3718 Fax (780) 927-4266
www.mackenziecounty.com

July 7, 2021

Honourable Devin Dreeshen
Minister of Agriculture and Forestry
Agriculture and Forestry

229 Legislature Building

10800-97 Avenue

Edmonton, Alberta

T5K 2B6

RE: Renewal of the Joint Forest Management Agreement-FMA 0200040

Dear Minister

The Forest Industry has been a long-standing economic contributor to the Northwest
Region of Alberta. As you are aware, Forest Management Agreement (FMA) 0200040 is
jointly managed and provides access to timber for three operations located in Northwest
Alberta. The renewal of the joint FMA and its fibre security is critical to the continued
operations of Tolko Industries Ltd., for the continuous supply of coniferous timber for
their sawmill, West Fraser Mills Ltd. for the continuous supply of deciduous timber for
their OSB facility, and La Crete Sawmills Ltd. for the continuous supply of coniferous and
deciduous timber for their sawmill operations.

These three Forest Manufacturing Facilities, all located in Northwest Alberta, employ
approximately 700 full time employees in their mill operations and an additional 500 full
time employees in their harvesting and reforestation operations. High Level, Fort
Vermillion, La Crete, and the surrounding communities significantly benefit from these
three Forest Management Facilities and their economic contributions.

The Forest Industry continues to diversify and stabilize the economy of our region.
Mackenzie County would like to request your support for the renewal of the joint Forest
Management Agreement which is so critical to the economic prosperity of our region.

Sincerely,

Z2

Josh Knelsen, Reeve
Mackenzie County

167



—

Ponoka.

June 24, 2021

Dear Mayor/Reeve:

Ponoka Town Council is reaching out to other smaller rural communities like ours to voice our concerns regarding
the COVID-19 pandemic. We wish to share with you our concerns for our business community as we believe you
may be experiencing similar issues. We would also like to propose a solution for these concerns and are
requesting your support.

Over the last sixteen months, our small town businesses have experienced an extremely tough rollercoaster ride
amid a long string of lockdowns and restrictions. As we all know they, unlike urban businesses, already face a
different kind of challenge because they do not have the larger population base that businesses in the larger cities
can draw on.

Even now that restrictions are being lifted, it takes much longer for these small, rural businesses to recover and
bounce back; and given that they have been hit with successive waves of shut downs over the past several
months, the damage has been cumulative. We worry that a number of our small businesses may not

survive. And we worry about the terrible impact that losing these businesses would have on our community
considering they are an integral part of our town’s economy. They not only run businesses, they are consumers
too. They buy houses and pay taxes. They are also an important part of our social fabric, as many of them
sponsor sports teams, coach our young athletes, and are leaders, friends and neighbours in our community. We
are deeply concerned about the potential loss of these businesses.

In response to these concerns, we have begun writing letters to the Premier, our MLA, and our MP. We are
requesting additional funding be given to rural municipalities. This money would be specifically earmarked for
small businesses and distributed to them through municipal councils. Our position is that local municipal councils
understand the unique needs of their communities and their businesses, and therefore are in the best position to
distribute these additional dollars most effectively.

Our frustration with government has been that their actions and solutions always appear to be a one-size-fits-all
measure with the emphasis tilted toward the larger cities in our province. We understand that we are all hurting,
but we also can see that there is a tone deafness in particular when it comes to small businesses in rural

Alberta. Our concern is that these small, rural businesses are the lifeblood of this province yet they have always
contributed disproportionately more to our GDP than they have ever received back in compensation. They are
struggling and hurting now. It is time we do something for them or we will soon find that not only will some of
them be gone, but small towns in this province may start to disappear along with them.

W2
Follow Town of Ponoka online at: Town of Ponoka
www.ponoka.ca 200, 5604 — 50 Street
T, Ponoka, AB T4J 1G5
‘i 1°4 Main: 403-783-4431

Fax: 403-783-6745

168



Rural Municipalities
June 24,2021
Page 2.

Ponoka Town Council is asking for your support by simply requesting that you join us in writing letters to our

Premier, your MLA and MP requesting more financial help for small, rural businesses. This will remind our

provincial and federal governments that the rural communities in this province are hurting, and hurting badly.

Finally, please feel free to contact the Mayor’s Office in the Town of Ponoka for further discussion on how we

could collectively pursue other possible solutions in the future.

Yours sincerely,

Ponoka Town Council.

Follow Town of Ponoka online at:
www.ponoka.ca

fI8

169

Town of Ponoka

200, 5604 — 50 Street
Ponoka, AB T4J 1G5
Main: 403-783-4431
Fax: 403-783-6745



NAEL

Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14

DRAFT MINUTES
June 11, 2021

WebEx/Teleconference

Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4
Phone: 780-624-6274

Attendees

Amber Bean Clear Hills County
Leanne Beaupre County of Grande Prairie
Donna Buchinski Town of Falher

Quinton Bufford Village of Nampa

Tom Burton RMA

Jackie Clayton City of Grande Prairie
April Doll Town of Manning
Roxann Dreger Village of Rycroft
Michelle Farris Town of Rainbow Lake
Allan Georget Town of Spirit River

Jim Hailes Town of Fox Creek

Cindy Hockley Village of Berwyn

Alvin Hubert Saddle Hills County
Janet Jabush AUMA

Barbara Johnson Municipal District of Peace
Peggy Johnson Municipal District of Fairview
Josh Knelsen Mackenzie County
Carolyn Kolebaba Northern Sunrise County
Myrna Lanctot Village of Donnelly

Boyd Langford Town of High Level

Vern Lymburner Town of Valleyview
Elaine Manzer Town of Peace River
David Marx Big Lakes County

Ken Matthews Big Lakes County

Crystal McAteer Town of High Level

Cary Merritt Saddle Hills County
Cindy Millar Northern Sunrise County
Brian Panasiuk Town of High Prairie
Jordan Panasiuk Big Lakes County

Kate Potter Town of Sexsmith

Len Racher Mackenzie County

Bob Regal Town of Grimshaw

Jim Rennie Woodlands County

Rod Risling Town of High Prairie
Allan Rowe Clear Hills County

Greg Rycroft Town of Manning

For NAEL Members’ internal use only.
Classification: Protected A

170

Page 1 of 10



N&EL

Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14

Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274

Gary Rycroft Town of Beaverlodge

Dale Smith Municipal District of Greenview
Terry Ungarian County of Northern Lights

Bob Willing Municipal District of Peace

Guests, Presenters and Observers:

- Votham Anastasiadis, Alberta Counsel

- Paul McLauchlin, President of RMA

- Kara Westerlund, Vice-President of RMA

- Jason Schneider, RMA

- Kathy Rooyakkers, RMA

- Soren Odegard, RMA

- Honorable Travis Toews, MLA Grande Prairie-Wapiti
- Tracy Allard, MLA for Grande Prairie

- Dan Williams, MLA for Peace River

- Todd Loewen, MLA for Central Peace-Notley

Secretariat:

- Jutta Rohrschach, A/Executive Director, JEI

- Pamela Witte, Director, JEI

- Baiku Acharya, Agency Relations Advisor, JEI
- Lisa Williams, Administrative Assistant, JEI

Call Membership Meeting to Order

Chair, Jim Rennie, welcomed attendees and called the NAEL meeting to order at 1:05PM.

This meeting will be recorded, if there are no objections, no objections noted.

Adoption of Agenda
It was MOVED by Myrna Lanctot THAT the agenda be adopted as presented.
CARRIED

Adoption of Consent Agenda
3.1. Draft NAEL Meeting Minutes — February 5, 2021
3.2. Financial Statement - May 2021
e  The account balance is $17, 044.94. Unchanged from the last meeting.
3.3. Sent-Thank you letters — February 5, 2021 meeting
3.4. Sent- Site C Dam letter — Hon. Jason Nixon, Minister of Environment and Parks
3.5. Sent - Invitation letters, June 11, 2021
3.5.1. Hon. Devin Dreeshen, Minister of Agriculture and Forestry
3.5.2. Hon. Ric Mclver, Minister of Municipal Affairs
3.5.3. Northern MLAs in NAEL region

3.6. Received — Letter from Hon. Jason Nixon, Minister of Environment and Parks re. Site C Dam

For NAEL Members’ internal use only.

Classification: Protected A

171

Page 2 of 10



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274

3.7. Received — Letter from MLA Williams on Site C Dam

3.8. Received — Email from MLA Loewen on relocation of flood mitigation trailer to north

3.9. Received - County of Northern Lights’ letter to Alberta Management Agency regarding flood
mitigation trailers

3.10. Received — County of Grande Prairie’s letter to NAV Canada regarding review of air traffic
services

3.11. Received- Correspondences from MLA Allard

3.12. Received -Members’ roundtable updates — Received by June 4, 2021. No updates were
received.

3.12.1. Updates received after this date will be included in the post-meeting package.

It was MOVED by Carolyn Kolebaba THAT the consent agenda be adopted as presented.
CARRIED

4. Chair Updates
This item is moved up from agenda item #5 to #4 as the meeting was ahead of schedule.

4.1. NAEL Health Survey Results
e Key highlights of the survey:
- The report includes 21 communities’ responses, of which, 8 rural and 13 urban
municipalities responded.
- The survey included six questions and there was a good response rate for each question,
ranging from 100% to 67%.
- The responses were mostly qualitatively analyzed. Key health issues and solutions identified
by respondents include:
0 Community Health Centers are the least accessible health facilities;
0 Specialized care (including maternal, cancer and surgical care) is challenging to access;
0 General Practice Medical Doctors are needed;
0 Health policy and / or the delivery of services may be improved by:
Expanding the use of existing facilities;
Refining incentives for recruitment, and retention of health care professionals;
Targeting education policies to promote rural practices; and
Decentralizing the provincial health authority or complimenting it with a regional
advisory board.
- Members discussed on what can be done with the survey report using the leverage that
they have.
0 The report can be shared with key related stakeholders through NAEL, as a collective
voice of 40 communities is stronger than coming out from each individual community.

YV VY

It was MOVED by Myrna Lanctot THAT the NAEL health survey report be accepted as
information and shared with Premier, Alberta Health (Minister of Health), Alberta Health

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 3 of 10
Classification: Protected A
172



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274

Services, the MLAs from the NAEL region, Regional Health Advisory Councils in the NAEL region,
NADC, RhPAP, RMA, and AUMA and that the Minister of Health be invited to attend the next
NAEL meeting.

CARRIED

5. Presentation from Métis Nation of Alberta, Region 6 — NAEL Membership Request

Presenter: Carol Ridsdale, President of Métis Nation of Alberta (MNA), Region 6.

e President Ridsdale was unable to attend the meeting as planned due to a last minute urgent
task, and Votham Anastasiadis from Alberta Counsel provided a high level update on the MNA,
Region 6.

e Key highlights from the presentation included:

- Alberta Counsel represents MNA, Region 6 to develop their economic and social
opportunities, especially in the north and believe that the members of Region 6 would
benefit from having representation at NAEL.

- MNA, Region 6 has a board of eight members including a president and a vice-president.

- President Ridsdale is in her first term, she was a vice-president for many years before
becoming president.

- They are part of the parent organization Métis Nation of Alberta, consisting of six regions
across Alberta, with well over 50,000 members. MNA, Region 6 includes Grande Prairie,
Peace River, Fort Vermilion, Fairview, Valleyview and Manning.

- Their priorities include economic development, getting Métis people to work and
supporting housing and mental health of their members.

- MNA, Region 6 is the only Indigenous recipient this year for the Civil Society Grant award.
There were more than 500 applicants and 21 selected.

e A brief Q&A session followed the presentation and included the discussions around value of
MNA Region 6 joining the NAEL membership.

- Members look forward to meeting to discuss and collaborate for issues and opportunities
with the MNA Region 6 representatives in future.

It was MOVED by Terry Ungarian THAT the request of Métis Nation of Alberta, Region 6 that they
be a NAEL member be accepted.
CARRIED

6. Regional Updates/Standing Item
6.1. Species at Risk
- Keep as a standing item.
- Alberta has entered a Conservation Agreement (Section 11 agreement) under the Species
At Risk Act with the Federal Government, which gives the province control of conservation
measures. The federal mandate has not changed; they are still targeting increasing
conservation lands.

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 4 of 10
Classification: Protected A
173



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274

0 Vice Chair and Reeve Beaupre suggested that the Minister of Alberta Environment and
Parks or a representative can be invited in a future NAEL meeting to provide an update
on the mandated targets.

- Mayor Lymburner mentioned premier Kenney’s talk the other night regarding the Section
11 Agreement that the province has been able to remove some control from the federal
government and the caribou situation is now under the provinces’ control.

6.2. COVID-19

- Keep as a standing item

- Communities struggling with empty buildings and businesses are dealing with serious
recovery.

- Our municipalities need continued support in 2021 like the 2020 COVID-19 one-time grant
for the closed facilities.

- The province and AHS has been calling on municipal leaders to try to encourage their
communities to get vaccinated.

O Rural communities are behind in vaccination; the current average is around 33%. The
province is looking at a 70% goal to move into the third stage of opening.

0 As elected leaders, we want to get our communities out of this situation and provide
with as much information as we can and leave the constituents to make their own
decision.

6.3. Northern Agriculture Updates

- Pricing of the crops is a key issue for northern farmers.

0 Agricultural communities in the north, face a lot of challenges that are out of their
hands such as natural circumstances and market price.

- Reeve Kolebaba mentioned that PREDA is doing a study on transportation and costs in the
region and is willing to share the high-level findings with NAEL once the report is
completed.

0 Transportation is one of the biggest costs for farmers when it comes to getting their
product to the market and receiving the tools and products they need.

6.4. Other — TBD by NAEL Members

- Site CDam

0 Reeve Ungarian provided an update on the Site C Dam that a delegate from the project
attended in the last County of Northern Lights council meeting. The 30-minute
presentation included a PowerPoint presentation and they talked about the Milburn
Report (a report on Site C project review by Peter Milburn, Special Advisor to the BC
Ministers of Finance and Energy, Mines and Low Carbon Innovation) and the fiscal
problems. They reassured that they have addressed all the geotechnical problems and
will improve their communications with us.

- Highway Maintenance
0 Mayor Hailes mentioned that the roads are in terrible condition in the northern region

and they need regular maintenance.

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 5 of 10
Classification: Protected A
174



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274

0 Reeve Kolebaba shared that the Construction Association are asking Albertans to take
pictures of their highways and send them their way so that the association can
campaign.

- Flood Mitigation Trailer

0 Mayor Lanctot thanked municipalities for sending letters on the trailer and that Falher
received one which is situated here in the north and is accessible.

0 Deputy Mayor Manzer also thanked for the efforts and informed that the trailer has
arrived in Peace River when the ice was melting.

- Funding Disasters

0 Deputy Mayor Manzer mentioned changes to the province’s Disaster Recovery Program
(DRP). The province is sharing the financial risk and liability of disaster expenses through
cost-sharing mechanisms, thresholds, residential funding limits, or restrictions to
assistance in floodways, as part of its disaster assistance program. Alberta has
implemented a 90:10 cost-sharing arrangement with local governments and private-
sector applicants, which include homeowners, residential tenants, small business
owners, landlords, agriculture operations, condominium associations and not-for-profit
organizations and cooperatives.

- Rest Areas

0 Mayors Lymburner and Hailes mentioned Alberta Transportation’s plan of developing
rest areas between communities as discussed with the Transportation Minister. The
local communities expressed their concerns that it would take business away from
them. The project is on hold for now.

It was MOVED by Vern Lymburner THAT NAEL requests clarification from the Premier’s office as
to what the Premier was referencing in regards to the control over caribou situation/species at
risk and what powers the province has now.

CARRIED

It was MOVED by Jim Hailes THAT NAEL approaches the Minister of Transportation and the
Regional Director of Transportation to allocate more funds for the maintenance and upkeep of
highways in northern Alberta.

CARRIED

It was MOVED by Elaine Manzer THAT the NAEL seeks a presentation on the aspects of DRP
changes from the Alberta Emergency Management Agency, the agency that leads and oversees all
emergency and disaster prevention, preparedness and responses in Alberta.

CARRIED

7. Northern Alberta Development Council (NADC) Updates
Presenter: NADC Chair, David B. Hanson — MLA for Bonnyville-Cold Lake- St. Paul
MLA Hanson was unable to attend.

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 6 of 10

Classification: Protected A
175



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274

8. Attending Northern MLA Updates
Presenter: Todd Loewen, MLA for Central Peace-Notley
Flood Mitigation Trailer
0 Happy to hear that the flood mitigation trailer made it way to the north after the last
meeting. | have spoken with the Minister Mclver about that.
- Rural Doctor Discussion
0 The Alberta Health Services should know how many doctors are required in each
community. The plan needs to have a timeline or an end date to have those health
professionals in place in our rural communities.
- Caribou Section 11 Agreement
0 The Alberta government did sign off on Section 11 with the Federal government, which will
have wide reaching ramifications. It would be good for NAEL to get more
information/clarification.
- Rest Areas
0 Itis good to hear that the local municipalities are getting the government back on track.
There are communities that are struggling right now and to put up businesses in-between
those communities would be counterproductive.

Presenter: Hon. Travis Toews, MLA Grande Prairie-Wapiti and Minister of Finance
- CoviID-19

0 The opening plan has some hard metrics and very optimistic that it is going to proceed on
the anticipated timelines.

0 The first doses are slowing down, so we are encouraging everybody who are interested to
be vaccinated. Second doses have been sped up, due to the availability of the vaccines.

0 As we start to get past COVID, our attention will be singularly on economic recovery and
growth. It is going to be critically important to position the Alberta economy for
investment attraction and growth. Economic recovery is not only important to get
Albertans back to work and our businesses back but also for the long term fiscal health of
the province.

- Energy

0 The demand globally for energy products is rising faster than production is responding,
with a West Texas Intermediate (WTI) price over $70.00. As well, natural gas prices are
high.

0 Alberta energy companies are strengthening their balance sheets, which struggled last
year. They are starting to expand their capital expenditure plans and are expecting an
additional three billion dollars in capital expenditures.

0 The Alberta government advocated to the Federal government for an investment tax
credit, which is of significance for carbon capture and storage. That notation was included
on the budget, but the federal budget did not include a definitive dollar figure. There will

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 7 of 10
Classification: Protected A
176



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274

be discussions/negotiations in the upcoming days, weeks, and probably months. The
province will be advocating for at least and equivalent to the Q45 approach in the US.
- Hydrogen Facility in Edmonton

0 Premier announced a new investment for Edmonton Air Products. It is a 1.3 billion dollar
investment for setting up a blue hydrogen facility.

0 Blue hydrogen production uses natural gas and the carbon will be captured and stored
which is very positive for upstream natural gas industry and our municipalities in the north
who also have this asset.

0 It will also improve our investment narrative that Alberta can continue to attract capital.

0 This project will create 2,500 jobs to build and 100s of jobs to operate.

- Venture Capital Investment

0 Doubling the venture capital investment in the province of Alberta in 2020 was
exceptional. Other provinces across the nation actually saw a decline; we were an anomaly
in terms of investment attraction. 2021 is starting out even stronger.

- Petrol Chemical

0 The Nauticol project in Grande Prairie region has been moving forward and making
progress.

0 The new Alberta petrochemical incentive program is an improvement over the
petrochemical diversification program that it replaced. There is significant interest by the
project proponents in this program.

- Agricultural

0 While 2020 was still a tough year for some farmers in this region, the province in general
had a good year in agriculture, and 2021 is beginning well with bankable high prices.

0 The province is seeing some additional processing and manufacturing investment.

- Forestry
0 Forestry is having the best year ever, in terms of pricing.
- Caribou — Species at Risk

0 This is a challenging issue for the province.

0 Chapter 11 gives the province more ability to chart its own course.

0 There are a number of planning committees working together with the forestry companies
and the energy industry to find a path forward.

0 The province needs to find a way to ensure that there is adequate habitat.

e A brief Q&A session followed after the Hon. Toews’ updates. The discussions included the
following:
- Video Lottery Terminal (VLT) allocation

0 Businesses with potential and capacities to operate VLT machines in the northern
communities would be able to generate revenue if the allocation process of the machines
by the Alberta Gaming and Liquor Commission (AGLC) were sped up for them. AGLC has
over 500 VLTs in their warehouse to be allocated. Minister Toews to follow up with the
AGLC.

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 8 of 10
Classification: Protected A
177



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274

- Unpaid oil and gas taxes

0 There is about 240 million dollars owed by energy companies on taxes. Municipalities have
tight budgets and they have not heard any updates from the province on this. 40% of
those taxes represent the companies that are still operating. Minister Toews to have
discussion with Minister Mclver on this topic for more insight into this.

- Permits for mining industry

0 There are mining industry members who are having challenges obtaining permits for iron
ore, palladium and lithium. There is a momentum to diversify and find investment
attraction opportunities with the government, but when it comes to the bureaucratic level,
there seems to be resistance. The process to obtain even the non-disclosure agreement
(NDA) of investment is long. Minister Toews asked for additional details about the
interested proponents and their pinch points to be able to advocate on behalf of them to
the applicable ministry.

- The Internet Access

O Reliable access to the Internet has become even more critical to the rural communities
with the current virtual format of doing work including students’ studies. This has been
talked about for a long time but not much has been done in getting this to all the
communities. It is now time to invest in reliable internet. Minister Toews shared that
Service Alberta is in the final stage of coming forward with an ambitious and bold plan for
rural connectivity that will address these issues significantly.

- Grants and Funding for municipalities to fight COVID-19

0 Continued support to the municipalities is needed to help cover incremental costs and
reduced revenues associated with the pandemic as the COVID lasted longer than
anticipated.

0 There is no plan on adding anything to the operating support transfer as it was planned to
be a one-time funding program. The pandemic is however, disrupting activities and
businesses are hurting. This year, the province has pulled forward the capital funding by
over 200 million dollars for municipalities ensuring they have some additional capital
funding this year. However, this capital funding will be decreased while municipalities look
over the next 3 year span.

Presenter: Tracy Allard, MLA for Grande Prairie
- Broadband
0 Met with Minister Glubish regarding rural broadband and discussed what we are going to
do to ensure that we get reliable connectivity. Broadband is vital and critical for business,
education and for life like other key infrastructure.
- Accessibility for persons with disability
0 MLA Allard is currently in a wheelchair and provided her perspective of what it is like to
not have access to basic services such as transportation, and getting in and out of public
buildings.

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 9 of 10
Classification: Protected A
178



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274

Presenter: Dan Williams, MLA for Peace River
- Infrastructure
o The summer construction season is going to be significant for the Northwest with
approximately 80 million dollars of transportation infrastructure investment in the Peace
Region.
0 We have the potential for a 200 million dollar bridge across the Peace River. We are
making sure we work out the details with our partner Métis settlement in Paddle Prairie.
If, for some reason we need to take a 2nd look, there are options for North and South of
Paddle Prairie. The government is committed to moving forward with the fee-for-service
transportation across Peace River, potentially open for traffic crossing as early as the
winter of 2025.
- Flood Mitigation
0 We are working with Fort Vermilion town site flood prevention and with Mackenzie
County for more funding beyond the initial flood mitigation dollars.
0 The flood mitigation trailer has work to be done, but there is movement on that.
- New School Projects
0 School projects in the north such as in Manning and Mackenzie County are moving
forward.
- La Crete Maternity Centre
O The pre-construction work is starting next year.
- Wolverine pipeline is moving.
- Working with High Level to have an emergency centre there.

It was MOVED by Donna Buchinski THAT MLAs Allard, Loewen, Toews and Williams, be sent a letter of
thanks [including outstanding questions].
CARRIED

9. Next meeting
9.1. Location, date and agenda items
- September 17 or September 24 (from 1:00 — 3:00PM) were proposed for the next virtual
meeting.
- Members discussed the options of having the next meeting in-person.

It was MOVED by Carolyn Kolebaba THAT the next NAEL meeting be held in-person in a facility that
also has high-speed internet access to support virtual attendance opportunity on Friday, September
17, 2021 and time/location be determined by expression of interest poll in mid-July.

CARRIED

10. Adjournment
It was MOVED by Jim Rennie THAT the NAEL meeting be adjourned at 2:59PM.
CARRIED

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 10 of 10
Classification: Protected A
179



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
. ' Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

Member Roundtable Updates

Please note below any updates that you want to record in the meeting package to be shared with the NAEL members.
It is recommended that maximum top three updates are included so that it allows all member communities share and
learn ideas and best practices efficiently and in less space. Items will be recorded as they are written and will be
included in the meeting package.

If you have items you wish to speak to during the meeting on June 11, 2021 (online) please email
northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com to arrange time on the agenda.

Member Community: Northern Sunrise County

Contact: Carolyn Kolebaba, Reeve

NSC continues to advocate for the unpaid oil & gas taxes and encourages municipalities to continue to
1 work with their association (RMA or AUMA) and the province. Legislative change is needed. Media
Release attached to Roundtable Update Form.

NSC in partnership with Telus will be installing two cell towers in Marie Reine and St. Isidore to help
improve cell service in those 2 hamlets this year.

NSC continues to expand on it’s day use park areas this summer. We look forward to seeing the
3 installation of a wheelchair accessible dock and paved trails at Cecil Thompson Park and an additional 6
sites and a bathroom facility constructed at the popular Murphy’s Flats Day Use area.

Please email your completed update to the NAEL at northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com
By June 4, 2021, 2:00 PM.

Classification: Protected A 180


mailto:northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com
file://Goa/shared/EDTT/NADC/NADC/1.2%20NADC%20Meetings/NAEL/1%20General/northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com

l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
' Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

Member Roundtable Updates

Please note below any updates that you want to record in the meeting package to be shared with the NAEL members.
It is recommended that maximum top three updates are included so that it allows all member communities share and
learn ideas and best practices efficiently and in less space. Items will be recorded as they are written and will be
included in the meeting package.

If you have items you wish to speak to during the meeting on June 11, 2021 (online) please email
northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com to arrange time on the agenda.

Member Community: Village of Rycroft

Contact: Mayor James Verquin

Urban Systems and Tri-line Contracting Services from Peace River started the sewer
lift station upgrade capital project the week of May 10. The project is moving along

! and we expect the job to be complete in June. We received an Alberta Municipal
Wastewater grant for the project.
MPA Engineering advertised the tender for our weir/water intake repair capital
5 project. We had 10 bids. MDP OQilfield Ltd. from Peace River was awarded the

contract on June 2 and will complete the work in August. We received a Disaster
Recovery Program grant for the project.

3 | New Line Industries will be re-lining a length of sewer pipe on 52" street in June. We
received a Municipal Sustainability grant for the project.

We sent in our MOST Grant (Covid funding) Statement of Financial Expenditures to
4 | Municipal Affairs. We sited a non-collection of $108,708 in reduced revenue (unpaid
2020 taxes to March 31, 2021) as our claim for the $66,971 grant.

5 | Rycroft will have a Municipal Accountability Program Audit in July

Please email your completed update to the NAEL at northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com
By June 4, 2021, 2:00 PM.

Classification: Protected A 181


mailto:northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com
file://Goa/shared/EDTT/NADC/NADC/1.2%20NADC%20Meetings/NAEL/1%20General/northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com

l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
R Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

Member Roundtable Updates

Please note below any updates that you want to record in the meeting package to be shared with the NAEL members.
It is recommended that maximum top three updates are included so that it allows all member communities share and
learn ideas and best practices efficiently and in less space. Items will be recorded as they are written and will be
included in the meeting package.

If you have items you wish to speak to during the meeting on June 11, 2021 (online) please email
northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com to arrange time on the agenda.

Member Community: County of Grande Prairie

Contact: Lesley Nielsen-Bjerke, Communications Manager 780-814-5090

Budget 2021: Smart and Compassionate

At our final budget deliberations in April, Council approved no tax rate increase for 2021. While the County
must still collect municipal taxes to fund essential services like fire, waste management, road maintenance
and water supply, we hope the hold on the tax rate will provide some relief. This is a budget that looks at
the now — it prioritizes maintaining essential services and programs and supports initiatives to help
decrease the burden on our residents during these challenging times. It’s also forward-thinking, ensuring
our investments support community sustainability and quality of life today and in the future.

Budget 2021 investment highlights include:

» About 56 per cent of the capital budget for road and bridge projects.

« $6 million for recreation; community; culture; library; seniors and special needs transportation; and
FCSS grants to community organizations and neighbouring municipalities, as outlined in our
Intermunicipal Collaboration Framework agreements.

* $6.7 million for critical infrastructure projects. This includes environmental improvements at the Clairmont
Centre for Recycling and Waste Management as well as new infrastructure to ensure safe and quality
drinking water in La Glace.

* $1.1 million for new or upgraded Regional Fire Service equipment to enhance public safety.

Managing surface water remains a priority of Council’s, after dealing with extensive flooding in 2018 and
2020. A policy for surface water management is now in place to help prevent future issues. Along with
significant investments in road projects and annual work to reduce the risk of flooding along County
roadways, the 2021 budget included $395,000 for Ditch Rehabilitation, $20,000 for Storm Drain
Maintenance, and an additional full-time equipment operator in Public Works.

Being mindful of circumstances and guidelines related to the pandemic, the County continues to create
and promote safe opportunities to engage families and people of all ages this summer. Council approved
waiving permit and inspection fees for County-based restaurants and food service businesses to install an
outdoor patio this summer, providing more spaces for families to enjoy.

Classification: Protected A 182


mailto:northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com

Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14

Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

Welcome Hythe!

In March, Hythe residents voted to dissolve and become a hamlet in the County of Grande Prairie, as the
Village is no longer viable and able to continue operating on its own. We extended a warm welcome to
Hythe citizens. They have long been our neighbours and friends, and now will be a part of our community.

The next step is for Provincial Cabinet to approve the dissolution with a formal Order in Council. At that
time, the Village of Hythe will be officially dissolved. We do not yet know when that will occur but are
already working with Hythe Administration to ensure a smooth transition and provide high quality municipal
services to our new hamlet.

Regional Collaboration

There are many ways the County works with our neighbouring municipalities. One of those ways — our
Intermunicipal Collaboration Framework agreements (ICFs) — formalize how we will share resources and
services, with each of those partnerships tailored to support the unique needs and priorities of each
community.

The end of 2020 marked the successful completion of six of our required seven ICFs with our neighbours.
3 Through collaborative discussions, we have now completed ICFs with Birch Hills County, Saddle Hills
County, MD of Greenview, and the towns of Sexsmith, Beaverlodge and Wembley.

At the beginning of May, we announced that the County and City were moving forward with mandated
arbitration to reach an agreement on our joint ICF. While the City and County identified areas of further
collaboration over the last few months, we were not able to reach an agreement related to cost-sharing for
services within the specified timeline. Our next step is to present our case to an arbitrator, alongside the
City, to finalize the framework.

Please email your completed update to the NAEL at northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com
By June 4, 2021, 2:00 PM.

Classification: Protected A 183


file://///Goa/shared/EDTT/NADC/NADC/1.2%20NADC%20Meetings/NAEL/1%20General/northernalbertaelectedleaders@gmail.com

NAEL

Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14

Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

DRAFT MINUTES
February 5, 2021
WebEx/Teleconference

Attendees

Marcel Auger MD of Opportunity

Rick Bastow Birch Hills County
Amber Bean Clear Hills County
Leanne Beaupre County of Grande Prairie
Donna Buchinski Town of Falher

Quinton Bufford Village of Nampa

Tom Burton RMA

Jackie Clayton City of Grande Prairie
April Doll Town of Manning
Roxann Dreger Village of Rycroft
Michelle Farris Town of Rainbow Lake
Sandra Fox MD of Fairview

Allan Georget Town of Spirit River
Daryl Greenbhill Town of Fairview

Jim Hailes Town of Fox Creek

Cindy Hockley Village of Berwyn

Janet Jabush AUMA

Peggy Johnson Municipal District of Fairview
Murray Kerik Municipal District of Lesser Slave River
Carolyn Kolebaba Northern Sunrise County
Myrna Lanctot Village of Donnelly

Boyd Langford Town of High Level

Vern Lymburner Town of Valleyview
Elaine Manzer Town of Peace River
Gerald Manzulenko Birch Hills County

Ken Matthews Big Lakes County

Crystal McAteer Town of High Level

Cary Merritt Saddle Hills County
Cindy Millar Northern Sunrise County
Brian Panasiuk Town of High Prairie
Kate Potter Town of Sexsmith

Len Racher Mackenzie County

Bob Regal Town of Grimshaw

Jim Rennie Woodlands County

Rod Risling Town of High Prairie

For NAEL Members’ internal use only.
Classification: Protected A

184

Page 1 of 10



N@EL

Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14

Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

Allan Rowe Clear Hills County

Greg Rycroft Town of Manning

Gary Rycroft Town of Beaverlodge
Dale Smith MD of Greenview

Rita Therriault MD of Smoky River

Peter Thomas Village of Rycroft

Terry Ungarian County of Northern Lights
Theresa Van Oort County of Northern Lights
Joulia Whittleton County of Grande Prairie
Bob Willing MD of Peace

Guests, Presenters and Observers:

- Marcel Maure, Fire Chief of MD of Smoky River

- Brian Turpin, President of Victim Services Alberta

- Terry Ungarian, Reeve for County of Northern Lights
- Al Kemmere, Senior Advisor, Alberta Counsel

- Paul MclLauchlin, President of RMA
- Tracy Allard, MLA for Grande Prairie
- Dan Williams, MLA for Peace River
- Pat Rehn, MLA for Lesser Slave Lake

- Todd Loewen, MLA for Central Peace-Notley
- David B. Hanson, MLA for Bonnyville-Cold Lake-St. Paul, Chair for Northern Alberta

Development Council (NADC)

Secretariat:

- Kim Pinnock, Manager, Northern Development
- Baiku Acharya, Sr. Northern Development Officer, Northern Development
- Lisa Williams, Administrative Assistant, Northern Development

1. Call Membership Meeting to Order

Chair, Jim Rennie, welcomed attendees and called the NAEL meeting to order at 1:02PM.
This meeting will be recorded, if there are no objections, no objections noted.

2. Adoption of Agenda
It was MOVED by Donna Buchinski THAT the agenda be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

3. Adoption of Consent Agenda

3.1. Draft NAEL Meeting Minutes — November 27, 2020

For NAEL Members’ internal use only.

Classification: Protected A

185

Page 2 of 10



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
— Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

0 Mayor Hailes, Town of Fox Creek, suggested to correct the minutes and add his name
under attendees’ as he attended the meeting.
3.2. Financial Statement - January 2021
O The account balance is $17, 044.94. Unchanged from the last meeting.
3.3. Sent- Invitation to Hon. Devin Dreeshen, Minister of Agriculture and Forestry

It was MOVED by Myrna Lanctot THAT the Minister Dreeshen be re-invited to attend the next
NAEL meeting.
CARRIED

3.4. Sent - Thank you letters — November 27, 2020
3.5. Sent - Invitation to northern MLAs in NAEL Region
3.6. Received - Letter from County of Northern Lights on Rural Health Care
3.7. Received - Letter from Big Lakes County on Doctor Recruitment in Northern Alberta
3.8. Received - Village of Rycroft’s letter to NAV Canada
3.9. Received - County of Northern Lights’ letter to NAV Canada
3.10. Received - Correspondence from MLA Allard
3.11. Received - Members’ Roundtable Updates — Received by Feb 1, 2021
0 No updates were received. Updates received after this date will be included in the post
meeting package.

It was MOVED by Carolyn Kolebaba THAT the consent agenda be adopted with the corrections
identified.
CARRIED

4. Flood Mitigation Trailer - MD of Smoky River
Presenter: Mr. Marcel Maure — Director of Protective Services/Fire Chief
e Key highlights from the presentation included:
0 Northwest Alberta has been facing overland flooding. Flooding occurred throughout the
north in 2020.
0 Mitigation is essential to protect property and infrastructure from the flooding.
0 A flood mitigation trailer gives communities the ability to protect some assets. There are
trailers available in the southern municipalities of the province.
O Early last year, a request was submitted and was accepted for a temporary trailer to be
assigned to the northwest.
0 Arequest submitted to have a trailer in the northwest full time was rejected.
0 A flood mitigation trailer was used to assist and protect infrastructure in the Peace River,
MD of Smoky River, Big Lakes County and Sexsmith floods.
— Combined 11 homes, 1 condominium complex and the Telus building were saved.
0 Following options were suggested for consideration :

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 3 of 10

Classification: Protected A
186



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

— The elected leaders to request that provincial leaders station a trailer in the north:
acquire a trailer or transfer one of the three trailers from the south to the north;

— Communities in the northwest gather funds and create a trailer; or

— One agency purchases a trailer and charges for the use.

e A brief Q&A session followed the presentation and included the discussions around cost of the
trailer and how funding supports in acquiring trailers for northwestern municipalities can be
accessed including from the provincial government and industry partners.

e Chair Jim Rennie asked the attending MLAs to provide their thoughts on this during their
updates.

e The presentation slide decks are to be forwarded to the NAEL members.

It was MOVED by Jim Hailes THAT NAEL send a letter to the appropriate ministries to ask for
clarification on the situation and to put forth our case to have one trailer in the north.
CARRIED

It was MOVED by Elaine Manzer THAT Fire Chief Maurie be sent a letter of thanks [including
outstanding questions].
CARRIED

5. Updates from Victim Services Alberta- MD of Smoky River

Presenter: Mr. Brian Turpin — President, Victim Services Alberta

e Key highlights from the presentation included:

0 The legislation change through the Bill 16: Victims of Crime Act to the Victims of Crime and
Public Safety Act, is impacting the victims’ crime fund. Previously the funds would come
from surcharges, now the government is taking the victims’ fund and using a portion to hire
new police officers and crown prosecutors.

0 Victim services is currently under review of its models of service delivery and funding. Some
unprecedented cuts are happening to the funding, even though it is a separate fund and
sustainable on its own.

0 Over the last six months many programs have been cut, including training.

0 The new regulation will allow no more than $1,000 per unit across the province; previously
in Peace River, the budget was $27,000.

0 Victim Services is hurting financially across the province, sadly the money is there for proper
funding. The government is deciding to use the money for crime reduction.

0 Consultations have been happening with the MLAs and government around support.

e A brief Q&A session followed the presentation and included the discussions around value of
victim services supports to the vulnerable ones, the impacts causing by the funding changes in
northwestern municipalities and how NAEL, RMA and AUMA can support advocating for the
Victim Services.

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 4 of 10
Classification: Protected A
187



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

e Chair Jim Rennie asked the attending MLAs to provide their thoughts on this during their
updates.
e President Turpin to forward available materials on this to share with the NAEL members.

It was MOVED by Michelle Farris THAT NAEL request a letter from Victim Services that NAEL, AUMA
and RMA members can use to further promote and advocate on behalf of Victim Services.
CARRIED

It was MOVED by Donna Buchinski THAT Victim Services President Turpin be sent a letter of thanks
[including outstanding questions].
CARRIED

6. Site C Dam Project and the Safety Concerns
Presenter: Terry Ungarian — Reeve, County of Northern Lights
e Key highlights from the presentation included:
0 BC Hydro is constructing an earth fill hydroelectric dam, the third one in BC on the Peace
River known as Site C Dam.
0 Concerns about the stability of the dam have recently come to the attention of our council.
— It is being constructed on unstable terrain.
— In 1980s, BC Utilities Commission indicated that BC did not need the electricity and
stated that the dam would have negative social and environmental impacts.
— The geotechnical risks are the key reasons why BC Hydro Board rejected the project in
the early 1990’s.
- It is facing massive cost overruns, the majority due to geotechnical problems and water
seepage.
- On October 21, 2020, it was recorded that the project faced serious geotechnical
problems due to its weak foundation and stability of the dam was at significant risk.
- A major engineering change was made in the configuration from a C formation to an L
in an effort to avoid some shield based soil conditions.
0 Municipalities along the banks of Peace River will surely suffer if the structure was to fail.
The effects on the residents and on the economy would be catastrophic.
0 Would like answers or assurances from our provincial government on their actions in
respect to this project.

e A brief Q&A session followed the presentation and included the discussions around importance
of transparency and conversations that happened between the two provinces considering the
impacts of construction on the communities along the Peace River.

0 County of Northern Lights can bring these concerns forward to the upcoming RMA
convention and have a motion put on the table.

e Chair Jim Rennie asked the attending MLAs to provide their thoughts on this during their
updates.

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 5 of 10

Classification: Protected A
188



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
— Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

e Reeve Ungarian to forward his presentation to share with the NAEL members.

It was MOVED by Carolyn Kolebaba THAT County of Northern Lights and RMA to bring forward any
opportunities for information as well as requests that NAEL could share.
CARRIED

It was MOVED by Myrna Lanctot THAT Reeve Ungarian be sent a letter of thanks [including
outstanding questions].
CARRIED

7. NAEL Chair Update
7.1. Health Care Concerns

e Chair Jim Rennie mentioned that there are different concerns about healthcare in the region
and proposed that the secretariat survey NAEL municipalities on health issues considering the
followings in the survey questionnaire:

0 health workforce challenges;

0 challenges facing your communities’ availability and access to health services; and

0 solutions your communities would like to see communicated to Alberta Health and Alberta
Health Services.

e Members discussed various health issues facing rural and northwest Alberta including health
professionals that are short in the region. They advised the survey be completed by March 15,
2021 focusing both on capturing specific issues and providing solutions.

e Big Lakes County sent a letter regarding health care concerns, specifically for our area,
including how our services have steadily gone downhill with the policy changes such as move
to regionalization and then to centralization.

It was MOVED by Myrna Lanctot THAT the NAEL secretariat survey NAEL members to identify and
summarize health related issues facing NAEL member municipalities.
CARRIED

7.2. NAV Can Update

e NAEL has forwarded the members a sample template letter for support for northern regional
air services.

e Town of Peace River Deputy Mayor, Elaine Manzer mentioned that the Peace River Airport is
under new management led by five regional business people with airport connections, who
took over managing the airport on January 1, 2021 for two years under the same financial
support of the previous management agreement.

7.3. Alberta Counsel Update

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 6 of 10
Classification: Protected A
189



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
— Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

e Chair Jim Rennie mentioned that the one-year contract, which NAEL was going to use Alberta
Counsel to advocate on our behalf including face-to-face meetings, has expired without much
happening due to COVID-19.

0 Alberta Counsel has reassured NAEL that they will extend the contract period for one year.

Presenter: Al Kemmere, Senior Advisor, Alberta Counsel
e Key highlights from the presentation included:

0 Alberta Counsel was formed in 2015 as a firm for advocacy, information sharing and
engagement and for providing legal services for a variety of clients.

0 Alberta Counsel created a balance when there was a gap on how to communicate and
become engaged with the government.

0 Key issues Alberta Counsel is working on are ID 349, transportation, infrastructure projects,
water and wastewater projects, health care, economic development.

0 Alberta Counsel provides information sessions, does polls, sends out newsletters, reviews
the provincial budget, and sends out that information based on their perspective to name a
few things.

0 Alberta Counsel can advocate on the issues facing northern Alberta such as health care,
transportation, new rail, policing costs, oil and gas development, caribou, municipal funding
and unpaid taxes.

e A brief Q&A session followed the presentation discussing trend over the last three years on the
peoples’ support on political parties in Alberta.

e Senior Advisor Kemmere to forward his presentation slide decks to share with the NAEL
members.

It was MOVED by Carolyn Kolebaba THAT NAEL accept Mr. Kemmere, Senior Advisor, Alberta
Counsel’s report as information and send a letter of thanks [including outstanding questions].
CARRIED

Questions for MLAs’ consideration
0 The Health Care Survey
0 Site Cdam in British Columbia
0 Victim Services Funding
0 Flood Mitigation Trailer

8. Northern Alberta Development Council (NADC) Updates
Presenter: NADC Chair, David B. Hanson — MLA for Bonnyville-Cold Lake- St. Paul
e Flood Mitigation
0 Put a call into the Chief of staff at Municipal Affairs; and was waiting to hear back.
e Victim Services Funding

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 7 of 10
Classification: Protected A
190



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
— Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

0 Heard some concerns when the Bill 16 first came forward, but have not heard anything
locally recently. Perhaps one of the other MLAs can provide an answer on that.
e Site CDam
O Left this to MLA Allard and MLA Loewen to comment on the dam.
e |D349

0 It has been ongoing for 12 years and involves funding from oil and gas revenue that was not
shared properly in an Improvement District. The Minister signed off the agreement with all
the municipalities involved in November.

e NADC Update

0 NADC will be meeting February 10 and 11, 2021.

0 The NADC is focusing on the development of northern corridors as part of key infrastructure
needed to facilitate access to new markets and opportunities for further development
within the region.

0 The Council is working on developing a northern strategy that not only identifies the issues
facing the north, such as developing a multi-modal economic corridor including affordable
and accessible broadband, but recommends an action plan for Council, government and the
region around economic diversification, workforce development and community
sustainability.

0 With a renewed and reinvigorated Council, we are eager to hear from you and to
understand how we can best position the north for both recovery and growth.

0 Chair looks forward to providing an update on our progress and some additional information
around regional engagements for the northern strategy in the coming weeks.

e Northern Health Care Challenges

0 The Minister of Health has asked for a review of the 2015 Starkey Report, a comprehensive
study on rural health care.

- MLA Hanson’s review revealed that the some issues raised in 2015 are still same today.

0 He has received letters from a number of municipalities with their health care concerns.

0 Asan MLA, he is working on reviewing the interview process for post-secondary schools as it
is geared toward urban students, which makes it difficult for rural students to get accepted.

o A brief Q&A session followed the NADC Chair’s update including questions related to the Rural

Health Review report completed previously by MLA Starkey several years ago.

It was MOVED by Terry Ungarian THAT NADC Chair, MLA Hanson be sent a letter of thanks
[including outstanding questions].
CARRIED

9. Attending Northern MLA Updates
Presenter: Tracy Allard, MLA for Grande Prairie
e ID 349 was finalized before Christmas. An issue for more than 12 years have been settled.
e COVID-19

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 8 of 10
Classification: Protected A
191



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
— Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

0 Has asked the government to provide data in real time to help make decisions at the
municipal level of governance and that areas effected be a part of the solution. Has also
asked to bring forward criteria for each stage of opening, rather than categories and
complicated rules.

Health Care

0 MLA Hanson answered that.

Site C Dam

0 MLA Loewen will respond.

NADC

0 The northern strategy plan will set up the north to be highlighted for their contributions
made to Alberta and will attract infrastructure dollars.

Victim Services

0 Was not on the call to hear the feedback, but has seen seen the effects of crime on
impacted victims from closely and am concerned about this issue. | could be provided with
the concerns and will be happy to take up that cause on behalf of NAEL as an elected
official.

Presenter: Dan Williams, MLA for Peace River

Site C Dam

0 Commited to getting NAEL a briefing and make sure that there is a response from the
Minister’s office.

Victim Services

0 MLA Allard committed to that

Presenter: Todd Loewen, MLA for Central Peace-Notley

Flood Mitigation Trailer

0 Has put out a call to Municipal Affairs.

Victim Services

0 MLA Allard is committed

Site C Dam

0 No information

Health Care

0 ltis time to see some action and things actually changing, rather than continuing to talk
about the shortage of physicians in rural Alberta.

Unpaid Taxes

0 ltis a big concern and MLA Loewen has been trying to get another meeting with Municipal
Affairs Minister.

COVID-19 and Economy

0 The economic crisis and COVID-19 have put us in a very difficult spot, but some silver linings
are being seen as the price of some farm and agricultural commodities are rising and

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 9 of 10
Classification: Protected A

192



l Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
206, 9621-96 Avenue, Bag 900-14
— Peace River, Alberta T8S 1T4

Phone: 780-624-6274 Fax: 780-624-6184

vaccination rates are increasing. Will continue to work with northern elected leaders and
our government advocating for the north and the region.

Presenter: Pat Rehn, MLA for Lesser Slave Lake
e Food Mitigation Trailer
0 Supports a flood mitigation trailer in the north and it should be obtained in a timely manner.
e Health Care
0 Has talked to many people in the area who are frustrated with health care.

A brief Q&A session followed after the attending MLAs’ updates. The discussions included the
followings:
e The COVID-19
0 Active case numbers are declining provincially, but they are increasing in northern region.
There is a need to be cautious.
e Completion of the new Grande Prairie Regional Hospital
0 ltis a 6to 9 month commissioning process. All equipment and every system need to be
tested. Due to COVID-19, impacts on deliveries delay and human resources occurred.
Resources have been diverted to COVID-19 response.

It was MOVED by Donna Buchinski THAT MLAs Allard, Williams, Rehn, and Loewen be sent a letter of
thanks [including outstanding questions].
CARRIED

10. Regional Updates/Standing Items
Chair Jim Rennie suggested that the items 10.1 — 10.4 be discussed in the next meeting due to time
constraint.

11. Next meeting
e Next NAEL virtual meeting was proposed for 1:00 — 3:00 PM on Friday, June 11, 2021.

It was MOVED by Carolyn Kolebaba THAT the next NAEL meeting be virtually held on
June 11, 2021 from 1:00PM — 3:00PM.
CARRIED

12. Adjournment
It was MOVED by Myrna Lanctot THAT the NAEL meeting be adjourned at 3:00PM.
CARRIED

For NAEL Members’ internal use only. Page 10 of 10
Classification: Protected A
193



COUNTY OF
#600, 7th Ave NW, PO Box 10, Manning AB TOH 2M0

X L ]
gy INOTrthern nghts e ol Proe 1-888.935.3481 "
LIGHTS , I8

g

June 23, 2021 65.10.17

David Conway

Community Relations Manager
Site C Project

BC Hydro

3333 - 22nd Avenue

Prince George, BC, V2N 1B4

Dear Mr. Conway,

The Site C dam project was discussed once again by the Council for the County of Northern
Lights at their regular meeting of June 22, 2021. At that time it was noted that while you had
provided the information items requested at the June 8% council meeting, Council understood
the full unredacted Milburn report, and the full unredacted France and Hoeg report would be
provided.

The Milburn report that was made public was apparently a condensed version of the actual
report that explored reasons for the multi billion dollar cost overruns and construction
problems at the site. The report which you provided was a more complete version, however
12 complete sections and 296 section pages of the appendix were readacted — basically all of it.

The unredacted France and Hoeg technical report was not included in the link, and there were
no Technical Advisory Reports for 2021 — and | believe you stated on June 8" that you were not
certain of the availability of those reports. What you sent were minutes of the Technical
Advisory Board without any attendees information. You also indicated there was no safety
plan specific to Site C yet, however you were to provide the plan for the WAC Bennet dam.

Our Council is still very concerned with the secrecy surrounding this project, particularly the
statement in the France and Hoeg report summary which states “The geogechnical
investigations for the project did not include the portion of the earth fill dam foundation
beneath the riverbed as it was not considered safe to use barge mounted equipment due to
river currents.” It’s confirmed again further on: “geotechnical investigations were limited to
areas outside of the riverbed”. So this tells us a multi billion dollar project was started without
knowing what was being built upon, until roughly 6 billion was spent and the river was diverted
because the process of gathering that information was “not considered safe”.

w2
=  ———————————---== = ————————— - —————————————————

Please visit our website at: www.countyofnorthernlights.com

194



David Conway
June 23, 2021
Page 2

As one of many municipalities located along the Peace river, we are extremely concerned with
the safety of this project, and with the ongoing lack of communication, not only from BC Hydro,
but from both the Alberta and BC government.

On behalf of the Council, | once again request the information promised previously, and for
ongoing communications with respect to the construction and future safety plans for this

project.

Thank you.

Yours truly,

%\‘.i

Terry Ungarian
Reeve

Cc: Honourable Jason Nixon
Minister of Environment and Parks

Carmen de la Chevrotiere
Environment and Parks

Chair of Northern Alberta Elected Leaders
Jim Rennie

Mr. Dan Williams, MLA Peace River

RMA District 4 members

195



WE ARE ALL STARS "

Dear STARS Municipal Supporter,

The Government of Alberta announced the release of a report Tuesday
regarding helicopter emergency service in the province, and | wanted to
ensure you had information about what this report means for STARS.

We are honoured that the province has recognized the value of the
specialized critical care that STARS provides patients. Building on our
legacy of service since 1985, we will continue to be there for patients
across Alberta. We look forward to working with Alberta Health Services
on the next steps in responding to the report’'s recommendations.

196



One of the recommendations of the report was that the provincial
government should provide 50 per cent of our yearly funding, up from the
23 per cent we are currently receiving.

Though we welcome this recommendation, it’s important for you to
know that it remains only a recommendation, and has not been
implemented at this point.

STARS simply could not exist without your support. Whether it’s through
our lottery, fundraising events, monthly giving or community investment
contributions, you fly along with us on every mission. You help ensure
we can be there for the next patient who needs the highest level of
critical care transport available in Alberta.

To you and all the donors who have supported us in the past, thank you.
Please know, your support of STARS remains critical today, and will

remain so even if our funding mix evolves.

If you have any questions about this announcement, please don’t
hesitate to reply to this email. | will ensure we follow up with you directly.

On behalf of everyone at STARS, thank you for entrusting us to serve
you and your loved ones.

Sincerely,

gd/,;, @Ukod

197



Mackenzie Applied Research Association
5901 River Road, P. O. Box 646
Fort Vermilion, Alberta TOH 1NO

July 8, 2021

The Reeve and the Council
4511- 46 Avenue

Box 640

Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO

Dear Mr. Josh Knelsen,

Invitation to the Commissioning of the Agronomy Center in Fort Vermilion

Mackenzie Applied Research Association (MARA) invites you to the commissioning of the
Agronomy Center in Fort Vermilion. We would like you to give a speech on “the importance of
agriculture investment in the county” Your thought would enable the industry players and
stakeholders to gain knowledge from your expertise and experience to boost research and
investment of the Ag sector in north Peace.

The commissioning of the Agronomy Center is scheduled for Wednesday, August 4, 2021, at 9
am in Fort Vermilion. We are expecting about 100 to 120-grain farmers, Scientists, and
stakeholders in the Ag Sector.

MARA received $ 300,000 from the Western Grain Research Foundation, Saskatoon, SK to
build the Agronomy Center to boost agronomy and soil health research and knowledge transfer
to local farmers through demonstrations and extension events. This would potentially lead to the
emergence of local appropriate technical innovations, increase income, and impact livelihood.

We look forward to the prospect of you speaking at the commissioning of the Agronomy Center.

Sincerely,

g

Greg Newman, MARA’s Board Chair

Tel: +1 780-927-3776, Fax: +1 780-927-4747
Email: manager@mackenzieresearch.ca Website: www.mackenzieresearch.ca

The Mackenzie Applied Research Association conducts applied crop, livestock and environmental research, including crop/forage variety
tests, field demonstrations and extension in the northernmost agricultural region of Alberta, Canada.

198


mailto:manager@mackenzieresearch.ca
http://www.mackenzieresearch.ca/

Stakeholder Breakdowns as % of Total - Fort Vermilion Detachment
Crime Data - January - June 2021

July-07-21

Beaver First Nation 3.0% Beaver First Nation 5.7%
Propert Little Red River Cree Nation 63.4% Federal / |Little Red River Cree Nation 48.6%
Crimey Mackenzie County 23.1% Provincial |Mackenzie County 36.9%
Tallcree First Nation 5.6% Statutes |Tallcree First Nation 3.2%
Undefined Zone* 4.9% Undefined Zone* 5.7%
Beaver First Nation 3.0% Beaver First Nation 0.9%
Persons Little Red River Cree Nation 77.9% Common [Little Red River Cree Nation 29.7%
Crime Mackenzie County 12.6% Police Mackenzie County 55.9%
Tallcree First Nation 4.8% Activities |Tallcree First Nation 4.5%
Undefined Zone* 1.7% Undefined Zone* 9.0%
Beaver First Nation 2.4% Beaver First Nation 3.4%
Little Red River Cree Nation 20.5% Little Red River Cree Nation 45.4%
Traffic Mackenzie County 69.6% TOTALS  |Mackenzie County 43.3%
Tallcree First Nation 2.7% Tallcree First Nation 3.7%
Undefined Zone* 4.9% Undefined Zone* 4.2%
Beaver First Nation 37.5%
Little Red River Cree Nation 12.5%
Drug - "
Offences Mackenzie County 50.0% Ul s
Tallcree First Nation 0.0% Nation, 3.7% Undefined
Undefined Zone* 0.0% Zone*, 4.2%
Beaver First Nation 5.8%
Other Little Red River Cree Nation 64.2% y—— Beaver First
Criminal  |Mackenzie County 22.9% S Nation, 3.4%
Code Offence|Tallcree First Nation 3.3% County, 43.3%
Undefined Zone* 0.0%

*Denotes where no zone or an incorrect zone was entered in PROS.

This Report contains information extracted from PROS. Any data (i.e. ZONE or ATOM) not correctly entered in PROS will NOT show up on this Report.

199



July-07-21

Fort Vermilion Detachment
Crime Data - January - June 2021

Break & Enter 10 Liquor Act 35
Theft of Motor Vehicle 16 Cannabis Act & Enforcement 3
Theft Over $5,000 0 Federal / Mental Health Act 79
Theft Under $5,000 10 . Coroner's Act - Sudden Death 7
Property Provincial -
. Possn Stn Goods 7 Child Welfare Act 0
Crime Statutes —
Fraud 13 Other Provincial Statute 152
Arson 6 Other Federal Statute 6
Mischief To Property 206 Total 282
Total 268 False Alarms 12
Assault 149 False/Abandoned 911 Call 56
Robbery/Extortion/Harassment/Threats 55 Common Abandoned Vehicles 0
Persons Sexual Offences 24 Police Persons Reported Missing 9
Crime Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 2 Activities Request to Locate 0
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 1 Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 34
Total 231 Total 111
Motor Vehicle Collisions 92
Impaired Related Offences 79
X - " Drug Off
Traffic Provincial Traffic Offences 445 rug o%e“cesother Criminal
Other Traffic Related Offences 18 Code
Total 634 14%
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 ’ Federal /
Drug Enforcement - Possession 1 Provincial
Drug Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 7 Statyres
Offences / 16%
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 Common
Total 8 Police
Breach of Peace 39 Activities
Persons Crime
Other Disturbing the Peace 67 13% %
L Fail to Comply & Breaches 102
Criminal - :
Offensive Weapons 9 Crime
Code Offence
Other Offence 23
Total 240

This Report contains information extracted from PROS. Any data (i.e. ZONE or ATOM) not correctly entered in PROS will NOT show up on this Report.

200




Fort Vermilion Detachment

Crime Data - January - June 2021

July-07-21

CATEGORY Reported Actual ClIrChg ClrOth Total Cir % Cir
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Robbery 2 2 2 0 2 100.0%
Sexual Assaults 16 14 12 0 12 85.7%
Other Sexual Offences 10 10 7 2 9 90.0%
Assault 175 149 62 37 99 66.4%
Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 2 2 2 0 2 100.0%
Extortion 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Criminal Harassment 9 7 0 0 0 0.0%
Uttering Threats 51 46 18 13 31 67.4%

TOTAL PERSONS 266 231 103 52 155 67.1%
Break & Enter 13 10 3 0 3 30.0%
Theft of Motor Vehicle 24 16 0 4 4 25.0%
Theft Over $5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft Under $5,000 13 10 1 3 4 40.0%
Possn Stn Goods 7 7 2 0 2 28.6%
Fraud 18 13 1 1 2 15.4%
Arson 6 6 1 0 1 16.7%
Mischief - Damage To Property 68 66 14 22 36 54.5%
Mischief - Other 151 140 0 61 61 43.6%

TOTAL PROPERTY 300 268 22 91 113 42.2%
Offensive Weapons 11 9 4 2 6 66.7%
Disturbing the Peace 71 67 2 24 26 38.8%
Fail to Comply & Breaches 103 102 95 5 100 98.0%
OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 27 23 5 11 16 69.6%

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 212 201 106 42 148 73.6%

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 778 700 231 185 416 59.4%
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Possession 1 1 0 1 1 100.0%
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 7 7 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Drugs 8 8 0 1 1 12.5%
Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Federal - General 6 6 2 2 4 66.7%

TOTAL FEDERAL 14 14 2 3 5 35.7%
Liquor Act 35 35 21 8 29 82.9%
Cannabis Act 3 3 2 0 2 66.7%
Mental Health Act 79 79 0 1 1 1.3%
Other Provincial Stats 163 159 24 22 46 28.9%

Total Provincial Stats 280 276 47 31 78 28.3%
Municipal By-laws Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Municipal By-laws 5 5 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Municipal 5 5 0 0 0 0.0%
Fatals 0 0 1 0 1 0.0%
Injury MVAS 12 12 4 1 5 41.7%
Property Damage MVAS (Reportable) 63 63 3 2 5 7.9%
Property Damage MVAS (Non Reportable) 17 17 0 2 2 11.8%

TOTAL MVAS 92 92 8 5 13 14.1%
Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Provincial Traffic 446 445 221 121 342 76.9%

Other Traffic 12 12 6 4 10 83.3%

Criminal Code Traffic 87 85 11 33 44 51.8%
False Alarms 12 Suspicious Person/Vehicle 34
False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 56 VSU Accepted 0
Persons Reported Missing 9 VSU Declined 0
Request to Locate 0 VSU Offered - Not Available 0
Abandoned Vehicles 0 VSU Proactive Referral 0

This Report contains information extracted from PROS. Any data (i.e. ZONE or ATOM) not correctly entered in PROS will NOT show up on this Report.

201




July-07-21

Mackenzie County - Fort Vermilion Detachment
Crime Data - January - June 2021

Break & Enter 5 Liquor Act 23
Theft of Motor Vehicle 8 Cannabis Act & Enforcement 1
Theft Over $5,000 0 Federal / Mental Health Act 17
Theft Under $5,000 3 . Coroner's Act - Sudden Death 3
Property Provincial -
. Possn Stn Goods 5 Child Welfare Act 0
Crime Statutes —
Fraud 3 Other Provincial Statute 58
Arson 0 Other Federal Statute 2
Mischief To Property 38 Total 104
Total 62 False Alarms 8
Assault 17 False/Abandoned 911 Call 29
Robbery/Extortion/Harassment/Threats 9 Common Abandoned Vehicles 0
Persons Sexual Offences 3 Police Persons Reported Missing 3
Crime Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 Activities Request to Locate 0
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 22
Total 29 Total 62
Motor Vehicle Collisions 69
Impaired Related Offences 26 Other Criminal
Traffic Provincial Traffic Offences 338 Drug Offences Code
Other Traffic Related Offences 8 £ \ 7% Federal /
Total 441 Provincial
. Statutes
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 14%
Drug Enforcement - Possession 1 Common
Drug _ L Police
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 3 T
Offences Activities
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 2%
Total 4
Breach of Peace 4 \Propmy
Other Disturbing the Peace 18 _Persons Cridniene
L Fail to Comply & Breaches 29 4% 8%
Criminal Offensive W 2
Code Offence ensive Weapons
Other Offence 3
Total 55

This Report contains information extracted from PROS. Any data (i.e. ZONE or ATOM) not correctly entered in PROS will NOT show up on this Report.

202




Mackenzie County - Fort Vermilion Detachment
Crime Data - January - June 2021

July-07-21

CATEGORY Reported Actual ClIrChg ClrOth Total Cir % Cir
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Robbery 1 1 1 0 1 100.0%
Sexual Assaults 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Other Sexual Offences 2 2 0 1 1 50.0%
Assault 23 17 4 6 10 58.8%
Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Extortion 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Criminal Harassment 5 3 0 0 0 0.0%
Uttering Threats 8 5 1 2 3 60.0%

TOTAL PERSONS 40 29 6 9 15 51.7%
Break & Enter 7 5 1 0 1 20.0%
Theft of Motor Vehicle 8 8 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft Over $5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft Under $5,000 3 3 0 1 1 33.3%
Possn Stn Goods 5 5 2 0 2 40.0%
Fraud 7 3 1 1 2 66.7%
Arson 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Mischief - Damage To Property 17 16 2 5 7 43.8%
Mischief - Other 23 22 0 10 10 45.5%

TOTAL PROPERTY 70 62 6 17 23 37.1%
Offensive Weapons 2 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Disturbing the Peace 19 18 2 12 14 77.8%
Fail to Comply & Breaches 30 29 29 1 30 103.4%
OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 5 3 1 1 2 66.7%

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 56 51 32 14 46 90.2%

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 166 142 44 40 84 59.2%
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Possession 1 1 0 1 1 100.0%
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 3 3 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Drugs 4 4 0 1 1 25.0%
Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Federal - General 2 2 1 0 1 50.0%

TOTAL FEDERAL 6 6 1 1 2 33.3%
Liquor Act 23 23 18 5 23 100.0%
Cannabis Act 1 1 1 0 1 100.0%
Mental Health Act 17 17 0 1 1 5.9%
Other Provincial Stats 61 61 21 8 29 47.5%

Total Provincial Stats 102 102 40 14 54 52.9%
Municipal By-laws Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Municipal By-laws 2 2 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Municipal 2 2 0 0 0 0.0%
Fatals 0 0 1 0 1 0.0%
Injury MVAS 9 9 4 0 4 44.4%
Property Damage MVAS (Reportable) 52 52 2 2 4 7.7%
Property Damage MVAS (Non Reportable) 8 8 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL MVAS 69 69 7 2 9 13.0%
Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Provincial Traffic 339 338 203 102 305 90.2%

Other Traffic 4 4 4 0 4 100.0%

Criminal Code Traffic 30 30 7 10 17 56.7%
False Alarms 8 Suspicious Person/Vehicle 22
False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 29 VSU Accepted 0
Persons Reported Missing 3 VSU Declined 0
Request to Locate 0 VSU Offered - Not Available 0
Abandoned Vehicles 0 VSU Proactive Referral 0

This Report contains information extracted from PROS. Any data (i.e. ZONE or ATOM) not correctly entered in PROS will NOT show up on this Report.

203




Hamlet of La Crete - Fort Vermilion Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)
January to June: 2018 - 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-07-21
% Chan % Chan Avg File +/-
CATEGORY Trend 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 zg 1c8 o gze1 zg 2% o g:l pi ) Y:ar/
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Robbery 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Sexual Assaults /v 0 1 0 1 N/A N/A 0.2
Other Sexual Offences / 0 0 0 1 N/A N/A 0.3
Assault N - 21 3 3 6 -71% 100% -4.5
Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction \ 1 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.3
Extortion 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Criminal Harassment \/_ 1 0 1 1 0% 0% 0.1
Uttering Threats /\ 2 5 8 3 50% -63% 0.6
TOTAL PERSONS N— 25 9 12 12 -52% 0% -3.6
Break & Enter / 0 0 0 2 N/A N/A 0.6
Theft of Motor Vehicle —_ 1 1 2 2 100% 0% 0.4
Theft Over $5,000 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Theft Under $5,000 \,-\ 5 1 2 0 -100% -100% -1.4
Possn Stn Goods 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Fraud ,/\ 2 4 9 1 -50% -89% 0.2
Arson 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Mischief - Damage To Property _/ 0 0 1 3 N/A 200% 1.0
Mischief - Other \/\ 6 3 9 2 -67% -78% -0.6
TOTAL PROPERTY ~\ 14 9 23 10 -29% -57% 0.2
Offensive Weapons /\ 0 4 3 0 N/A -100% -0.1
Disturbing the peace '/\ 0 1 6 1 N/A -83% 0.8
Fail to Comply & Breaches \’ 23 13 0 3 -87% N/A -7.3
OTHER CRIMINAL CODE k 0 3 0 0 N/A N/A -0.3
TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE \ 23 21 9 4 -83% -56% -6.9

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE

204



Hamlet of La Crete - Fort Vermilion Detachment

Crime Statistics (Actual)
January to June: 2018 - 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-07-21
% Chan % Chan Avg File +/-
CATEGORY Trend 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 zg 1c8 o gze1 zg 2% o g:l pi ) Y:ar/
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Drug Enforcement - Possession \ 1 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.3
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Total Drugs \ 1 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.3
Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Federal - General / 0 0 0 1 N/A N/A 0.3
TOTAL FEDERAL \_/ 1 0 0 1 0% N/A 0.0
Liquor Act —N 4 4 8 4 0% -50% 0.4
Cannabis Act A 0 1 1 0 N/A -100% 0.0
Mental Health Act \_——. 10 3 4 3 -70% -25% -2.0
Other Provincial Stats —_— 15 14 20 28 87% 40% 4.5
Total Provincial Stats — 29 22 33 35 21% 6% 2.9
Municipal By-laws Traffic \ 1 1 1 0 -100% -100% -0.3
Municipal By-laws \ 8 4 4 1 -88% -75% -2.1
Total Municipal \ 9 5 5 1 -89% -80% -2.4
Fatals 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Injury MVC /\__. 3 6 1 2 -33% 100% -0.8
Property Damage MVC (Reportable) - 20 21 15 16 -20% 7% -1.8
Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 3 3 3 2 -33% -33% -0.3
TOTAL MVC T 26 30 19 20 -23% 5% -2.9
Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Total Provincial Traffic e 82 125 94 122 49% 30% 8.9
Other Traffic N 18 4 1 1 -94% 0% -5.4
Criminal Code Traffic ~\ 7 4 10 4 -43% -60% -0.3
False Alarms \ 25 17 7 6 -76% -14% -6.7
False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act —~ 8 5 6 6 -25% 0% -0.5
Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property /\ 0 2 4 3 N/A -25% 1.1
Persons Reported Missing —_ 1 1 2 1 0% -50% 0.1

205




Hamlet of Fort Vermilion - Fort Vermilion Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)
January to June: 2018 - 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-07-21
% Chan % Chan Avg File +/-

CATEGORY Trend 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 zg 1c8 o gze1 zg 2% o g:l pi ) Y:ar/
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Robbery S/ 0 0 0 1 N/A N/A 0.3
Sexual Assaults k 0 4 0 0 N/A N/A -0.4
Other Sexual Offences N 0 1 0 1 N/A N/A 0.2
Assault ~"N| 9 26 10 47% 62% 1.0
Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction k 0 1 0 0 N/A N/A -0.1
Extortion 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Criminal Harassment /\/ 2 4 1 2 0% 100% -0.3
Uttering Threats /\ 2 5 3 1 -50% -67% -0.5

TOTAL PERSONS N 23 24 30 15 -35% -50% -1.8
Break & Enter ~ 3 2 5 3 0% -40% 0.3
Theft of Motor Vehicle N— 5 2 2 3 -40% 50% -0.6
Theft Over $5,000 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Theft Under $5,000 S 2 10 7 2 0% 71% 0.3
Possn Stn Goods '__/\ 0 1 5 2 N/A -60% 1.0
Fraud x 3 3 1 1 -67% 0% -0.8
Arson 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Mischief - Damage To Property _/ 0 0 5 10 N/A 100% 3.5
Mischief - Other /\ 32 70 35 20 -38% -43% -7.1

TOTAL PROPERTY T 45 88 60 41 -9% -32% -4.0
Offensive Weapons \/\ 2 0 5 0 -100% -100% -0.1
Disturbing the peace /\’. 20 46 6 13 -35% 117% -6.1
Fail to Comply & Breaches x 147 132 32 22 -85% -31% -47.5
OTHER CRIMINAL CODE /\ 0 3 4 2 N/A -50% 0.7

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE —\_ 169 181 47 37 -78% -21% -53.0

’\

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE

206



Hamlet of Fort Vermilion - Fort Vermilion Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)

January to June: 2018 - 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-07-21
% Chan % Chan Avg File +/-
CATEGORY Trend 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 zg 1c8 o gze1 zg 2% o g:l pi ) Y:ar/
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Drug Enforcement - Possession _/_ 0 0 1 1 N/A 0% 0.4
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking / 0 0 0 1 N/A N/A 0.3
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Total Drugs _/ 0 0 1 2 N/A 100% 0.7
Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Federal - General \_/ 2 0 0 1 -50% N/A -0.3
TOTAL FEDERAL \/ 2 0 1 3 50% 200% 0.4
Liquor Act v 8 8 4 8 0% 100% -0.4
Cannabis Act 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Mental Health Act TN~ 13 20 8 12 -8% 50% -1.5
Other Provincial Stats -~ 11 18 12 12 9% 0% -0.3
Total Provincial Stats “TN— 32 46 24 32 0% 33% -2.2
Municipal By-laws Traffic \ 2 1 0 0 -100% N/A -0.7
Municipal By-laws T N— 2 2 1 1 -50% 0% -0.4
Total Municipal \ 4 3 1 1 -75% 0% -1.1
Fatals 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Injury MVC /_\ 1 2 2 0 -100% -100% -0.3
Property Damage MVC (Reportable) /\ 7 11 3 1 -86% -67% -2.6
Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) \/ 2 1 0 1 -50% N/A -0.4
TOTAL MVC ’\ 10 14 5 2 -80% -60% -3.3
Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Total Provincial Traffic — 17 30 22 38 124% 73% 5.5
Other Traffic /\ 0 4 1 0 N/A -100% -0.3
Criminal Code Traffic - 12 16 11 8 -33% -27% -1.7
False Alarms \ 11 6 3 2 -82% -33% -3.0
False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act e 8 25 19 12 50% -37% 0.6
Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property ____/ 2 3 2 13 550% 550% 3.2
Persons Reported Missing ..--/\' 1 2 4 2 100% -50% 0.5

207




ROYAL CANADIAN MOUNTED POLICE » GENDARMERIE ROYALE DU CANADA

Fort Vermilion Provincial Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)
January to June: 2017 - 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-06-21

% Change | % Change | Avg File +/-

CATEGORY T 2017 | 201 201 202 2021
o rend 0 018 019 020 0 2017 -2021 | 2020-2021 | per Year

Homicides & Offences Related to Death \/-\ 5 0 1 2 1 -80% -50% -0.6
Robbery / 0 0 0 0 2 N/A N/A 0.4
Sexual Assaults - | 13 12 13 1 14 8% 27% 01
Other Sexual Offences / 3 5 7 11 9 200% -18% 1.8
Assault I 227 206 212 165 150 -34% -9% -19.5
Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction \/\, 2 1 5 1 2 0% 100% 0.0
Extortion / \ 0 1 1 1 0 N/A -100% 0.0
Criminal Harassment - 8 11 12 12 7 -13% -42% -0.1
Uttering Threats — 25 42 33 48 46 84% -4% 4.8
TOTAL PERSONS - 283 278 284 251 231 -18% -8% -13.1
Break & Enter NS 17 16 10 15 10 -41% -33% -1.5
Theft of Motor Vehicle ~ 17 12 25 16 15 -12% -6% 0.0
Theft Over $5,000 \/\ 1 0 0 1 0 -100% -100% 0.1
Theft Under $5,000 ;\ 42 24 24 24 10 -76% -58% -6.4
Possn Stn Goods \_/- 10 1 2 6 7 -30% 17% -0.1
Fraud S 14 9 12 14 13 -7% -7% 0.3
Arson ¥ 20 12 6 6 6 -70% 0% -3.4
Mischief - Damage To Property / 0 0 2 58 65 N/A 12% 18.8
Mischief - Other - 188 207 253 157 140 -26% -11% -14.6
TOTAL PROPERTY - 309 281 334 297 266 -14% -10% -7.0
Offensive Weapons /ﬁ 23 41 38 36 9 -61% -75% -3.3
Disturbing the peace _/\/ 64 59 91 32 67 5% 109% -2.1
Fail to Comply & Breaches —_\__ 293 322 296 122 99 -66% -19% -58.8
OTHER CRIMINAL CODE W 34 15 33 14 23 -32% 64% -2.3
TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE —\—- 414 437 458 204 198 -52% -3% -66.5

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE

208



E I : : RﬂYAL CENJ\DIAN Mﬂi ﬁD PﬁLICE . ﬁENDJ\RMEH}E ROYALE DU CANADA :

Crime Statistics (Actual)
January to June: 2017 - 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-06-21
% Change | % Change | AvgFile +/-
CATEGORY Trend 2007 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 [0 gz 2020 zgz ) pger Year/
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Drug Enforcement - Possession \/_ 8 6 0 2 1 -88% -50% -1.8
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking F/ 1 2 2 2 7 600% 250% 1.2
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Total Drugs NS 9 8 2 4 8 -11% 100% 0.6
Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Federal - General /\/ 12 17 6 0 6 -50% N/A -2.9
TOTAL FEDERAL ’\/ 21 25 8 4 14 -33% 250% -3.5
Liquor Act \N 60 28 41 23 35 -42% 52% -5.5
Cannabis Act _/_/ 0 0 1 1 3 N/A 200% 0.7
Mental Health Act _ 52 61 65 54 79 52% 46% 4.7
Other Provincial Stats N~ 167 105 135 109 156 -7% 43% -1.8
Total Provincial Stats e 279 194 242 187 273 -2% 46% -1.9
Municipal By-laws Traffic /\ 0 3 3 2 0 N/A -100% -0.1
Municipal By-laws /\_ 5 13 17 6 5 0% -17% -0.7
Total Municipal /\ 5 16 20 8 5 0% -38% -0.8
Fatals / \ 0 1 0 0 0 N/A N/A -0.1
Injury MVC - 15 18 22 16 12 -20% -25% 0.8
Property Damage MVC (Reportable) - 61 78 78 60 62 2% 3% -1.6
Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) N 5 19 16 9 17 240% 89% 1.4
TOTAL MVC T 81 116 116 85 91 12% 7% -1.1
Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) / 0 0 0 0 21 N/A N/A 4.2
Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Total Provincial Traffic /v 165 307 555 301 463 181% 54% 59.0
Other Traffic /\_ 14 43 57 15 12 -14% -20% -3.2
Criminal Code Traffic — 103 920 177 115 85 -17% -26% -1.1
False Alarms X 61 37 25 13 12 -80% -8% -12.2
False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act -/-—\ 44 41 83 89 56 27% -37% 7.2
Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property "\/ 18 23 7 15 34 89% 127% 2.4
Persons Reported Missing T~ 15 18 15 14 9 -40% -36% 1.6
Search Warrants ~\]| 3 2 2 3 1 -67% -67% 0.3
Spousal Abuse - Survey Code (Reported) - 110 123 127 108 84 -24% -22% -6.7
Form 10 (MHA) (Reported) /\ 0 0 0 2 1 N/A -50% 0.4

209



Fort Vermilion Provincial Detachment

Crime Statistics (Actual)
June: 2017 - 2021

ROYAL CANADIAN MOUNTED POLICE » GENDARMERIE ROYALE DU CANADA

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-06-21
% Change | % Change | AvgFile +/-
CATEGORY Trend 2007 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | " 2521 2020 2521 pir Ven r/
Homicides & Offences Related to Death / \ 0 0 0 1 0 N/A -100% 0.1
Robbery 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Sexual Assaults \/\ 3 2 1 2 1 -67% -50% -0.4
Other Sexual Offences \_/\ 2 0 0 1 0 -100% -100% -0.3
Assault - 41 33 41 41 33 -20% -20% -0.8
Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction \ 1 0 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.2
Extortion 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Criminal Harassment T~ 2 3 2 3 2 0% -33% 0.0
Uttering Threats /J\ 3 6 4 13 10 233% -23% 2.1
TOTAL PERSONS - 52 44 48 61 46 -12% -25% 0.5
Break & Enter "\_/ 2 3 1 1 4 100% 300% 0.2
Theft of Motor Vehicle - 4 4 5 4 5 25% 25% 0.2
Theft Over $5,000 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Theft Under $5,000 S~ 9 5 4 7 1 -89% -86% 1.4
Possn Stn Goods N\ 10 1 0 1 1 -90% 0% -1.8
Fraud \/_ 4 2 1 3 3 -25% 0% 0.1
Arson /\/— 1 3 0 2 2 100% 0% 0.1
Mischief - Damage To Property / 0 0 1 17 20 N/A 18% 5.7
Mischief - Other - 34 37 57 46 34 0% -26% 0.9
TOTAL PROPERTY T 64 55 69 81 70 9% -14% 3.8
Offensive Weapons \/—‘\ 16 5 12 14 1 -94% -93% -2.1
Disturbing the peace "'/\/ 13 16 26 10 21 62% 110% 1.0
Fail to Comply & Breaches /\ 25 47 66 34 15 -40% -56% -3.3
OTHER CRIMINAL CODE W 9 1 9 6 6 -33% 0% -0.1
TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE -\ 63 69 113 64 43 -32% -33% -4.5

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE

210




E I : : RﬂYAL CENJ\DIAN Mﬂi ﬁD PﬁLICE . ﬁENDJ\RMEH}E ROYALE DU CANADA :

Crime Statistics (Actual)
June: 2017 - 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-06-21
% Change | % Change | AvgFile +/-
CATEGORY Trend 2007 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | " zgz 2020 zgz ) pger Ven r/
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Drug Enforcement - Possession \ 1 0 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.2
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking / 0 0 0 0 2 N/A N/A 0.4
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Total Drugs LN / 1 0 0 0 2 100% N/A 0.2
Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Federal - General \/\’ 6 1 3 0 1 -83% N/A -1.1
TOTAL FEDERAL \’\/ 7 1 3 0 3 -57% N/A -0.9
Liquor Act \f\/ 11 4 6 1 10 -9% 900% -0.5
Cannabis Act 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Mental Health Act \/ 16 12 6 14 24 50% 71% 1.8
Other Provincial Stats N 3 15 35 2 31 3% 41% 0.9
Total Provincial Stats N~ 57 31 47 37 65 14% 76% 2.2
Municipal By-laws Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Municipal By-laws /\_’ 1 6 8 0 1 0% N/A -0.6
Total Municipal /\_ 1 6 8 0 1 0% N/A -0.6
Fatals 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Injury MVC /\— 1 5 6 3 3 200% 0% 0.2
Property Damage MVC (Reportable) /-—- 7 10 13 14 16 129% 14% 2.2
Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) J 1 0 0 2 5 400% 150% 1.0
TOTAL MVC /-’ 9 15 19 19 24 167% 26% 3.4
Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) / 0 0 0 0 7 N/A N/A 1.4
Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Total Provincial Traffic /\f 19 56 157 78 106 458% 36% 19.6
Other Traffic /\_ 1 8 18 1 2 100% 100% -0.5
Criminal Code Traffic _._/\- 15 17 49 26 19 27% -27% 1.7
False Alarms T/— 10 8 9 5 5 -50% 0% -1.3
False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act J_\ 9 6 24 23 6 -33% -74% 1.1
Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property \/ 5 0 3 6 11 120% 83% 1.8
Persons Reported Missing \/\ 3 2 4 3 1 -67% -67% -0.3
Search Warrants _\_ 1 1 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.3
Spousal Abuse - Survey Code (Reported) |~~~ | 23 29 21 30 14 -39% -53% 1.7
Form 10 (MHA) (Reported) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

211



All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-06-21
Category Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 FLAG
Theft Motor Vehicle (Total) ~ = 17 12 25 16 15 Within Norm
Auto \/_\ 1 0 2 2 0 Within Norm
Truck \/ 4 2 1 2 3 Within Norm
SUv / 0 0 0 1 1 Issue
Van \/\/ 1 0 1 0 2 Issue
Motorcycle 0 0 0 0 0 Within Norm
Other \/\’ 6 2 7 4 5 Within Norm
Take Auto without Consent /\ 5 8 14 7 4 Within Norm
Break and Enter (Total)* o 17 16 10 15 10 Within Norm
P S—
Business 2 3 2 2 2 Within Norm
Residence T~ 11 8 6 8 7 Within Norm
Cottage or Seasonal Residence \ 1 1 1 1 0 Within Norm
Other 0 0 0 0 0 Within Norm
Theft Over & Under $5,000 (Total) \__\ 43 24 24 25 10 Within Norm
Theft from a motor vehicle \/ 6 2 1 3 4 Within Norm
Shoplifting \A 6 2 1 2 1 Within Norm
Mail Theft (includes all Mail offences) /N 0 0 0 1 0 Within Norm
Theft of bicycle \_ 1 0 0 0 0 Within Norm
Other Theft \—\ 30 20 22 19 5 Within Norm
——
Mischief To Property 188 207 255 215 205 Within Norm
Suspicious Person/ Vehicle/ Property ’\/ 18 23 7 15 34 Issue
Fail to Comply/Breach ""\ 293 322 296 122 99 Within Norm
Wellbeing Check /‘ 8 16 34 33 31 Within Norm
—_—
Mental Health Act 52 61 65 54 79 Issue
False Alarms \\ 61 37 25 13 12 Within Norm
Traffic Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 FLAG
Roadside Suspensions - alcohol related - No grounds to charge* /\’ 0 2 10 2 4 Within Norm
Occupant Restraint/Seatbelt Violations* J\/ 5 3 11 5 19 Issue
Speeding Violations* N 12 64 68 32 72 Within Norm
Intersection Related Violations* /\/ 4 7 13 7 15 Issue
Other Non-Moving Violation* /\’ 44 112 218 118 151 Within Norm
Pursuits** _/\/ 3 3 5 1 3 Within Norm
Other CC Traffic** —/\ 11 11 32 17 3 Within Norm

*"Actual" **"Reported"

Categories flagged with "Issue" only indicate that the current number of offences are higher the statistical norm based on previous years.

212




Fort Vermilion Provincial Detachment - Break and Enters (includes unlawfully in a dwelling place)

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-06-21
2020
Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Actuals 2 4 3 0 5 1 5 3 3 1 5 3
Running Total 2 6 9 9 14 15 20 23 26 27 32 35
Quarter 9 6 11 9
2021
Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Actuals 2 2 1 0 1 4
Running Total 2 4 5 5 6 10
Quarter 5 5 TBD TBD
Year over Year
% Change 0% -33% | -44% | -44% | -57% | -33%

Fort Vermilion Provincial Detachment - Theft of Motor Vehicles (includes taking without consent)

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-06-21
2020
Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Actuals 5 2 3 1 1 4 6 6 1 5 3 4
Running Total 5 7 10 11 12 16 22 28 29 34 37 41
Quarter 10 6 13 12
2021
Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Actuals 4 0 1 3 2 5
Running Total 4 4 5 8 10 15
Quarter 5 10 TBD TBD
Year over Year
% Change -20% | -43% | -50% | -27% | -17% -6%

213



Fort Vermilion Provincial Detachment - Theft Under $5,000
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-06-21
2020
Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Actuals 2 8 3 0 4 7 9 4 3 9 1 3
Running Total 2 10 13 13 17 24 33 37 40 49 50 53
Quarter 13 11 16 13
2021
Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Actuals 3 1 2 2 1 1
Running Total 3 4 6 8 9 10
Quarter 6 4 TBD TBD
Year over Year
% Change 50% -60% | -54% | -38% | -47% | -58%
Fort Vermilion Provincial Detachment - Theft from Motor Vehicles
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-06-21
2020
Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Actuals 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 1 1 3 0 1
Running Total 0 1 2 2 2 3 4 5 6 9 9 10
Quarter 2 1 3 4
2021
Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Actuals 2 0 1 0 1 0
Running Total 2 2 3 3 4 4
Quarter 3 1 TBD TBD
Year over Year
% Change 100% 50% 50% 100% 33%

214




Fort Vermilion Provincial Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)

Q2: 2017 - 2021

ROYAL CANADIAN MOUNTED POLICE « GENDARMERIE ROYALE DU CANADA y
Ee = = == == = —————= = = = s ——————

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-06-21
CATEGORY Trend 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 2‘? 1C7h_a:§2e ) z‘g’zih_a:g: ) A;i ::::;/ )
Homicides & Offences Related to Death \_’_ 5 0 0 1 1 -80% 0% -0.7
Robbery 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Sexual Assaults \-f"'\-/ 7 4 6 4 10 43% 150% 0.6
Other Sexual Offences N 2 3 5 2 5 150% 150% 0.5
Assault T 138 113 94 92 90 -35% -2% -11.7
Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction \/¥ 1 0 2 1 1 0% 0% 0.1
Extortion / \ 0 0 0 1 0 N/A -100% 0.1
Criminal Harassment s ~ 5 9 9 9 5 0% -44% 0.0
Uttering Threats ,J 11 16 11 24 37 236% 54% 6.0
TOTAL PERSONS B 169 145 127 134 149 -12% 11% -5.1
Break & Enter /\—-- 7 12 6 6 5 -29% -17% -1.0
Theft of Motor Vehicle NN\~ 15 6 15 6 10 -33% 67% -1.0
Theft Over $5,000 \ 1 0 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.2
Theft Under $5,000 \_.\ 33 11 10 11 4 -88% -64% -5.8
Possn Stn Goods \ 10 1 2 1 1 -90% 0% -1.8
Fraud \/\ 1 4 2 7 5 -55% -29% -0.9
Arson . 17 10 3 4 3 -82% -25% -3.4
Mischief - Damage To Property / 0 0 2 41 42 N/A 2% 12.5
Mischief - Other - N— 108 119 148 77 83 -23% 8% -9.2
TOTAL PROPERTY - 202 163 188 153 153 -24% 0% -10.8
Offensive Weapons —/\ 21 19 24 32 6 -71% -81% -1.7
Disturbing the peace —/\/ 38 42 73 16 51 34% 219% 0.0
Fail to Comply & Breaches ,\\_ 158 197 148 62 55 -65% -11% -34.1
OTHER CRIMINAL CODE NN~ 20 13 22 11 16 -20% 45% -1.0
TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE -—_\—- 237 271 267 121 128 -46% 6% -36.8

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE

215




All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" July-06-21
% Change % Change | Avg File +/-
CATEGORY Trend 2007 | 2018 | 2009 | 2020 | 2021 | " zgz | 2020 .2 gz ) pi Yes r/
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Drug Enforcement - Possession \/\ 4 1 0 1 0 -100% -100% -0.8
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking _/_/ 1 1 2 2 3 200% 50% 0.5
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Total Drugs \—f- 5 2 2 3 3 -40% 0% -0.3
Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Federal - General \/\/ 9 2 4 0 3 -67% N/A -1.4
TOTAL FEDERAL \~ 14 4 6 3 6 -57% 100% -1.7
Liquor Act \f\-— 37 16 23 15 19 -49% 27% -3.7
Cannabis Act / 0 0 1 1 1 N/A 0% 0.3
Mental Health Act — 31 33 33 27 43 39% 59% 1.8
Other Provincial Stats T es 61 81 66 82 7% 24% 0.7
Total Provincial Stats T~ 156 110 138 109 145 -7% 33% -2.3
Municipal By-laws Traffic M 0 2 1 1 0 N/A -100% -0.1
Municipal By-laws /\_ 3 9 13 5 4 33% -20% -0.2
Total Municipal /\ 3 11 14 6 4 33% -33% -0.3
Fatals /\ 0 1 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.1
Injury MVC /-\ 10 13 14 9 5 -50% -44% -1.4
Property Damage MVC (Reportable) o 23 32 34 24 36 57% 50% 1.8
Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) —/\/ 3 4 6 4 9 200% 125% 1.2
TOTAL MVC i 36 50 54 37 50 39% 35% 1.5
Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) / 0 0 0 0 11 N/A N/A 2.2
Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0
Total Provincial Traffic /v 86 185 326 195 305 255% 56% 44.8
Other Traffic /—\ 4 25 29 8 5 25% -38% -1.5
Criminal Code Traffic A 52 61 100 72 48 -8% -33% 0.3
False Alarms \—\_ 35 16 19 9 10 -71% 11% -5.7
False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act _/\ 23 21 48 59 31 35% -47% 5.4
Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property N 13 17 6 11 18 38% 64% 0.4
Persons Reported Missing —— 12 9 9 5 6 -50% 20% -1.6
Search Warrants N—"N| 2 1 1 2 1 -50% -50% -0.1
Spousal Abuse - Survey Code (Reported) |~ —~ | 62 72 58 60 48 -23% -20% -4.0
Form 10 (MHA) (Reported) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

216




Mackenzie County - Fort Vermilion Detachment

Crime Data - June 2021

July-06-21

CATEGORY Reported Actual ClrChg CirOth Total CIr % Clr
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Robbery 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Sexual Assaults 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Other Sexual Offences 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Assault 7 6 1 1 2 33.3%
Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Extortion 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Criminal Harassment 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Uttering Threats 2 1 0 1 1 100.0%

TOTAL PERSONS 11 9 1 2 3 33.3%
Break & Enter 2 2 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft of Motor Vehicle 2 2 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft Over $5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft Under $5,000 1 1 0 1 1 100.0%
Possn Stn Goods 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Fraud 0 0 0 1 1 0.0%
Arson 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Mischief - Damage To Property 7 6 1 3 4 66.7%
Mischief - Other 5 5 0 4 4 80.0%

TOTAL PROPERTY 18 17 1 9 10 58.8%
Offensive Weapons 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Disturbing the Peace 6 5 1 4 5 100.0%
Fail to Comply & Breaches 7 7 6 1 7 100.0%
OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 1 0 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 14 12 7 5 12 100.0%

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 43 38 9 16 25 65.8%
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Possession 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Drugs 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Federal - General 1 1 1 0 1 100.0%

TOTAL FEDERAL 1 1 1 0 1 100.0%
Liquor Act 7 7 6 1 7 100.0%
Cannabis Act 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Mental Health Act 5 5 0 0 0 0.0%
Other Provincial Stats 18 18 9 5 14 77.8%

Total Provincial Stats 30 30 15 6 21 70.0%
Municipal By-laws Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Municipal By-laws 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Municipal 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Fatals 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Injury MVAS 3 3 1 0 1 33.3%
Property Damage MVAS (Reportable) 15 15 1 1 2 13.3%
Property Damage MVAS (Non Reportable) 2 2 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL MVAS 20 20 2 1 3 15.0%
Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Provincial Traffic 67 67 37 23 60 89.6%

Other Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Criminal Code Traffic 3 0 2 2 66.7%
False Alarms 4 Suspicious Person/Vehicle 7
False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 3 VSU Accepted 0
Persons Reported Missing 0 VSU Declined 0
Request to Locate 0 VSU Offered - Not Available 0
Abandoned Vehicles 0 VSU Proactive Referral 0

This Report contains information extracted from PROS. Any data (i.e. ZONE or ATOM) not correctly entered in PROS will NOT show up on this Report.

217




Mackenzie County - Fort Vermilion Detachment
Crime Data - June 2021

July-06-21

Break & Enter 2 Liquor Act 7
Theft of Motor Vehicle 2 Cannabis Act & Enforcement 0
Theft Over $5,000 0 Federal / Mental Health Act 5
Propert Theft Under $5,000 1 Provincial Coroner's Act - Sudden Death 0
Cr?mey Possn Stn Goods 1 Statut Child Welfare Act 0
Fraud 0 atutes Other Provincial Statute 18
Arson 0 Other Federal Statute 1
Mischief To Property 11 Total 31
Total 17 False Alarms 4
Assault 6 False/Abandoned 911 Call 3
Robbery/Extortion/Harassment/Threats 2 Common Abandoned Vehicles 0
Persons Sexual Offences 1 Police Persons Reported Missing 0
Crime Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 Activities Request to Locate 0
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 7
Total 9 Total 14
Motor Vehicle Collisions 20
Impaired Related Offences 2 -
Traffic Provincial Traffic Offences 67 @it er Federal /
riminal Code Provincial
Other Traffic Related Offences 1 7% o ——
Total 90 18%
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 c‘;mlfm“
Drug Enforcement - Possession 0 Ac: '.i?es
Drug — __—Activiti
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 0 8%
Offences
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 Drug Offences Property
Total 0 0% L Crime
Breach of Peace 1 10%
Other Disturbing the Peace 5 SN,
Criminal Fail to Comply & Breaches 7 5%
Code Offensive Weapons 0
Offence Other Offence 0
Total 13

This Report contains information extracted from PROS. Any data (i.e. ZONE or ATOM) not correctly entered in PROS will NOT show up on this Report.

218




Hamlet of La Crete - Fort Vermilion Detachment

Crime Data - June 2021

July-06-21

CATEGORY Reported Actual ClrChg CirOth Total CIr % Clr
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Robbery 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Sexual Assaults 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Other Sexual Offences 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Assault 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Extortion 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Criminal Harassment 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Uttering Threats 1 1 0 1 1 100.0%

TOTAL PERSONS 2 2 0 1 1 50.0%
Break & Enter 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft of Motor Vehicle 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft Over $5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft Under $5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Possn Stn Goods 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Fraud 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Arson 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Mischief - Damage To Property 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Mischief - Other 1 1 0 1 1 100.0%

TOTAL PROPERTY 2 2 0 1 1 50.0%
Offensive Weapons 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Disturbing the Peace 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Fail to Comply & Breaches 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 4 4 0 2 2 50.0%
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Possession 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Drugs 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Federal - General 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL FEDERAL 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Liquor Act 1 1 1 0 1 100.0%
Cannabis Act 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Mental Health Act 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Other Provincial Stats 5 5 2 1 3 60.0%

Total Provincial Stats 7 7 3 1 4 57.1%
Municipal By-laws Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Municipal By-laws 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Municipal 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Fatals 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Injury MVAS 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Property Damage MVAS (Reportable) 6 6 0 1 1 16.7%
Property Damage MVAS (Non Reportable) 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL MVAS 7 7 0 1 1 14.3%
Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Provincial Traffic 20 20 11 8 19 95.0%

Other Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Criminal Code Traffic 1 1 0 1 1 100.0%
False Alarms 4 Suspicious Person/Vehicle 0
False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 1 VSU Accepted 0
Persons Reported Missing 0 VSU Declined 0
Request to Locate 0 VSU Offered - Not Available 0
Abandoned Vehicles 0 VSU Proactive Referral 0

This Report contains information extracted from PROS. Any data (i.e. ZONE or ATOM) not correctly entered in PROS will NOT show up on this Report.

219




Hamlet of La Crete - Fort Vermilion Detachment
Crime Data - June 2021

July-06-21

Break & Enter 0 Liquor Act 1
Theft of Motor Vehicle 0 Cannabis Act & Enforcement 0
Theft Over $5,000 0 Federal / Mental Health Act 1
Property Theft Under $5,000 0 Provincial Coroner's Act - Sudden Death 0
Crime Possn Stn Goods 0 Statutes Child Welfare Act 0
Fraud 0 Other Provincial Statute 5
Arson 0 Other Federal Statute 0
Mischief To Property 2 Total 7
Total 2 False Alarms 4
Assault 1 False/Abandoned 911 Call 1
Robbery/Extortion/Harassment/Threats 1 Common Abandoned Vehicles 0
Persons Sexual Offences 0 Police Persons Reported Missing 0
Crime Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 Activities Request to Locate 0
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 0
Total 2 Total 5
Motor Vehicle Collisions 7
Impaired Related Offences 1
Traffic Provincial Traffic Offences 20 :ede.ral./
rovincial
Other Traffic Related Offences 0 Statutes
Total 28 Other / 16%
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 Criminal Code
Drug Enforcement - Possession 0 2 Common
Drug Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 0 A;?‘I,Iiiiees
Offences Drug Enforcement - Other 0 = 11%
Total o Property
Breach _of Peace 0 Drug Offences Crime
Other Disturbing the Peace 0 0% BN ol
Criminal Fail to Comply & Breaches 0 5%
Code Offensive Weapons 0
Offence Other Offence 0
Total 0

This Report contains information extracted from PROS. Any data (i.e. ZONE or ATOM) not correctly entered in PROS will NOT show up on this Report.

220




Hamlet of Fort Vermilion - Fort Vermilion Detachment

Crime Data - June 2021

July-06-21

CATEGORY Reported Actual ClrChg CirOth Total CIr % Clr
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Robbery 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Sexual Assaults 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Other Sexual Offences 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Assault 7 5 1 1 2 40.0%
Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Extortion 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Criminal Harassment 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Uttering Threats 1 0 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL PERSONS 10 7 1 1 2 28.6%
Break & Enter 2 2 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft of Motor Vehicle 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft Over $5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Theft Under $5,000 1 1 0 1 1 100.0%
Possn Stn Goods 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
Fraud 0 0 0 1 1 0.0%
Arson 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Mischief - Damage To Property 4 3 0 3 3 100.0%
Mischief - Other 4 4 0 3 3 75.0%

TOTAL PROPERTY 13 12 0 8 8 66.7%
Offensive Weapons 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Disturbing the Peace 3 3 1 2 3 100.0%
Fail to Comply & Breaches 7 7 6 1 7 100.0%
OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 1 0 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 11 10 7 3 10 100.0%

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 34 29 8 12 20 69.0%
Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Possession 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Drugs 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Federal - General 1 1 1 0 1 100.0%

TOTAL FEDERAL 1 1 1 0 1 100.0%
Liquor Act 3 3 2 1 3 100.0%
Cannabis Act 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Mental Health Act 3 3 0 0 0 0.0%
Other Provincial Stats 4 4 1 2 3 75.0%

Total Provincial Stats 10 10 3 3 6 60.0%
Municipal By-laws Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Municipal By-laws 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Municipal 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Fatals 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Injury MVAS 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Property Damage MVAS (Reportable) 1 1 1 0 1 100.0%
Property Damage MVAS (Non Reportable) 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL MVAS 1 1 1 0 1 100.0%
Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Provincial Traffic 10 10 5 1 6 60.0%

Other Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Criminal Code Traffic 1 1 0 0 0 0.0%
False Alarms 0 Suspicious Person/Vehicle 4
False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 1 VSU Accepted 0
Persons Reported Missing 0 VSU Declined 0
Request to Locate 0 VSU Offered - Not Available 0
Abandoned Vehicles 0 VSU Proactive Referral 0

This Report contains information extracted from PROS. Any data (i.e. ZONE or ATOM) not correctly entered in PROS will NOT show up on this Report.

221




July-06-21

Hamlet of Fort Vermilion - Fort Vermilion Detachment
Crime Data - June 2021

Break & Enter 2 Liquor Act 3
Theft of Motor Vehicle 1 Cannabis Act & Enforcement 0
Theft Over $5,000 0 Federal / Mental Health Act 3
Property Theft Under $5,000 1 Provincial Coroner's Act - Sudden Death 0
Crime Possn Stn Goods 1 Statutes Child Welfare Act 0
Fraud 0 Other Provincial Statute 4
Arson 0 Other Federal Statute 1
Mischief To Property 7 Total 11
Total 12 False Alarms 0
Assault 5 False/Abandoned 911 Call 1
Robbery/Extortion/Harassment/Threats 1 Common Abandoned Vehicles 0
Persons Sexual Offences 1 Police Persons Reported Missing 0
Crime Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 Activities Request to Locate 0
Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 4
Total 7 Total 5
Motor Vehicle Collisions 1
Impaired Related Offences 1 Other
Traffic Provincial Traffic Offences 10 Drug Offences Criminal Code
Other Traffic Related Offences 0 0% 19%
Total 12
Drug Enforcement - Production 0
o Drug Enforcement - Possession 0 :f:;:li;fl
Offer:fes Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 0 — statutes
Drug Enforcement - Other 0 19%
Total 0 Persons
Breach of Peace 1 Crime " common
Other Disturbing the Peace 3 12% / Police
Criminal Fail to Comply & Breaches 7 Activities
Code Offensive Weapons 0 8%
Offence Other Offence 0
Total 11

This Report contains information extracted from PROS. Any data (i.e. ZONE or ATOM) not correctly entered in PROS will NOT show up on this Report.

222




	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	2021-06-23 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes UNAPPROVED.pdf
	Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on June 23, 2021 in the Council Chambers at the Fort Vermilion County Office.

	RFD Tender La Crete North Sanitary Engineering.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	Goal C1
	Goal E 26.1

	Blank Page
	RFD Wood Delegation.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Mackenzie County Regional Waterline (MCRW) Council Presentation July 14_2021 R3.pdf
	Mackenzie County Regional Waterline (MCRW)
	Design Criteria by Mackenzie County Rock Lane and Bluehills
	Rocky Lane & Bluehills - Status
	Rocky Lane Services Options
	Bluehills Servicing Options
	Child Lake Water Demand - Conceptual
	Child Lake – Administrative Considerations
	Alignment Child Lake – High Level, Conceptual
	Extend Service to High Level - Conceptual
	Alternate Concept – Raw Waterline to High Level vs Potable Waterline
	Alternate Concept – Raw Waterline
	Raw Water Supply Line vs Potable Water Line
	Raw Waterline Conceptual Sizing
	Raw Waterline – Routing Data Collection 
	Raw Water Supply Line – Conceptual Sizing
	Slide Number 16

	RFD Form - CAO and Director Reports June 2021.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD - Fort Vermilion Street Scape Dock Project.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD - Financial Reports Jan - June 30 2021.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	3. - Investment Report ending May 31, 2021.pdf
	Step 3 - Report

	RFD - Vehicle Disposal.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	1. USE THIS ONE RFD Storm Pond A La Crete.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION

	Blank Page
	1. RFD Bylaw 1232-21.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	2. Bylaw DRAFT.pdf
	1. That the land use designation of the subject parcels known as:
	Within the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion, be rezoned from Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” to Fort Vermilion Commercial Centre “FV-CC” as outlined in Schedule “A” hereto attached.
	SCHEDULE “A”

	Blank Page
	1. RFD Bylaw 1233-21.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	2. Bylaw 1233-21.pdf
	SCHEDULE “A”

	1. RFD DEV007.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	DEV007 Rural Development Standards - 2021-03 Edits.pdf
	Mackenzie County

	Blank Page
	1. RFD DEV008 Use this one.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	DEV008 General Municipal Improvement Standards - 2021-03 Edits.pdf
	Mackenzie County

	RFD - Off-Site levy fee deferral.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	1. RFD Council DP Statistics Jan-June 2021 DRAFT.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	POLICY REFERENCES:
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	1.RFD Public Engagement Draft Conservation Agreement for Wood Bison.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD Canada Community Revitalization Fund.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION

	RFD Form - 2021 Conventions.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	Information RFD.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	4. NAEL post-meeting package 2021_06_11.pdf
	Draft NAEL Meeting Minutes June 11
	NORTHE~1
	Village-of-Rycroft_Roundtable_Update for NAEL June 11 2021 Meeting
	NAEL_M~1
	Adopted_NAEL Meeting Minutes Feb 5

	8. RCMP Stats.pdf
	Add to Each
	Mackenzie County 2
	Mackenzie County 3
	Mackenzie County
	Mackenzie County 2
	Mackenzie County 3
	Mackenzie County 4
	Mackenzie County


	1. RFD Bylaw 1227-21 Danny Friesen.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	2. Bylaw FV-HC & FV-LI to FV-HI.pdf
	1. That the land use designation of the subject parcels known as:
	Within the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion, be rezoned from Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-HC” & Fort Vermilion Light Industrial “FV-LI” to Fort Vermilion Heavy Industrial “FV-HI” as outlined in Schedule “A” hereto attached.
	SCHEDULE “A”

	1. RFD Bylaw 1228-21 Ace Shin.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	2. Bylaw FV-HCto HR-1.pdf
	1. That the land use designation of the subject parcels known as:
	Within the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion, be rezoned from Fort Vermilion Highway Commercial “FV-HC” to Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” as outlined in Schedule “A” hereto attached.
	SCHEDULE “A”

	1. RFD DRAFT.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	2. Bylaw.pdf
	1. That the land use designation of the subject parcels known as:
	Within the Mackenzie County, be rezoned from Rural Industrial General “RIG” to Rural Country Residential 4 “RCR4” as outlined in Schedule “A” hereto attached.
	SCHEDULE “A”

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



